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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies
to which a high investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may
list on GEM with neither a track record of profitability nor any obligation to
forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there may be risks arising out of
the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business sectors or
countries in which the companies operate. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk
profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility
than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there
will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on
the internet website operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are
not generally required to issue paid announcements in gazetted newspapers.
Accordingly, prospective investors should note that they need to have access
to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on GEM-listed

issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part

of the contents of this report.

The directors (the “Directors”) of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility for this report which
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company.

The Directors confirm, having made all reasonable enquires, that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, (i) the information contained in this report are accurate and
complete in all material aspects and not misleading; (ii) there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein misleading; and (iii) opinions
expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration on the

bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Mission Statement 2 F{E




Phoenix provides Chinese communities around the world with a continuous stream of Chinese-language
o ta)
programming, ranging from entertainment and talk shows through to balanced, accurate and up-to-the-

minute news and information about developments around the globe. By performing this mission, Phoenix

brings China closer to the world and the world closer to China.
JRRJE Bt 55 il ) e R AL T 0 52 SRR O BERE T > GG R BB TR T - e RD IR R I A R
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Annual Highlights 2F AEHE

January — B

The Chairmanand CEO of Phoenix, Liu Changle, heldaone-
day dialogue with the renowned Buddhist scholar and head
of the Fo Guang International Buddhist Order, Venerable
Master Hsing Yun, at the Order’s headquarters in Kaohsiung
in Taiwan.
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January — B

Xu Guangchun, Secretary of the Henan Party Committee
and former head of the State Administration of Radio,
Film and Television, visited Phoenix Satellite Television’s

offices in Hong Kong.
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March = A
The Phoenix “You Bring Charm to the World” award ceremony,

which recognized the contributions prominent Chinese cultural,
scientific, sporting and political figures have made to the global
community, was held at Peking University on 31 March, the
eleventh anniversary of the founding of Phoenix Television.
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February — H

Phoenix Chairman Liu Changle received the Ernst &
Young Entrepreneur of the Year China award at a ceremony
in Beijing.
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July £ A

Phoenix and the Hong Kong-broadcaster TVB were selected by the i" O
Hong Kong Government to be the officially endorsed television \“ AF's
broadcasters covering the celebration of the tenth anniversary of o :
the return of Hong Kong to Chinese sovereignty. In the course L "

of the celebrations Phoenix presenter, Sally Wu, interviewed
Donald Tsang, the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.
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November +— A

Phoenix held the annual Miss Chinese Cosmos Beauty

Pageant in Hong Kong .
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July £ B

Phoenix provided extensive coverage of the Special
Olympics which were held in Shanghai in October, and
in the lead up to this event the Chairman of Phoenix, Liu
Changle, attended an event in the torch relay at the White
House in Washington DC. President George W. Bush was
also present at this event.
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June N H

Phoenix began to broadcast in Australia on the Jade DTH
system, strengthening its access to the Western country
with the largest overseas Chinese community calculated on
a per capita basis
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Chairman’s Statement FEHREE
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Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2007 was 11.4% higher than the previous year, reaching
approximately HK$1,178,667,000.

The increase in revenue generated an annual profit attributable to equity holders of approximately
HK$278,749,000, which was a 31.2% improvement over the profit achieved in 2006.

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.018 per share.

BEFZZELFE+T A=+ HILFEENRAREZFERTH 11.4% > ZEE1,178,667,000 # IC °

W A B A HE 35 R A A\ B AL 4F S A 47 278,749,000 #E 7T 0 BR BTN 4E B B % A T
31.2% °

HEREERIKERMBEFR0.018HTT -
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During 2007 the revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group” or “Phoenix”) increased 11.4% and the profit
attributable to equity holders reached a record high.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2007 was
approximately HK$1,178,667,000, which represented a growth of
11.4% over the revenue derived in 2006. Total operating costs remained
at a steady level, with a marginal increase of 7.5% to approximately
HK$932,123,000. The upward movement in operating costs was
mainly due to the increase in commission payments, programming
and staff costs, but the growth of these expenses was offset by the
reduction of doubtful debt provision.

The Group’s profit from operations and profit attributable to
equity holders for the 2007 financial year were approximately
HK$246,544,000 and HK$278,749,000 respectively. These figures
represented improvements of approximately HK$55,690,000 and
HK$66,364,000 respectively over the 2006 financial year. During 2007
the Group recognized a gain on an investment in a subsidiary, with
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the subsidiary exceeding
the cost of the investment to the extent of HK$17,500,000, and also
on the revaluation of the Renminbi of approximately HK$25,000,000,
both of which boosted the profit attributable to equity holders.

The chart presented below compares the Group’s performance for
the year ended 31 December 2007 with that for the 2006 financial
year in order to give a clearer picture of the overall trend of the
Group's operations.

W BTN > AN REME AR (FKR AL
ok TERES ] ) MWIRARR11.4% » MMERFRA
B 35 FA T o

REFEBE FELES H =1 HILFEERIKRA
#)7%1,178,667,000% 70 » B Z B R NAE T ERAFULA L
TH11.4% o #EE S MABMIGER7.5% 2 4932,123,000%
JG > HERRTERRE KT o SR AR LA B A 4
Ak~ 8B AR B B T RAS B T £ > (HR% 5 B S B
BRI D TS o

AR [ R A AR B ) A U R O 5 R A
JREAG 5 1 0 F 49 B 246,544 ,0008 78 5 278,749,000
JG o M IE B A A R T T N AR B AR B
#155,690,000% J6 & 66,364,000 70 » A ZF X L
AR AR SR RE RO — [ B A R AR Y ik R
B A 42 [ i 5% B R A M TR A T HE & R
WMAEE17,500,000% 00 > H AR MEFHEA AR B AL
25,000,000% 70 » 34 45 Fr A N AL i R A
K e

I 2R AR MR T LFE T A=
o H kA R B TN AR AR A SRR B > LA
BT A B A G T S 1 R R R R

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1—HIFE

2006
TIERTNAE
HKS$'000
Tt
Phoenix Chinese Channel AEF A 802,364 722,697
Phoenix InfoNews Channel EVERCE A ilve) 203,606 223,550
Phoenix Movies Channel, BEEHELS
Phoenix North America Chinese Channel & B SR E K
Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment Channel JE AR R £ 77,409 68,575
New media B 56,391 13,490
Other businesses Fofb w5 38,897 29,355
Group’s total revenue SEFARA 1,178,667 1,057,667
Operating costs LA A (932,123) (866,813)
Profit from operations FSoeinpl 246,544 190,854
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AN FIRE 5 B A B AL 3 278,749 212,385
Earnings per share, Hong Kong cents B A > wsAl 5.64 4.30
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The Group’s core business of television broadcasting performed well
during 2007. Although the Phoenix InfoNews Channel’s income was
less than that in the previous year, it continued to generate a modest
profit, while the flagship Phoenix Chinese Channel achieved a major
increase in both income and profit. The Phoenix North America
Chinese Channel, the London-based Phoenix Chinese News and
Entertainment Channel and the Phoenix Movies Channel continued
to operate at a loss, but this loss was smaller than in previous years,
suggesting that in due course these channels will move towards the
break-even point. Despite continuing to make a loss, the Phoenix
North America Chinese Channel and the Phoenix Chinese News and
Entertainment Channel contributed towards embellishing the Phoenix
name by giving it global reach and realizing the Phoenix vision of being
the global Mandarin-language television broadcaster. The Group is
currently in the process of restructuring the Phoenix Movies Channel,
and is optimistic that it will perform more effectively in the future, and
that this will become apparent in 2008.

The Phoenix Chinese Channel continued to feature a wide array of
extremely popular programmes, such as A Date with Lu Yu, Summary
of Press, Secret Documentary, and Sally Wu's Eye on the World. The
Phoenix Chinese Channel also maintained its cutting edge identity
by broadcasting live The Miss Chinese Cosmos Pageant, the beauty
contest that reflects the growing openness of Chinese society and
which last year was staged in Hong Kong in early November.

AAR E A RO AL G 6B R R LA R R B
o i SR VR R AR I A B ISR R AR BT - (B A7)
PR MR 1 o T AR R AR S A IR WA K
i A7 T PSR R o USRI R G~ B0
i S R O £ KRR TR T R B A R R AL
M o R VR 1R OO R RO > TR % SR S A
GTERAGEBORCT A o RS R ER AT 1R > (R
B & T BRI A B 72 1 2 BR A A 7 25 1 BB
FE AT J A ROl TR B AR R TE — 45 52 T RUR
HRLAR I o AL EIEE EAREARER G - I H
AR SN AR B AT R Y BLRE BE - TR E AL R
EX VS E e

JR A P S 5 A A R RS B 4R 3 A% BT % T £ B
Fom (BBRAX - Bl Rm i) (AR X
W GREANE) K UMEISR) 4 o BER

B WL — A W BUG E A BT R /N E
BRERORFE - BURTH A& H 48 A A g —
[ TS



10 PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BE#E®REH 2007

The Phoenix InfoNews Channel (“InfoNews”) maintained its status
as the world’s leading Mandarin-language news broadcaster, and
carried much real time reporting on events across the globe. InfoNews
reporting included the terrorist attack on the Red Mosque in Pakistan,
the kidnapping of South Korean aid workers by terrorists in Afghanistan,
developments in Iran and Palestine. InfoNews also interviewed many
world leaders, ranging from President Talabani of Iraq to Prime
Minister Abe of Japan. InfoNews also covered major developments in
the Greater China region, interviewing Premier Wen Jiabao about the
floods in Anhui Province, and also interviewing Ma Yingjeou and Frank
Hsieh, the two contenders in the forthcoming presidential elections in
Taiwan. InfoNews also produced a series of discussion shows on the
Australian elections last November, which saw the election of the first

Chinese-speaking head of government in a Western country.

The status Phoenix enjoys in the eyes of Western governments as
the premier Mandarin Chinese news broadcaster was confirmed in
2007 when the United States State Department requested Phoenix to
interview Deputy Secretary of State John Negroponte in order to allow
him to set out US opposition to the Taiwan government’s intention to
hold a referendum on the issue of Taiwan’s membership of the United
Nations. Phoenix not only broadcast this interview in full, but also
made it available to some of the key Taiwan television companies
in order to ensure that it received a high level of attention from the

Taiwan audience.

Besides continuing to develop its core business as a television
broadcaster, the Group has also been exploring the scope to expand into
other areas. During 2007 Phoenix’s new media business continued to
do well. It is still in a developmental phase, however, and will require
further investment in order to realize its longer term potential. Phoenix
also formed a joint venture with Regal Fame Investments Limited,

which will conduct an outdoor advertising business.

Market Leaders

TEPN oo
= T 15 58 3 & e

Realising the Vision
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P EE N MFER MG BHLEJE (Talabani)
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During the third quarter of 2008 Phoenix’s headquarters in Hong Kong
will move to Taipo, in the New Territories. The process of moving will
require a total capital expenditure of approximately HK$400,000,000
(including the acquisition cost of the building). There will be a phase
during which operations will be running in parallel in both locations,
and this will lead to a short-term increase in operating costs.

When all these factors are taken into account, the management
believes that the Group’s potential is sound. While the process of
relocating the Phoenix headquarters to Taipo will require considerable
capital expenditure, and the new media business will require further
investments, the long-term prospects for the entire Phoenix Group
remain positive.

LIU Changle
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2008

B AL B AT A g R R =R
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A Global Media Organisation ZE 2
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As a satellite broadcaster Phoenix is primarily distributed by AsiaSat, which
has a footprint covering the Asia-Pacific region. On the Chinese mainland,
Phoenix is downloaded to many regional cable networks by Sinosat, and in
Hong Kong it is on all major distribution systems. In many other countries
and regions Phoenix is also carried by local operators.

P By — 8 A 2k 3 A (9 R0 - JBURVA AR 0 S = 9 S B 2 R Kt
I o FEREIKRE » BUERMREREHRHEEASREREMALR - E£F
W BUEE BRI FEARER o A HAMBR R bR - BURE S INE
HE WA SRR BRI -

Malaysia 5 2R 75 52
Phoenix is distributed by ASTRO, the major DTH operator, in Malaysia.
BRI B AP B ASTRO » BLE %8S (DTH) 4l 2 4R B -

Singapore 03

Phoenix is carried by Kabelvision and DirectVision in Indonesia.

JEEFE IR EAEDJE Kabelvision & DirectVision R %% e

Japan BZ&

Phoenix is carried by Rakuraku Communications in Japan.

AR A B A 4444 1 (Rakuraku Communications) °

Australia M

Phoenix is carried by the Jade Interactive system and is also available from

ASIASAT.
U558 Jade Interactive FRFLERE - IRAIfE ASIASAT £l -

New Zealand A7 5

Phoenix is carried by Starhub in Singapore.

JBUE AL BT B AR S (Starhub) o

Phoenix is carried by WorldTV in New Zealand.
R A AT VY T o 3 A A (World TV) R4 ©
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Africa FEiM

Phoenix is carried by the TELSTAR-12 satellite. @ Phoenix global reach
A TELSTAR- 12 i 2317 46 - BT

@ Phoenix news bureaux and reporters worldwide

South Africa I3 AR R e

Phoenix is now carried on the SATMEX-6 satellite.

JE A BB 8 SATMEX-6 S84 2 B -

North America 3t 3 M

Phoenix North America Chinese Channel is carried on satellite by DirecTV §

and EchoStar and is also available on cable from Time Warner in New York, Eu rope EA‘H

Comecast in San Francisco, Charter in Los Angeles, Rogers in the Toronto Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment, the Phoenix European Channel,
area and Shaw in the Vancouver area. is carried by Sky Digital, Eurobird 6, and a number of other national cable

RS A T3 B Direc TV & EchoStar % i A% 7 B 83% - IRA[E R E systems in Europe.
LA ZB Time  Warner ~ #8542 1189 Comcast ~ 1§ A2 H) Charter ~ Z i % JEV AR I 5 R A A BRI F) 3 00 1 2 AR Sky Digital ~ Eurobird 6 B
b [ 19 Rogers A ifit 7F 32 b [ Y Shaw 3l T Z A R 1B K 19 4R TR A A A% o
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Global Outlook Z B R Ef
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Phoenix has a global outlook, and in its approach to covering news it seeks to provide the
Chinese audience with up-to-the-minute information about the major events and developments
happening around the globe. Underlying this approach is the belief that no one is isolated from
global developments and that the Phoenix audience needs to have access to information about
the key international events at any particular time.

JBR A N R A R T AR HL R [ RO R — B0 A 1 R B R AR A R A%
B E RS R B R R RO A AN kR BR (R R A T N AT KSR 4 2R
H AR B TR LR IS T BE R BB 2K B R OK A



To fulfill its role as a global broadcaster, Phoenix has a team of
presenters and reporters drawn from mainland China, Taiwan, and
Hong Kong, as well as from the global Chinese community.

The core of the Phoenix team is drawn from the four corners of the
Chinese mainland, from regional centers such as Lanzhou, Fuzhou and
Xiamen as well as from cities like Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou.

B 1B AR AR AT A ER R R IR A 00 A > LR
WARTE R BIKRE ~ A ~ B K ARR#E T T b 40 R H
EE RFE AR o
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1 Wang Ruolin F& 8 Shen Xing L2

2 Chen Luyu fRE#% 9  Yang Shu 154F

3 Chen Xiaonan FREEHE 10 Olivia Xu FFXE

4 Dong Jiayao E3 12 11 Yuchi Linjia FHE#EE
5 LiHui 8 12 Cao Jingxing B &17
6 LiWai =8 13 LuChen EZF

7  Dou Wentao BEX & 14 Zeng Zimo & 12




Some of the most popular Phoenix presenters come from Taiwan, JEEGEHA L2 ZEZBH EER A EE > MR R
bringing a distinctive style that appeals to the Mainland Chinese  [] a JaUks 21 0% 2 | o 80 A e 3 2 o

audience.
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Tiger Hu #8—f% 7  ShiChiping BZ ¥
Avon Hsieh #2855 8 Chen Yuchia FREfE
Shannon Liu 2/i% 9  Vie Tseng &%
Jason Chien &=

Chiang Shengyang %15

Sally Wu R\




With its headquarters in Hong Kong, Phoenix has a strong contingent of
reporters, presenters and cameramen who originate from Hong Kong,
and who bring a high level of professional and technical competence

to Phoenix.

The Phoenix team also includes key players who have close ties with
the rest of the world, having worked, studied or acquired citizenship in
many countries, including Australia, Canada, and the United States.

DA s 2 2 ) B 6 R A I 25 5 R Y 20 1 7 v O i
o AR AR > AT 2 R AL A AR i KT 2
Rl P

R 5 K ) = B B T 4 B S A A o D) I 4R
BN o At R A 2 R B S AR~ R K SR T
15~ B RBG A RERK -




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT ElE#®REHR 2007

Anthony Yuen Bt 7  Lawrence Ho {55
Ma Dingsheng 5524 8 Ada Lau BI3¥
Angela Chow EZF 9  Jonathan Sa EEX
Leung Mantao 23&

Peter Qiu BE&

Yang Jinlin 15838




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT %UEH%?E?_?E 2007

According to Q3-Q4, 2007 “Audience Appreciation Survey of Phoenix — #R#5£2007 4 T 2 4F Je 45 17 35 W 58 B 05 BR 2 =) 34T 11
TV”, Phoenix Chinese Channel continued to surpass other satellite [ JEL i e A A 2 2 B R A SRS | R > BBV R e
gha.n;lels. in ?h;na briih%eCL.lrini the No.lh position ir'l the'Audie'nce £ 4 A I M R AR o LG R S
Satisfaction Index. is is the seventh consecutive time since . . e e X 3 0 e (% B
the second half-year of 2004 that Phoenix has ranked at the top of fM Jﬂﬂ% A 20044 447 LR BB A LUK (51
the list. PEAT RS AL ©

Phoenix Chinese Channel and Phoenix InfoNews Channel are  7EHEAE TN - RS H A KRG & A BR =

outstanding among foreign broadcasters operating in China, and are B B 73 o & DL 3 7% JE B4 05 78 04 T v A5 B 2% 10 b

the most watched television channels in offices. B> R DL E 25 JELEL 2 A A0 43 W) A BE I
I o

Phoenix Chinese is one of the most popular nationwide channels JEE AR S B T B VO K i 37 M B N O ) A

among Affluent Business Executives in China. This demonstrates that ¥ B SEE > 720 BB 3 SC & 78 H B G 75 - Fe i
Phoenix Chinese Channel has a comparatively strong influence among o 47 2 g S 48 4

-7
Chinese Business Executives.

81.8
75.6
73.8
70.4
686 68.4 68.3
63.3
58.7 57.9
Phoenix CCTV General CCTV-5 CCTV-3 Phoenix Phoenix CCTV-10 Hunan Satellite CCTV News CCTV-12
Chinese Channel hih—& HhikARE hRE=E InfoNews Channel  Movies Channel hihtE AR R AR hii e

SRR SR BEmHENE  BRERERA
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Phoenix Chinese is the most watched regional channel in the office

ERAZWEREFRALA

Phoenix
Chinese Channel
BUARHTA

Phoenix
InfoNews Channel

BEHRERE

Phoenix
Movie Channel
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Phoenix Chinese is the fourth most popular channel
among Affluent Business Executives
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Comments on Segmental Information

The table below shows the comparison of operating results of the

Group’s businesses for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006

respectively.

2 EE R T

TRETFIHIBE -FFT LR -FTANEL A
BN N RIS S SEES S E S 1 d

Year ended 31 December
BET-HA=+—HILFEE

2007 2006

—RR L BTN

HK$’000 HK$'000

Tt THIT

Phoenix Chinese Channel R XA 416,540 370,715

Phoenix InfoNews Channel BEmRERE 3,474 33,245

Phoenix Movies Channel, BURFRERE

Phoenix North America Chinese Channel & BRI & B

Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment Channel Bl AR R o (54,633) (58,612)

New media BT 25,151 504

Other businesses HoAth 275 (1,214) (9,391)

Corporate overheads L EATEC (142,774) (145,607)

Profit from operations REA5 U5 246,544 190,854

Revenues from television broadcasting,

comprising both advertising

and subscription revenues, which accounted for 91.9% of the Group’s

total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2007, increased by
6.8% to approximately HK$1,083,379,000 (year ended 31 December
2006: HK$1,014,822,000). The segmental result for television
broadcasting recorded a profit of approximately HK$367,699,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2007 (year ended 31 December 2006:

HK$351,549,000).

Revenue from the Group’s flagship channel, Phoenix Chinese

Channel, which accounted for 68.1% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2007, increased by 11.0% to
approximately HK$802,364,000 (year ended 31 December 2006:

HK$722,697,000).

Phoenix InfoNews Channel’s revenue accounted for 17.3% of the

Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2007, but
decreased by 8.9% to approximately HK$203,606,000 (year ended

31 December 2006: HK$223,550,000).

The cumulative revenues of Phoenix Movies Channel, Phoenix

North America Chinese Channel and Phoenix Chinese News and

Entertainment Channel, increased 12.9% as compared to the year
ended 31 December 2006 to approximately HK$77,409,000 (year

ended 31 December 2006: HK$68,575,000).

oA LR A (BLEE R i e A) BT
6.8% % #)1,083,379,000 # ot (i & ~F T NF+
A=+ —HI1IEFE :1,014,822,000% 5T) > {58 =
CERFBLFES A= H IR FEEAREE A AT
91.9% - 2 XX LT H=ZT—HILEE > &
T 4% 43 1 36 45 Bk A9 168 P 4 367,699,000 #5 76 (K &
TEENFTZH =T — H IR 351,549,000 #
JG) o

7% A A S [0 A AR — BV A P SC A IR A b
Ft11.0% Z #) 802,364,000 # JC (# 2 —F T /NAFE+
H =4 —HIE4EFE 722,697,000 7T) > fh#k = —
EEELFE+ A=+ HIEFEEREHIBEADN
68.1% °

BMECEZZLE+L A=+ —HILEE > BERFHR
Zall B U AL A L B AR A 17.3% > FF$8.9% &
#1203,606,000 7 (B ZE —FENFE+ A =+ —
HIEAFRE © 223,550,000 #57C) ©

BB B & - VR R 35 & SRR ARG
B AFTRABEE XX NFEF = 1F—HIE
FERE T 12.9% 2 477,409,000 ¥ ¢ (B 2 ~FEAN
AEHZH = —H IR © 68,575,000 00) ©
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Comments on Segmental Information (continued)

Revenue from programme production and ancillary services
increased to approximately HK$32,825,000, which included intra-
group sales of approximately HK$27,392,000, for the year ended
31 December 2007 (year ended 31 December 2006: total revenue —
HK$26,498,000; intra-group sales — HK$24,584,000).

The revenue of the new media services increased to HK$56,391,000
(year ended 31 December 2006: HK$13,490,000) with a segmental
profit of HK$25,313,000 (year ended 31 December 2006:
HK$894,000).

Other activities, including the advertising and subscription revenue
generated by the Phoenix Weekly magazine and handling income
from television subscriptions, contributed marginally to the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

Please refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
for a detailed analysis of segmental information and the “Business
Overview and Prospects” in this report for commentary on our core

business.

Dividend

The board of Directors has decided to recommend a final dividend
of HK$0.018 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2007 (2006: HK$0.014 per ordinary share). Upon approval by the
shareholders, the final dividend will be paid on or about 30 June
2008 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 20 June 2008.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 16 June 2008 to Friday, 20 June 2008, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of share will be effected. In order
to qualify for the above final dividend, all transfers must be lodged

with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than
4:30p.m. on Friday, 13 June 2008.

DHEER R (@

BE_EFZLE+_H=+—HILEE > i3 /FE
Ko AR MR WU A T 2 432,825,000 9 0T (B 45 4
A1 2N 78S 427,392,000 00) (B E ZFFE N
ST H Z b H AR S — 26,498,000 #E T
A5 8 1R 7] [ 85 B — 24,584,000 #E 9T) o

SIS AR Bl A BT % 56,391,000 0T (& &
EARETZH = —HIEFJE 113,490,000 70) M
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= HIEFFE 894,000 5 70) ©
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Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries and
Affiliated Companies

On 8 June 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with Jt 1%
J¥ 4% A 7] (Beijing Broadcasting Company) and CBC Advertising
Limited pursuant to which the registered capital of 1t 7T [/] 2 Ji& 15
{555 47 B 2~ 7] (Beijing Simulcast Communication Co Ltd) shall
be increased from RMB30,000,000 to RMB44,600,000. The Group
shall additionally inject RMB2,110,000 for a 35% shareholdings in
the joint venture. As of 31 December 2007, the additional capital
contribution had not been made by the Group.

On 22 June 2007, the Group entered into an agreement with
Regal Fame Investments Limited to form a joint venture. The joint
venture would conduct outdoor advertising business. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group shall inject HK$35,000,000 for a
75% shareholding in this joint venture. A capital contribution of
HK$35,000,000 was made in July 2007.

On 27 June 2007, the Group entered into the capital increase
contract (“Capital Increase Contract”) pursuant to which the
Group has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 50% of the enlarged
registered capital of JE\H i (L) B 2 A R A A (Phoenix
Oriental (Beijing) Properties Company Limited) (“Phoenix Oriental”).
The parties agree that the registered capital of Phoenix Oriental
shall be increased from RMB10,000,000 (HK$10,200,000) to
RMB300,000,000 (HK$306,000,000). 50% of the enlarged registered
capital, amounting to RMB150,000,000 (HK$153,000,000) shall be
contributed by the Group on satisfaction of the conditions stated in
the Capital Increase Contract. On 21 December 2007, the Group
entered into an amended and restated capital increase contract
reflecting the proposed amendments as advised by the Commerce
Department of Beijing on the Capital Increase Contract in order to
facilitate its approval. As at 31 December 2007, no approval has been
obtained from the Commerce Department of Beijing and thus no
capital injection has been made by the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not held any significant
investment for the year ended 31 December 2007.

MEARRBEATNBEBREE
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

The liquidity and financial resources of the group as at 31 December
2007 gradually improved compared to those of the Group as at
31 December 2006. The aggregate outstanding borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 were approximately HK$3,506,000,
representing current accounts with related companies which were
unsecured and non-interest bearing (as at 31 December 2006:
HK$4,743,000). Such fluctuation was within the normal pattern of
operations of the Group.

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities to equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, was 16.3% as at
31 December 2007 (as at 31 December 2006: 23%). Accordingly, the
financial position of the Group has remained very liquid.

As most of the Group’s monetary assets are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi, with minimal balances in UK
pounds and New Taiwan dollars, the exchange rate risks of the Group
are considered to be minimal.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2007, deposits of approximately HK$4,067,000
(as at 31 December 2006: HK$3,907,000) were pledged with a bank

to secure a guarantee given to the landlord of a subsidiary.

Other than the above, the Group did not have any other charge on its
assets as at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

Capital Structure

During the year ended 31 December 2007, other than the exercise
of share options granted (details as per Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements), there was no change in the Company’s share
capital. As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s operations were mainly

financed by equity holders’ equity.
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Staff

As at 31 December 2007, the Group employed 815 full-time staff (as
at 31 December 2006: 742), at market remuneration with employee
benefits such as comprehensive medical coverage, insurance plan,
defined contribution pension schemes and an employee share option
scheme. Staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2007 increased
to approximately HK$296,407,000 (year ended 31 December 2006:
HK$263,418,000).

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes or
substantial change in the number of its employees that led to any
disruption of normal business operations. The Directors consider the
Group’s relationship with its employees to be good.

Significant Investments Held

As at 31 December 2007 the Group invested in certain unlisted
security investments with an estimated fair market value of
approximately HK$76,638,000 (as at 31 December 2006:
HK$141,300,000). Save as disclosed above, the Group has not held
any other significant investment for the year ended 31 December
2007.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Expected Source of Funding

The Group will continue to consolidate its existing businesses while
exploring new business opportunities that will complement and
enhance its existing businesses.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group was considering various
investment projects and options but had not made any solid plan for
pursuing the same.

Contingent Liabilities
Other than disclosed in Note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2007 and 31 December 2006.
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Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. LIU Changle, aged 56, appointed on 2 February 2000, is the
chairman and chief executive officer of Phoenix Satellite Television

Holdings Limited.

Mr. LIU graduated from Communication University of China in the
early 1980s, and joined the China Central People’s Radio Station,
with which he has held over the years the positions of reporter,
editor, news commentator and senior management, and participated
in the reporting and commentary of a number of important national

occasions and events.

Mr. LIU's PRC domestic and overseas investments include
broadcasting, petroleum, infrastructure construction, real estate

development, trading and cultural businesses.

On 31 March 1996, Mr. LIU, through Today’s Asia Limited, which is
93.3% owned by him, together with Satellite Television Asian Region
Limited and China Wise International Limited, jointly founded
Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited (“Phoenix HK").
He became and remains the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of Phoenix.

Mr. LIU Changle gained widespread accreditations from local and
overseas for his enthusiasm and achievement in the media industry.
Some awards and honours he received in the recent years are as
follows:

In August 2000, The Journalist of Taiwan, Ming Pao of Hong Kong
and Hong Kong Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited jointly held a
survey of “Power 50 year 2000”. Mr. LIU ranked 78 among the 150

nominated candidates in the Greater China region.

In December 2000, Mr. LIU was selected as “Intellect of the Media”
in the “Top Ten Pairs in Focus 2000” election organized by China
Newsweek (H1 B B H % Tl ), which is an emerging weekly for
current China events that operates by China News Services ( H [ 7
ML),

In June 2001, Mr. LIU was ranked 17th of Asia’s most influential
communicators in “The Power 50 2001” survey organized by Asia
Week. Mr. LIU was also listed in the “Man of the Cover in the 21st
Century Award” (21 tH 42 £ 151 A#) jointly organized by United
Nations Development Programme, Poverty Reduction Office of the

State Council (B % BE £k E #F ) and Hong Kong Commercial Daily.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

In May 2004, Mr. LIU Changle received the Robert Mundell
Successful World CEO Award, an award named after the Nobel Prize
winning economist, Professor Robert Mundell, “Father of Euro”, by
“leaders of the global Chinese television program providers”( 4 Bk
e GE R L E 4R L PG 09 U ). At the Singapore Asia-Pacific
Overseas Chinese Commercial Leaders Forum in June 2004, Mr.
LIU Changle together with Mr. LI Ka-Shing, Mr. KUOK Hock Mien
and Mr. ZHANG Ruimin were amongst the 30 short-listed Chinese
leaders and they were also honoured with the “2004 Most Creative

Asia-Pacific Overseas Chinese Business Leader Award”.

In January 2005, Mr. LIU was listed in the “Man of Year in China
New Economy 2004” election organized by China Internet Weekly
and co-organized by Sina.com. In the most outstanding CEO and
outstanding enterprise in China region 2004 campaign, organized
by an association of the world CEO “Association of International
CEOs” in March 2005, Mr. LIU Changle was awarded as “CEO of
Outstanding Enterprise Award”. In December 2005, Mr. LIU was
selected as “Top 10 Men of Elite in China” organized by Mangazine e

Brand (Mangazine o £ J#).

At 2006 Enterprising China Summit Forum jointly hosted by the
Contemporary Manager and Peking University in May 2006, Mr. LIU
was selected as one of “Top 10 Enterprising Leader Candidates”. Mr.
LIU appeared in “List of New Talents for Ten Years in 1996-2006"
organized by New Weekly in August 2006. At “Top 500 Asia Brand”
jointly organized by the Certification & Supervision & Management
Center for Asia International Reputed Brand and the China Economy
Information under Economy Daily in September 2006, Mr. LIU
was awarded as “Man of Year for Asia Brand Innovation Award”.
In October 2006, Mr. LIU was awarded as “Prominent Person for
Sculpturing Media Brand ", by the first China Brand Media Summit
Forum & Brand Media Union. In November 2006, at “The Second
World Prominent Chinese Businessman Convention” jointly hosted
by the Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of China,
Beijing Municipal Government and the World Prominent Chinese
Businessman Association, Mr. LIU was awarded as “Top 100 Most
Influential Chinese Businessman”. In December 2006, Mr. LIU
was also listed in “the 4th Top 25 Most Influential Business Leader”

election organized by China Entrepreneur.

In January 2007, Mr. LIU was awarded as “Prominent Achievement
for Chinese Philanthropy”, “Persons of Chinese Charity Award”,
“Person of Year in China Media Industry Award 2006” and “Top 10
Entrepreneur with Most Chinese Business Spirit Award”. Mr. LIU
was awarded as “Entrepreneur in Media Industry Award” in “Ernst
& Young’s China Entrepreneur 2006” organized by Ernst & Young in
February 2007.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

In January 2008, Mr. LIU was awarded as “Special Contribution
awards of Top Ten Innovative Leading Figures of the Media in
Mainland China” at the first Annual Meeting of Leading Figures of
the Media in Mainland China.

Mr. LIU Changle was appointed twice to the board of directors of
Nanjing University since 2003, and is an honorary visiting professor
at the Communication University of China, at Nankai University, at
Fudan University, at Xiamen University and at Sun Yat-Sen University.
In November 2006, Mr. LIU Changle was conferred a honorary
doctoral degree by City University of Hong Kong in recognition of his
significant contribution to learning and the well-being of society.

Mr. LIU Changle is one of the substantial shareholders of Asia
Television Limited in Hong Kong , and he is also a member of the
International Board of the US National Academy of Television Arts
and Sciences. He was appointed the chairman of both the 2005 and
2006 iEMMYs Festival by the International Academy of Television
Arts & Sciences on 22 November 2004. In November 2006, Mr. LIU
was awarded a medal by National Academy of Television Arts and
Sciences in recognition of Phoenix’s outstanding achievement for
which it sponsored and hosted the International Academy Day in
Beijing in August 2006.

Mr. LIU was appointed a Justice of the Peace by the government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in July 2004. On
1 March 2005, Mr. LIU was appointed as member of the Tenth
National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference (HFE AN REIE i @28 HE2WZ 82 9), and
was re-appointed as member of the Eleventh National Committee
of the Chinese People'@ Political Consultative Conference (1
NEBUA e +— Fi.@ha)onZS]anuaryZOOS.
Mr. LIU was also ever appointed a member of Hong Kong Strategy
Development Committee by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region.

Mr. CHUI Keung, aged 56, appointed on 5 June 2000, is the
executive director and deputy chief executive officer of the Company.
Mr. CHUI graduated from the department of journalism of Fudan
University in Shanghai and served in the China Central People’s
Radio Station for over 10 years. Since the establishment of Phoenix
on 31 March 1996, he has been in charge of the overall daily
operations, the public relations and promotion strategies of Phoenix,
and the coordination of the relationships with PRC government
entities. He also assists in establishing and implementing the
corporate development strategies of the Company.

Throughout the term of office with the Phoenix Group,
Mr. CHUI has been instrumental in Phoenix’s PRC domestic
business development, programme production, advertising operation,
marketing network and public relations. In 1996, he was in
charge of the production of “Flying over the Yellow River”, a major

television programme of Phoenix, which achieved popular success
and heightened the popularity of Phoenix in the PRC and overseas
Chinese communities.
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Directors (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Prior to joining Phoenix, Mr. CHUI was a director and the general
manager of Tianhua International Culture and Art Company
Limited in Beijing focusing on developing various cultural, arts and
publication businesses.

Mr. WANG Ji Yan, aged 59, appointed on 29 September 2006.
Mr. WANG joined Phoenix HK in March 1996 and is currently the
executive vice president of Phoenix HK and the Company and Head
of the Phoenix Chinese Channel. Mr. WANG taught in Beijing
Broadcasting Institute (now known as the Communication University
of China) for more than twenty years.

Mr. WANG is one of the leading television programme producers in
China and participated in the direction and production of a number
of television programmes in early years. His television programme

productions have won numerous domestic and overseas awards.

Mr. WANG is also a scholar in the television industry and has been
the panelist of various international television festivals. He is also a
renowned media educator and enjoys a professor title. During the
two decades of teaching in the Beijing Broadcasting Institute, he was
the head of the television department for over ten years and was the
deputy dean of the Beijing Broadcasting Institute for six years.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LU Xiangdong, aged 47, appointed on 29 September 2006, is
currently a director of China Mobile (Hong Kong) Group Limited.
Mr. LU is also the executive director and vice president of China
Mobile Limited. Mr. LU has also been holding the post of vice
president of China Mobile Communications Corporation (‘CMCC”)
since April 2000. Mr. LU is also a director of China Mobile
Communication Co., Ltd. and chairman of Aspire Holdings Limited.
He previously served as the director general of the Fujian Wireless
Telecommunications Administration and the deputy director general
of the Mobile Telecommunications Bureau of the Ministry of Posts
and Telecommunications.

Mr. LU graduated from the Academy of Posts and Telecommunications
of the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications with a Master’s
degree in wireless communications in 1985 and received a doctoral
degree in Economics from Peking University in 2004. He has nearly
25 years of management experience in the telecommunications
industry.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. GAO Nianshu, aged 44, appointed on 29 September 2006,
g PP p

is also a director of Phoenix HK. Mr. GAO is currently the deputy

general manager of data service department of CMCC. Mr. GAO

previously served as assistant to president of Beijing Mobile

Communication Company Limited, deputy general manager and
pany puty g g

general manager of business supporting system department and

deputy general manager of marketing department of Beijing Mobile

Communication Company Limited.

Mr. GAO graduated from Jilin University and received a Master’s
degree in engineering from Institute of Computing Technology,
Chinese Academy of Science and an EMBA degree from Peking
University. Mr. GAO has many years of experience in the
telecommunications industry.

Mr. Paul Francis AIELLO, aged 43, appointed on 29 September
2006, is the chief executive officer of STAR. Mr. AIELLO is also
acting chiel executive officer of STAR India. He joined STAR as
president in July 2006 and is responsible for developing strategic
and business directions for STAR while overseeing overall corporate
functions.

Prior to joining STAR, Mr. AIELLO worked for Morgan Stanley for
more than nine years. He joined Morgan Stanley as vice president
in 1997 and subsequently advanced his career to executive director,
mergers and acquisitions of Asia Pacific; chiel operating officer of
Asia Pacific investment banking and finally, managing director and
head of telecom, media and technology group, Asia Pacific in 2000.

Before joining Morgan Stanley, Mr. AIELLO was vice president,
mergers and acquisitions, investment banking department of CS
First Boston Limited, Hong Kong. He has also worked as a senior
consultant, Central and East European Telecom Group of the World
Bank, Washington, DC and was the assistant to the chief financial

officer at the Beijing Jeep Corp, Beijing, China.

Mr. AIELLO has a Ph. D. degree in Economics from the University
of Cambridge and a B.A. degree in Economics and International

Relations from the University of Notre Dame, Indiana.
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Directors (continued)

Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John, aged 45, appointed on 5 June 2000,
holds the position of group chief financial officer of STAR. Mr. LAU
oversees all financial operations of STAR. He is responsible for
developing STAR’s financial strategies, spearheading financial
planning and reporting, internal audit, treasury and taxation, while

driving operating efficiency.

Prior to joining STAR, Mr. LAU was the chief financial officer of San
Miguel Brewing International Limited, responsible for the company’s
financial operations throughout Asia Pacific.

Before this role, Mr. LAU also held senior financial positions at GE
Information Services, Philip Morris Asia Inc. and Deloitte & Touche

in Los Angeles, USA.

Mr. LAU graduated from Brigham Young University in Utah in
August 1988, with a Master’s degree in Accountancy and Information
Systems and a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting. He is a
member of the California Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. GONG ]Jianzhong, aged 45, appointed on 12 January 2007,
is currently a director of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries.
Mr. GONG is a non-executive director and vice-chairman of the
board of directors of Jilin Qifeng Chemical Fiber Co., Ltd. He is also
a director and vice-chairman of the board of directors of Shanghai
Airlines Co., Ltd. In addition, Mr. GONG is a director and chief
executive officer of Bank of China Group Investment Limited
(“BOCGI") and a director of a number of companies controlled by

BOCGI or in which BOCGI has an interest.

From 2002 to 2005, Mr. GONG was an alternate director and
deputy chiel executive officer of BOCGI. Mr. GONG has over 15
years of experience in banking, administration and management. He
graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics in the
PRC in April 1991 with a master degree in economics.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LO Ka Shui, aged 61, appointed on 5 June 2000, is the
chairman and managing director of Great Eagle Holdings Limited
and the non-executive chairman of Eagle Asset Management
(CP) Limited (Manager of publicly listed Champion Real Estate
Investment Trust). He is a non-executive director of The Hongkong
and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, Shanghai Industrial
Holdings Limited, China Mobile Limited and some other publicly
listed companies in Hong Kong. He is also a vice president of The
Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong, a Trustee of the
Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and a member of the
Airport Authority. He graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree
from McGill University and M.D. from Cornell University. He is
certified in Cardiology. He has more than 28 years’ experience in
property and hotel development and investment both in Hong Kong

and overseas.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim, aged 72, appointed on 21 January, 2005, is
a fellow member of CPA Australia, a member of the Macau Society
of Certified Practising Accountants, a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is the founding
and senior partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers.
Mr. LEUNG obtained his fellowship with Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is a non-executive director
of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited.
Mr. LEUNG is the independent non-executive director of a number
of listed companies namely Yangtzekiang Garment Limited, YGM
Trading Limited, S E A Holdings Limited, Bright International Group
Limited, Fujian Holdings Limited, High Fashion International

Limited and Theme International Holdings Limited.
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Directors (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK, aged 57, is the independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 11 March 2005. Mr. BECZAK is currently a senior
advisor to Nomura International (Hong Kong) Limited and non-
executive chairman of Nomura Asia Holding N.V.. He is also involved
in a number of private companies, including the position of the non-
executive chairman of ACR Capital Holdings Pte. Ltd, an Asian
reinsurance company; non-executive chairman of Latitude Capital
Group; non-executive chairman of Artisan Du Luxe Holding Limited
and independent non-executive director of LIM Asia Alternative Real
Estate Fund. Mr. BECZAK is also an independent non-executive
director of a number of listed companies, including Advanced
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation Limited, Nam Tai
Electronic & Electrical Products Limited, Arnhold Holdings Limited

and Pacific Online Limited.

From September 1997 until December 2003, Mr. BECZAK was a
director of Kerry Holdings Limited. During this time he also held
various board and operating positions within the group. Most recently,
he was deputy chairman of SCMP Holdings Limited and publisher
of South China Morning Post Publishers Limited. Previously, he had
been deputy chairman of Shangri-La Asia Limited, deputy chairman
of Kuok Philippines Properties, a director of China World Trade
Center Limited and a director of Kerry Properties Limited.

From November 1997 until December 2002, Mr. BECZAK was
chairman of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange and a
member of the Stock Exchange and a member of board of directors of
the Stock Exchange from 1998 until 2001. Currently, he is a member
of the Advisory Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission
in Hong Kong and a member of the international advisory committee
of the China Securities Regulatory Commission (CSRC).

Prior to joining the Kerry group, Mr. BECZAK was a managing
director of J.P. Morgan Inc., and president of J.P. Morgan Inc.,
and president of J.P. Morgan Securities Asia from 1990 until 1997.
While at J.P. Morgan, Hong Kong, he was a director of the Bank of
the Philippine Islands and a committee member of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks. He joined J.P. Morgan in 1974. Mr. Beczak has

over 20 years of experience in Asia.

Mr. BECZAK is a graduate of Georgetown University (B.S.E.S.)
and Columbia University (M.B.A.). He is a member of the Board of
Advisors of the School of Foreign Service at Georgetown.
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Directors (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. YEUNG Ka Keung, aged 48, is the executive vice president
and chief financial officer of Phoenix HK and the Company in charge
of corporate finance, human resources and administration. He is also
the qualified accountant and company secretary of the Company.
Mr. YEUNG joined Phoenix in March 1996 and has been in charge
of all of Phoenix’s internal and external financial management
and arrangements as well as the supervision of administration and

personnel matters.

Mr. YEUNG graduated from the University of Birmingham and
remained in the United Kingdom until 1992 after obtaining his
qualification as a chartered accountant. Upon returning to Hong
Kong, he worked at Hutchison Telecommunications and STAR in the

field of finance and business development.

Mr. CHAU Kwan, aged 52, is the executive vice president of
Phoenix HK. He graduated from the Beijing Broadcasting Institute in
July 1990 with a major in Editing Studies in School of Television.

Mr. CHAU joined Phoenix in 1998. He has been the head of Phoenix
Movies Channel, general manager of Phoenix Film and Television
(Shenzhen) Co. Limited (BEJH 5 #H (Y R A A, vice

president and deputy director of programming of Phoenix HK. He is

currently responsible for advertising and marketing networks.
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Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
and devotes considerable effort to identifying and formalising best
practices.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company adopted its own code on corporate governance on
26 December 2005, which combined its existing principles and
practices with most of the mandatory provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices issued by The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Code”) — all with the objective of taking
forward a corporate governance structure which builds on Phoenix’s
own standards and experience, whilst respecting the benchmarks set
in the Code.

The board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company (the “Directors”)
monitored the progress on corporate governance practices of the
Company throughout the year under view. Explanations for the
deviations from the Code are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report. Unless otherwise disclosed herein, the Company has,
throughout the year ended 31 December 2007, complied with the
Code.

Distinctive Roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

Code Provisions

Under the Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out in

writing.

Deviation and its Reasons

Mr. LIU Changle is both the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Company who is responsible for managing the Board and the
businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”). He has been both chairman and chiel executive officer
of the Company since its incorporation. The Board considers that
Mr. LIU’s invaluable experience in the broadcasting industry is a
great benefit to the Group. Through the supervision of the Board and
the audit committee, balance of power and authority can be ensured
and there is no imminent need to change the arrangement.
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Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Code Provisions

Under the Code, (i) non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election; and (ii) all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after their appointment. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Deviation and its Reasons

Apart from the two executive Directors, Mr. LIU Changle and
Mr. CHUI Keung, no other Directors are currently appointed
with specific terms. According to the articles of association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3),
the number nearest to but not greater than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, but the chairman of the Board and/or the managing
director shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire in each year. As such, with the exception of the
chairman, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation. The
Board considers that there is no imminent need to amend the articles

of association of the Company.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings regarding directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December

2007.

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising the Company affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, five non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Their brief biographical details are described in the annual report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rules 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group.

There were four Board meetings held in the financial year ended
31 December 2007. Individual attendance of each Board member at
these meetings is as follows:

BEEEm)

AR A ZE B b T BRI S 5.00 1 > AL B IR A& L
J 57 JF HUAT R 0 AF TR L R RRE o AR A WD
T TR B BATE S S N o

ERERNERLE
PAB R KE B R B

BATIRE > LRI AL E

AATCIRE - BELE T A=+ — HILMB
A JE R AT T VO TR o 5 (T
W Bk L 0TS N T

Attended/

Eligible to attend
Name of Director HRA B BB
Executive Directors HAT#HH
Mr. LIU Changle (Chairman & CEO) PIR G4 (TR IATBA ) 4/4
Mr. CHUI Keung RSB 3/4
Mr. WANG Ji Yan EAFH L 4/4
Non-executive Directors HH T F
Mr. LU Xiangdong B R 0/4
Mr. GAO Nianshu e 4/4
Mr. Paul Francis AIELLO Paul Francis AIELLO %64 3/4
Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John Bl s ek 3/4
Mr. XU Gang (resigned on 12 January 2007) AEEISEA: O 2 F L4 —H + = H&HT) N/A R
Mr. GONG Jianzhong (appointed on 12 January 2007) g A ZEECE—A T HERT) 0/4
Independent Non-executive Directors VA A
Dr. LO Ka Shui RIEE B R 3/4
Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim RELR T 4/4
Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK 5E2E 4/4

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed
and formulated the overall strategies of the Group, reviewed and
monitored the business and financial performances and discussed
the quarterly, half-yearly and annual results, as well as discussed and
decided on other significant matters.

The management is responsible for the day-to-day operations of
the Group. For significant matters that are specifically delegated by
the Board, the management must report back to and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any

commitments on behalf of the Group.
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Board Committees

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee with written terms
of reference based upon the guidelines recommended by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the mandatory

provisions set out in the Code.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and accounts, half-yearly report and
quarterly reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to
the Board. The audit committee meets at least four times a year
with management to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing, internal control and

financial reporting matters.

The audit committee currently comprises one non-executive
Director, namely Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK
(chairman of the audit committee), Dr. LO Ka Shui and Mr. LEUNG
Hok Lim.

EXZET

HEREEE

AN FIC AL R Z B > FUROE R
A S R RN S S P L RS
DA T 7 U8 E o
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M 57, JF 4T 2 % Thaddeus Thomas BECZAKSE 4 (5%
WM Ba ) ~ A E R ORI A -

The audit committee met four times in 2007. Individual attendance ~ FHE T B G —F X LAFEIT TR G - £V %
of each committee member at these meetings is as follows: BE MR % g AT FEELmT
Attended/

Eligible to attend

Name of Director [ %A eAE B ER I

Independent Non-executive Directors B s AT HF

Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK St 4/4

Dr. LO Ka Shui FlE 52 T A 4/4

Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim BRI S A 4/4

Non-executive Director JEH AT HF

Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John Bl se e 3/4

The audit committee reviewed the Group’s audited results for the
year ended 31 December 2007 with management and the Company’s

external auditor and recommended its adoption by the Board.
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Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the remuneration committee in 2003. On
26 December 2005, the Board adopted the new terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee in alignment with the mandatory

provisions set out in the Code.

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management staff of the Company.

The remuneration committee now comprises two non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. GAO Nianshu and Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. LO Ka

Shui, Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim and Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK.

In 2007, the remuneration committee recommended to the Board the
bonus payments and increment in salary and housing allowance (if
any) for the executive Directors and senior management staff by way
of written resolutions passed by all the committee members.

Ad Hoc Committee

The Company adopted the terms of reference of the ad hoc
committee in 2003 to deal with ad hoc matters, which set out detailed
directions as to the powers delegated to the ad hoc committee. Any

two Directors shall form a quorum for the transaction of business.

In 2007, the ad hoc committee, as authorised by the Board, approved
the opening of a cash securities trading account and the transaction
relating to the variations on terms of capital increase contract of
Phoenix Oriental (Beijing) Properties Company Limited.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the

financial statements of the Group.

The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditor’s responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group's system of internal control.
Pursuant to the Code Provision C.2.1, the Board conducted a
review on the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal control
and considered that the system was effective. During 2007, the
Board, through the audit committee and with the assistance of an
external advisor, reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control against the COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) framework. Testing was
also performed on high level controls using management control self-

assessments.

External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers (‘PwC”) has been appointed as the external
auditor of the Company by Sharcholders at the annual general

meeting.

The remuneration in respect of services provided by PwC for the

Group is analysed as follows:

R EREE#Z

HEGRMmMARARHNIESE RSN ET - 4
Pk at o M F RIS C2.1 k> HEFEFC A
B ) A B B AR SR A RO ME AT AR - SRR S % R
BB AR R FEFLFE ERGLBHELE
B g K AP R R R 1 B o kA B2 T A R B B R AR
B A M 2 B COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) HE 283 17 4
wf o ACHE IR AT LB B AT R OK T B R
Bt -

SIS R BUED

AR S UK A g R RS BT (8RS RK AR |) ER OR
AR R EREAR N AR ZAT AN 22w B SN AZ B

BB LRI 2 7 4R B BT B R B 1 < e A A R

31 December 31 December

2007 2006
ZRFLAE TAERER

+ZH=+—H +ZHA=+—H

HK$ HK$

oo ot

Audit Service e A% IR 2,835,000 2,410,000
Tax Service B s IR B 257,900 186,000
Total ST 3,092,900 2,596,000
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Investor Relations

The Board puts a high regard on investor relationship in particular,
fair disclosure and comprehensive and transparent reporting of the

Group’s performance and activities.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company (“AGM”) and the Directors always makes efforts to
fully address any questions raised by the Shareholders at the AGM.

There was no change in the articles of association of the Company

during the year under review.

The Company provides extensive information about Phoenix to the
investors and potential investors through the Company website
www.ifeng.com. Hard copies of the annual report, half-year report
and quarterly report are sent to all the Shareholders, which are also
available on the company website and the professional investor
relation website on www.irasia.com/listco/hk/phoenixtv.

Conclusion

The Company strongly believes that good corporate governance
can safeguard the effective allocation of resources and protect
shareholders’ interest and the management tries to maintain,
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the Group’s

corporate governance.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Changle

Chairman

7 March 2008
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The directors (the “Directors”) submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Principal Activity and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 78.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.018 per ordinary share, totaling HK$89,108,000, to be payable
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 20 June 2008.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
16 June 2008 to Friday, 20 June 2008, both dates inclusive, during
which period no transfer of share of the Company will be effected.
In order to qualify for the above final dividend, all transfers must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 13 June 2008.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Movements in the
reserves of the Company during the year are set out in Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Donations

No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year
(2006: HK$8,000).
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the
Company are set out in Note 27 and Note 28, respectively, to the

consolidated financial statements.
Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
article of association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2007, calculated under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$620,916,000
(2006: HK$683,307,000).

Five-Period/Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial periods/years is set out on pages 179 to 180.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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Share Option Schemes

(A)

Share Option Schemes of the Company

On 7 June 2000, two share option schemes of the Company
were approved by the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”), namely Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. In order to enhance
the flexibility in the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the committee of two and four Directors established for the
administration of each of the share option schemes (the
“Committee”) approved certain amendments to the terms of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 14 February 2001 and
10 December 2004 and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme
on 14 February 2001, 6 August 2002 and 10 December 2004,
respectively.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007:

Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the scheme, though not explicitly stated in
the scheme document, is to recognise the contribution of
certain employees to the growth of the Group and/or to the
listing of shares of the Company (“Shares”) on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (*GEM”).

The participants of the scheme

Employees of any member of the Company, including any
executive directors of any member of the Group who have
commenced working for the Group for not less than one
month prior to the date of grant of an option and spent not
less than twenty hours per week in providing services to
the Group may take up options to subscribe for Shares.

The total number of securities available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes must not in

aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of listing of the Shares on GEM
on 30 June 2000 (the “Listing Date”).
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

A2y B B PR 3 ()
(1) B KA B#7 I Bl e e it ) (A1)

(A) Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued) (A)
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of securities available for issue (continued)
The total number of Shares in respect of which options
are issuable under the scheme is 484,706,000 shares,
representing 10% and 9.8%, respectively, of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date and as
at the date of this report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the
scheme

No option may be granted to any eligible person which, if
at the relevant time exercised in full, would result in the
total number of Shares the subject of such option, when
added to the number of Shares which may be subscribed
by that eligible person under any outstanding options
granted to that eligible person and to the number of Shares
previously subscribed by the eligible person under any
options granted to the eligible person under the scheme
exceeding 25% of the aggregate number of Shares available
for subscription under the scheme at that time.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during the period commencing
one year from the date of grant of the option and expiring
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ten years after the date of grant of the option in accordance T LAATAE -
with the following schedule:

Percentage of Shares comprised
Date of exercise of an option in options which is exercisable
CRgRid] 4y |
A7 B T HE A0 e At e A B
Between the date of grant of an option and less than R IR S B B RS A 1R €10
12 months following the date of grant of an option Dt 12fRA N ES
Between the period falling 12 months or more but less than BB E AAM 12 2% up to 25%
24 months from the date of grant of an option {E 0 24418 71 5 391 1 A0 W% 25%
Between the period falling 24 months or more but less than B MRS PR 240 A a2 4% up to 50%

36 months from the date of grant of an option

Between the period falling 36 months or more but less than

48 months from the date of grant of an option

{EDTA 3618 A 8 1 A

32t B R AR 9 30 1 H B2 4%
{EDTA 481 A 98 1 A

R%50%

up to 75%

RZ75%

Any time falling 48 months from the date of grant of B RCREE B AR 48 @ A R 100%
an option and thereafter HARAT AT IR ] 100%
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Share Option Schemes (continued) fE IR T &l ()
(A) Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued) (A) A2 w] M ST ) ()
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (1) B KA B I il e 1 2 (48)

Minimum holding period AT
As stated above, no option can be exercised within the first W& ST o S A R T 4 T A A
twelve months following the date of grant of an option. wWHEE T ZMEA RATE -
The amount payable on acceptance of the option FEA S REHEE 1T 19 50 I
The date by which the option must be applied for being P i R Y DT a0 0 A N D R 4R 2
a date not more than three days from (and including) the RTHBREL R (TR2EAH) (B
date on which the letter of offer of the grant of option is 7% H) REFHASE A = R IA o R 3 Ak BRIy
issued by the Company (“Offer Date”). Upon acceptance WERHE P A NS L T T AL A - AE
of the option, the option holder shall pay HK$1 to the BT HACE o

Company as consideration of the grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price JESETT 1L 7Y

Same as the offer price for the Shares as set out in the BN A BT RENA 4 — H A
prospectus of the Company dated 21 June 2000. P18 48 15 5 AR ) 19 M A 5 (B AR [

The remaining life of the scheme al #bk T EH

The scheme period expires upon the listing of the w1 0 PR A 2 ) TE A S AR b T IR E T
Company on the GEM, for which the option expires when A T O REE T i G S0 ) 45 oI i 5

the vesting period ends.
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Share Option Schemes (continued) iE IR 5T &l ()
(A) Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued) (A) A2 ] H S e e T ) (4
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (1) BKA B I A e v 1 2 (48)
The remaining life of the scheme (continued) Tt BIE: T AFEH ()
The details of share options granted by the Company AN EIAR A U2 BRI S BCRE T )
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the Directors AN F N A AR B AR T SR R
of the Company and the employees of the Group to (I I RERE R I

acquire Shares were as follows:

Number of share options

TR H
Balance Balance
Exercise as at Lapsed  Exercised as at
Type and number of price 1 January during  during the 31 December
remaining grantees Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period per share 2007 the year year 2007
RZZZLE REZRLE
BT RS (3 —A—0 BRSO RER FZAZTR
W R Btk 0 B frfes  fH it K frfe 5
HKS$
iy
3 Executive Directors:
VTS
LIU Changle 14 June 2000 14 June 2000 to 14 June 2001 to 1.08 5,320,000 - - 5,320,000
13 June 2004 13 June 2010
BER SEETE CRERE %%
ayilmn Ll AATMEE  ARTERZE
SREINE 33k
AR AATEH
CHUI Keung 14 June 2000 14 June 2000 to 14 June 2001 to 1.08 3,990,000 - - 3,990,000
13 June 2004 13 June 2010
i “3EEE S3ITE
AATMA AATNEE  ARTEAEZE
SREINE 33k
~At=R ~Rt=R
WANG JiYan 14 June 2000 14 June 2000 to 14 June 2001 to 1.08 3,990,000 - - 3,990,000
13 June 2004 13 June 2010
IEF “EEER “EERE “REE
AATMA AATNEE  ARTERZE
“EENE e o 2
AAT=HR ~AT=R
53 other employees 14 June 2000 14 June 2000 to 14 June 2001 to 1.08 23,840,000 (20,0000 (4,910,000) 18,910,000
13 June 2004 13 June 2010
s34 HEMER “ZFT%E mes2s2 R
AATMA ARTMAZE  AATNAZE
SEENE 3%
AATEN ~AtT=H
Total: A 5T ¢

56 employees 564 {E B 37140000 (20,000)  (4,910,000) 32,210,000




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BlEE®RFHR 2007

Report of the Directors EE2HREE

Share Option Schemes (continued)

(A)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1)

(2)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The remaining life of the scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 4,910,000
options granted to employees were exercised. At the date
before the options were exercised, the weighted average
closing price per share was HK$1.77.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 20,000
options granted to an employee lapsed when he ceased his
employment with the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no other option has been
cancelled during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, no option
has been granted to the Directors, chief executive,
management sharcholders, substantial shareholders, or
their respective associates, or to the suppliers of goods
or services under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No participant was granted any option in excess of the
individual limit as set out in the GEM Listing Rules or
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Post-1PO Share Option Scheme
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2007:

Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is
to retain and provide incentives to the employees of the
Group to achieve its business objectives.

The participants of the scheme

Employees of any member of the Company, including any
executive directors of any member of the Group, in full-
time employment with the Company (or its subsidiaries)
may take up options to subscribe for Shares.

The total number of securities available for issue

(a) The total number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
must not in aggregate exceed 10% (or such higher
percentage as may be allowed under the GEM Listing
Rules) of the issued share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of approval of the scheme unless
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant to

paragraphs (b) and (c¢) below.

B8l (@)
A% 37 1 P ) ()

(A)

(1)

)

B KB 17 B BB IR 2 (AE)

Al FIER AR ()

REE _EELEL =T —HIL4EE
N> 12 TR B 194,910,000 10 B B RE C AT
i o 7 il PG AR AT AT 4 > A B n RE T
YUk i {8 B 1.77 7T o

NEE -EZEZLE++ A=+ —HILEE
N> 2T — %R B 920,000 0 BEHE R HAS
TS24l 7 A A1 1 i O sk o

Wi b SCHEER 3 A > Sl dE H A J SBRE TR 4R A
TEFLSH -

PEECEELET A= HILEE
AT > ABR 0 B AE 5 AR U2 B AT I
JiHE w0 T T AT AR B
JBESR ~ SR BB~ AR A AR N
B i BB B T o R 2 B R
HH 1 S FBCARE R 8 A S AR L T R P 81 B
AR T R I R P T B S e ) 8 AR
o

B Ik 4 B 171 IR 1 i 1 T )
UNAR —FEEFE+ A=+ —-HNE
U B AR S SRR T ) 9 = S i 2

Tt FIH9 A 19
UK B AT AR B T R R B Y 2 A P
B AR A3 A% T A B2 14 B DU RCHSE S H

i
= o

CE Ve

TEARY m (B 22 7)) 2k TAER A2
LT AL B 2 m AR B (645 A 48 AT ]
BB T AT AT AT EE ) AT B T R A
IS A7 ) B

A (HEZE 7T 119 75 55 A 2

(a) HRPE T YR D AR B AR W I A 5 &) 2 AT
] Al 5 ) 452 1) B R R o T At g AT
1) JBE A3 S8 B BT AN A5 68 8 AR 2 W) A L
HEFH &5 H 83T IR 10% (38 2
W ETR R AR = E A ) s HEAR
5 X (b) K () BEEUAS I s AL HEBR 4] -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(A)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)
(2) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of securities available for issue (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The Company may seek approval by Shareholders in
general meeting to refresh the limit as referred to in
the above paragraph (a).

The Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting to grant options beyond
the limit as referred to in the above paragraph (a)
provided that the total number of Shares subject
to the scheme and any other schemes does not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class of
securities of the Company in issue from time to time.

Shareholders” approval has been obtained on 6 August
2002 to refresh the 10% limit. The Directors may
grant options for subscription of up to 493,173,000
Shares (which do not include those options that are
outstanding, cancelled or lapsed), representing 9.96%
of the issued share capital as at the date of this report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the

scheme

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number

of securities issued and to be issued upon exercise of

the options granted to each participant (including both

exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period

must not exceed 1% of the relevant class of securities of

the Company in issue.
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fE R RESTE (|

A ) 1 B B ) ()
(2) B KA BT IR I &) (AF)
] PEEETT 1Y i 77 AR (A7)

(A)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Ay F AL SRR B b R B A v
BT b 3 (a) B BT At Y R A

EN/NEIEIN S N S R N B g
HEMESE T8 M 1 3 (a) B A At R 1) A9 i
JREHE > b ST B R AT o] A w3 v
[N N R NN N A
A BRI 30% o

B s —F & AR A N B HEE
0% MEl - EE R ERZ
493,173,000 JBEMEAY CR L4 1 K47
B 5E 85 30 O 2 210 % 45 I L RE) Y IR
M - QG A s BB AT AR
9.96% °

RIF it #5285 19 i K BLAH

o 8 1 SR AL E A1 o AT A+ B A A
] 4% 2 B35 4% 7 09 B I HE (G045 247 ff I
A AT 1 I R ) A8 AT IRE 2 8R4 T O T
BT RN EEAA AR SEITA
BRI 5519 1% -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

A2y R B PR 3 (48
(2) B KA BIHT IR e &) (4F)

(A) Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued) (A)
(2) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the scheme at any time during the period commencing
one year from the date of grant of the option and expiring

TT IR FEA IR

FUl PR T TR A S SR R R — 4 B AR
AR R AR 4 i 8 0 39 A
e Ry PR AR 452 w30 ) A > 4 IR DA B ) 3%

ten years after the date of grant of the option in accordance T LT :
with the following schedule:

Percentage of Shares
comprised in options
Date of exercise of an option which is exercisable
LT AT B R
A P 0 Fi Al e Ay
Between the date of grant of an option and less than F2h W ORE S B 2k R P AR zero
12 months following the date of grant of an option DI H A %
Between the period falling 12 months or more but less than RS B 12 A 82 1% up to 25%
24 months from the date of grant of an option ED A 24418 7 1 B 1T 1A R®%25%

Between the period falling 24 months or more but less than

S F AR 24 A 2 1%

up to 50%

36 months from the date of grant of an option B0 36 18 F 19 17 14 W% 50%
Between the period falling 36 months or more but less than P RS B 36 A 82 1% » up to 75%
48 months from the date of grant of an option ED T 48415 1 1Y 1 1T 1Ay R®Z75%
Any time falling 48 months from the date of grant of an 2 R B A 488 A K 100%
option and thereafter HARAT Ao g ) 100%

Minimum holding period
As stated above, no option can be exercised within the first
twelve months following the date of grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of the option

The date by which the option must be applied for being a
date not more than twenty one days from (and including)
the Offer Date. Upon acceptance of the option, the option
holder shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration of
the grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the scheme
shall be determined by the Committee and will be no less
than the highest of (a) the closing price of Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the Offer
Date which must be a business day, (b) the average closing
price per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the Offer Date and (¢) the nominal value of the
Share.

A TF AR
an b SCR A > S A RRORE AT R 5% ) B SR
WHEE WA R -

XA I REJE 11 119 5K
PR i M B S JE 4R 2 F Y (R AR
#Z H) R FFAS R A — KA TR A
JB HE IR - B BBCME R A N ZH S L T T A
NE AR T AE -

EETT 1 (8 19 7 7

AR B B B0 w8 M (B 2 & B g R E >
AR DR AR =3 P B e (a) OO A 4R
R CHABER) EBCHEH R ERx
Jr H BT R > (b) B A R BX 4 4R 5 T Hi
T B 2 B LRI AE B 4 HOE R B S R
P B B (o) BBEA THI L
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Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued) (A) A2 ] H Ji e et ) (4)
(2) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (2) B KA BRI 71 2 (48)
The remaining life of the scheme il #Ef T EH
The scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years w1 E PR AR R AR IR AL
commencing on the date of the adoption of the scheme. TR EE AR IRE > R ] FR AR G T e BOHE o
Upon termination, no further options may be granted
under the scheme.
The details of share options granted by the Company AN F AR B UK B A I R RE L ) 1)
under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme to the employees A R B B2 TR R 0 1) B R 1 R
of the Group to acquire Shares were as follows: BT -
Number of share options
i
Balance
Exercise asat Granted Lapsed Exercised ~ Balance as at
Type and number of price per 1 January during during during 31 December
remaining grantees Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period share 2007 the year the year the year 2007
REZTLE R
{3 -1
REAH REA frfes i Ltk EREL  FREH R
HKS
it
| employee 15 February 2001 15 February 2001 to 15 February 2002 to 1.99 500,000 - - - 500,000
14 February 2005 14 February 2011
14188 ZRE-E 0 CRE-RCAVERE ZEZCECALEAE
"R “EFREA A i S i R
14 employees 10 August 2001 10 August 2001 to 10 August 2002 to 113 9,124,000 - - (2,914,000) 6,210,000
9 August 2005 9 August 2011
44 (R R “3FF “EERITRE CRECEATHE
M “ZTREAIAR e S TViNN
2 employees 20 December 2002 20 December 2002 to 20 December 2003 to 0.79 1,472,000 - - (472,000) 1,000,000
19 December 2006 19 December 2012
24 RR CERCRE CERRCEFOACHAE *§Tj¢+*ﬂ*+ﬁﬁ
FORACHE CERRETCATAR ZE-CEFZATAR
32 employees 26 March 2007 26 March 2007 to 26 March 2008 to 145 - 12922,000 (500,000) - 12,422,000
25 March 2011 25 March 2017
RAER “RELE CERUECACEANE CERAESACIRHE
Y Y e e I 1 B St Y I o
Total: 437 :
49 employees 49 [ & 11096000 12922000 (500000) (33860000 20,132,000
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(A)

(B)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(2) Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)
The remaining life of the scheme (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2007, 3,386,000
options granted to employees were exercised. At the date
before the options were exercised, the weighted average
closing price per share was HK$1.86.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 12,922,000
options were granted to 33 employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, 500,000
options granted to an employee lapsed when she ceased
employment with the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no option has been cancelled
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, no option
had been granted to the Directors, chief executive,
management shareholders, substantial shareholders, or
their respective associates, or to the suppliers of goods
or services under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.
No participant was granted any option in excess of the
individual limit as set out in the GEM Listing Rules or

under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary of the Company
PHOENIXi PLAN

On 7 June 2000, PHOENIXi Investment Limited
(“PHOENIXi"), a member of the Group, adopted the
PHOENIXi 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “PHOENIXi
Plan”).

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the

PHOENIXi Plan as at 31 December 2007:

Purpose of the scheme

The purposes of the PHOENIXi Plan are to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to its employees and executive directors and to promote the

success of its business.

B RESTE @)

(A)

(B)

A ) B S B AR T (D

(2) B KL B1HIREIRRER 2 (%)
Fr#IEE N ER (A
R E - EZELES T H = HIEERE
N> 72T R B 1Y 3,386,000 173 B 4 C 81T
o o A B R RE AT B AT B8 > A R n RE T
P8 B 1.86 W It o

R E - EZELES T H = HIEERE
Al > 12,922,000 i BEREC 2 T 33 &4 R 8 -

REE - EZELEL A=+ HILEE
N> 12T — 218 8 17500,000 153 1 15 A H:
AN 2 R A A B [ T A

e I S0 o S S 4

R E - EZELES T H = HIEERE
Ay > M T AT BCAR AR - PR B
FER R ES AR AL K&
o 5 40 R T AR R B AR I A LA
S B B T AT AT I e RE o A 2 B 3 A R
T 0 8 A A 20 1 2 W T R ) BT S B B
R BT U 2 BF 9 I 152 B A = 3 1) ) A PR
%Eo

A ) — 5% B 4 0 TR T
PHOENIX: 7l #)

N EEEFENALH AERNRE AT
PHOENIXi Investment Limited ([ PHOENIXi J)
B A PHOENIXI & & & 4F It 4y 48 | w1 #1
([PHOENIXi5tH#11) -

IR AR - EELE+ " H=+—HPHOENIXi
F B 3 AR A

A& A 19
PHOENIXi 5t EIM B A BE G EEFE T
S 2y HAR B K AT o S PR LR AT > R i
H Rt -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(B) Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary of the Company (B) AR ] — G BRI A D S L ) (4D
(continued)
PHOENIXi PLAN (continued) PHOENIXi it %] (#4F)
The participants of the scheme Tl # 1 2

The employees of PHOENIXi, including any executive
directors, in the full-time employment of PHOENIXi (or the
subsidiaries of PHOENIXi) or the Company are eligible to take
up options to subscribe for shares in PHOENIXi. In addition,
to be classified as an eligible person, where the employee is
employed by a holding company of PHOENIXi or a subsidiary
of PHOENIXi, the employee must perform an executive role

for PHOENIXi.

The total number of securities available for issue

(a) The total number of shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the PHOENIXi
Plan and any other schemes of PHOENIXi, must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
PHOENIXi as at the Listing Date unless approvals of the
shareholders of the Company and PHOENIXi have been

obtained pursuant to paragraphs (b) and (c) below.

(b) PHOENIXi may seek approval by the shareholders of
the Company and PHOENIXi in a general meeting to
refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number of shares
available for issue under options which may be granted
under the PHOENIXi Plan and any other schemes of
PHOENIXi in these circumstances must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of PHOENIXi at the date of
approval of the refreshing of the limit.

(c) PHOENIXi may seek separate approval of the shareholders
of the Company and PHOENIXi in a general meeting to
grant options beyond the 10% limit provided that (i) the
total number of shares subject to the PHOENIXi Plan and
any other schemes of PHOENIXi does not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total issued share capital of PHOENIXi
and (ii) the options in excess of the 10% limit are granted
only to participants specified by PHOENIXi before such
approval is sought.

PHOENIXi By f& & > € 5 /£ PHOENIXi (5§
PHOENIXi [ B J&§ 23 7)) s A 2 w) 2 5k TE Y
LT AT 3 R A G5 140 T 58 1 PHOENIXG
JBE 3 0 e BRE HE o b A > i AZ I8 7% PHOENIXG #Y
Y2 % 2N W B PHOENIXG B9 B & 2 7 /0 1 B 8 5L
ER AR AL R B 205 PHOENIXI B 17
1T 35 -

] (R 1T HY 75 55 4

(a) MR PHOENIXi 7t #| & PHOENIXi /T ] £
b 1 52 1 B R RRE T ] AR AT Y R ) AR
AR ARSI R B H ) PHOENIX E
BEATEAR 10% - HEARSE T 3C (b) K (c) B
AN W) % PHOENIXG F4 % 5L vE R Hb -

(b) PHOENIXi AJ it Bt K & F SR A A 7 K&
PHOENIXi 19 [ B b #E 558 10% BR il - 28
> 7 UL 45 1 UL AR 98 PHOENIXI 5T #1 K
PHOENIX AT o] H: Ath 51 #1452 H 1) B 1 #E i
A 2 AT ) 07 4 SO 15 A0 A e o e
PR B PHOENIXi & 3847 A H9 10% ©

(¢) PHOENIXi A] jit & 3K & & 55 17 F ok 4
28 ) S PHOENIXG (9 B B4t o 352 7 8
10% PR il () 1% e HE > HE () PHOENIXi 7 #1
J PHOENIXi AT ] Ho At 51 80 95 K 1 B 4y 4
BUR 158 3 PHOENIXI B 38 17 B A #2448 19
30% B (ii) FE 38 10% B ) 00 B3 B RE A 432 7
SORZAMMERT R PHOENIXi TR B S 8L -
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

(B)

Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary of the Company
(continued)

PHOENIXi PLAN (continued)

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the scheme
No options may be granted to any eligible person which, if at
the relevant time exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares of PHOENIXi the subject of such option,
when added to the number of shares already issued and/or
issuable to him/her under the PHOENIXi Plan exceeding 25%
of the aggregate number of shares of PHOENIXi in respect of
which options are issuable under the PHOENIXi Plan.

Time of exercise of option

Generally, an option may be exercised at any time during a
period of no more than ten years commencing from the date
of grant. However, in the case of an Incentive Stock Option
(“ISO”) granted to a person, who at the time of the grant, owns
shares in PHOENIXi representing more than 10% of the voting
power of PHOENIXi, the Company or any subsidiary of the
Company, the option period will be five years from the date of
grant thereof.

Minimum holding period
As stated above, there is no minimum holding period for which
an option can be exercised.

The amount payable on acceptance of the option

The date by which the option must be applied for being a date
not more than twenty one days from (and including) the Offer
Date. Upon acceptance of the option, the option holder shall
pay US$1 to the Company as consideration of the grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price
The price for the shares of PHOENIXi upon the exercise of an
option under the PHOENIXi Plan will, in the case of:

(a) an ISO or a Non-Qualified Stock Option (“NQS”), where
the grantee owns more than 10% of the shares of the
Company, PHOENIXi or its subsidiaries (each a “Related
Entity”), be equal to not less than 110% of the Fair Market
Value (as referred to below) per share of PHOENIXi on
the date of the grant.

(b) an ISO or NQS, where the grantee does not own more
than 10% of the shares of PHOENIXi or a Related Entity,
be equal to not less than the Fair Market Value per share
of PHOENIXi on the date of the grant.

B RESTE @)

(B)

AT — SR b B > o S A (790D

PHOENIXi 71 (#%)

IRIE 72 75 2 H1LE 19 57 K P #H

FATATT — 44 & R A 1A A B R 1] 4 T £ 7 (o 42
BT 0O ME R HE > TR G A E i N T R
Il A 5 K2 9 PHOENIX & 1 4 8 > I 3% &
&g N AR P8 PHOENIX: #F 31 1 88 47 K/ af
AT EEAT IR BOE o R AR 8 PHOENIXI BT
B AT A AT 00 1 R RE BT B By AR Y 25%
RN T5 17 5% 4 s N 35T I A HE -

1718 T IR FEHT IR

— T E o W RHE AR B TR B R R R T
A R A AT o] IRE R AT 0E o SR o i A8 I T 4
JEPE A (T1SO ) 2 At > N T R EEAA /Y
PHOENIXi i 4 A8 55 72 PHOENIXi ~ 4 2\ ] 5§,
AR FAT AT B JES 2 700 15 EEHE 10% DA & > BI i
JRCHE 0 B ot 2 oA 7 B A RE 5T AL AF -

BRI 1F A
BSOS > Sl R R N SR T AT 68 T ZEAT
SCFSERRER

1R REHE 11 19 30

P g I IR HE B I 4R 2 D (B Rz )
A FE A R A R A o 7 Ak I R Ry >
HERE A N1 R e FARF - ERIRT
9 FLAE

FEETTIE (19 H i
R PHOENIX 71 8 47 {# B A% HE
PHOENIXi i {73 FIE 4%

(a) FEISOTKIE PR & HERE#E (TNQS ) T & » A&
IR NFEA AR @)~ PHOENIX 37 H: [ 2
o] (AR TAH BB D) M 102 1 B 40y
I % 51 AS AR B3 B PHOENIXG JBE 43 75 $7
HE B AT A (R STl Y
110% °

(b) FISOMNQSIN T » HEAZE ANHEA
PHOENIXi 5% AH B 2 #8 A8 48 10% 1 Ry
HIJAE % 51 A IG5 B PHOENIXG JIE £33 78 4%
HE H A AT A

I
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(B)

Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary of the Company
(continued)
PHOENIXi PLAN (continued)

The basis of determining the exercise price (continued)

()

an option which is neither an ISO nor an NQS but
where the grantee owns more than 10% of the shares of
PHOENIXi or a Related Entity, be equal to not less than
the Fair Market Value per share of PHOENIXi on the date

of the grant.

an option which is neither an ISO nor an NOS but where
the grantee does not own more than 10% of the shares of
PHOENIXi or a Related Entity, be equal to not less than
85% of the Fair Market Value per share of PHOENIXi
on the date of the grant, but if the shares of PHOENIXi
are listed or if a director of the Company or PHOENIXi
or their associates participates in the PHOENIXi Plan,
the per share price must not be less than the Fair Market

Value per share of PHOENIXi on the date of the grant.

For the purpose of the above “Fair Market Value” means as of
any date, the value of shares of the Company, PHOENIXi or
any subsidiary of PHOENIXi (as the case may be) determined

as follows:

(i)

(i)

where the shares of PHOENIXi are listed on any stock
exchange, the Fair Market Value shall be (a) no less than
the higher of the closing price for a share on the date of
the grant of an option which must be a business day, or (b)
the average closing price of the share for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant (the closing
price shall be the price on the stock exchange on which
the shares of PHOENIXi are listed) or (¢) the nominal
value of a share; or

in the absence of an established market for the shares
of the type described in (i) above, the Fair Market Value
thereof shall be determined by the Committee in good
faith on a fair and reasonable basis but in a manner
consistent with Section 260.140.50 of Title 10 of the
California Code of Regulations but in any event must
in no circumstances be less than the latest audited net
tangible assets per share of PHOENIXi unless none of the
directors or their associates of PHOENIXi or the Company
participate in the Plan, in which event, reference does not
need to be made to the latest audited net tangible asset
per share of PHOENIXi for the purpose of determining
the Fair Market Value of the shares.
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AN T W 6 24 1 0 (60

PHOENIX; 7l ] (#F)

FEETT B 19 FEE (4

(¢) HRISO EKNQS LA A5 1) I 5 1 5 > 25 7K %2
N A PHOENTX B¢ AH B B #8 H it 10% 1
By - RIS A 3 A K R B B PHOENIXG B
Py FEFZ U H AT G EE -

(d) #EISO B NQS LA &I i B BEHE T & > A5 7R 3%
N ¥ A PHOENIX B¢ AH B B 48 A 10%
B B A7y > B A R S A B I PHOENIXG
JREA3 A B2 H H BN T A5 A (B Y 85%
M2 PHOENIXI 5 B b 845 A 23w 8§
PHOENIXi [ 2 55 o 1 %6 19 6 & L& 10y
2 BLPHOENIXi 71 # - [ &5 1 A 4% 78 A
A BB PHOENIXG B 3 76 #52 i & B 19 F
T EE -

MU EEMINS  [A S EE ] B ET A H
M > AN A~ PHOENIX 8 PHOENIXi A ] Fff
BT (RS DLTE ) BB LR 78 RE RO

(i) # PHOENIXi B FEARA 55 558 5 o b7ii »
FU2 ST B (B AR B (a) AN A0 IR A 76 4% ) i
JEREE B (ZAAEZER) BT - 5(b) I
Py B4 B H W0 RT M 4 2 B T80k
T8 (ki 8 78 4 5 PHOENIXi B 73 L 17 fr
TE 7B I3 28 5 Fr (B AR ) ol (o) LAy i {EH =&
FEREE s B

(i) A7 b 3CG) rat R RO Il # E e T
BN SF- T 35 18 (B 28t 25 B 6 DLB S R 4
A B S NI DL L Section 260.140.50
of Title 10 of California Code of Regulations
W 77 2 E - M S A0 el R AR IR R B R
PHOENIXi % 3 1) f5: 3 W1 88 35 % A T8 &
1 {H o BE JE PHOENIXi 5l A 23 ] 1Y ¥ 3+ of;
MENB R AN E2MmSEGH > f£IE N
o B A TS EEEES SR
PHOENIXi f% {3 1) Fe 35 ) 48 25 % A T G &
T T 7 2 e
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Share Option Schemes (continued) fE IR T &l ()
(B) Share Option Scheme of a Subsidiary of the Company (B) AR ] — G PR IR 4 D i S L ) ()
(continued)
PHOENIXi PLAN (continued) PHOENIXi it #] (#)
The remaining life of the scheme T #ER T ER
The scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years Fh B R PR AN B B AR A R R A e R
commencing on the date of the adoption of the scheme. Upon HARIRE > R AT PR AR T R o
termination, no further options may be granted under the
scheme.
As at 31 December 2007, no options had been granted under W EEELE+S A=+ — B W EARE
the PHOENIXi Plan. PHOENIXi is currently undergoing a PHOENIXi wt # % i i Jiz # - PHOENIXi H il
liquidation process. IELEHEAT I AR )T -
Directors o=
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are: FENRBEARSE A IERERMOT
Executive Directors: PATE S
LIU Changle (alternate director to CHUT Keung) PR 4 (FHAE A BT ESF)
CHUI Keung (alternate director to LIU Changle) A (F R BT #E )
WANG Ji Yan (alternate director to LIU Changle ERF (7% PR 48 o 4 R A B AT 5
and CHUI Keung)
Non-Executive Directors: FHITES
LU Xiangdong Bl R
GAO Nianshu 1
Paul Francis AIELLO  (alternate director to LAU Yu Leung, John) Paul Francis AIELLO (& 8@ 2L E3)
LAU Yu Leung, John (alternate director to Paul Francis AIELLO) B &5 (£ Paul Francis AIELLO
H A )
XU Gang (resigned on 12 January 2007) Gl (R =FELHFE—H+H
BEAE)
GONG Jianzhong (appointed on 12 January 2007) B R = FFELHFE A+ H#
ZAT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors: WAL MATES
LO Ka Shui 7B 5 Hiv
LEUNG Hok Lim ULE )
Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the Company’s articles of — AREAS 2> F B9 RE 40 I 55 87(1) ¢ » & 57 B 3 A2~ 81
association, Dr. LO Ka Shui, Mr. LAU Yu Leung, John and @ %&56/E )2 Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK 5542 A A 2%
Mr. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK retire by rotation and being eligible, 7 1 Ji 5 548 4F K & L i (E0R A 00 49 5 4SBT

offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general ~— ZEEAE o

meeting of the Company.
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Directors (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Dr. LO Ka Shui, Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim and Mr. Thaddeus
Thomas BECZAK, and as at the date of this report still considers
them to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

On 29 June 2006, each of Mr. LIU Changle and Mr. CHUI Keung,
executive Directors, entered into a new service contract with the
Company commencing from 1 July 2006. The term of each contract
is for a term of three years commencing from 1 July 2006 and
thereafter may be terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than three months’ written notice.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors who are proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not terminable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The terms of office of each of the executive Directors (other than
the chairman of the board of Directors), non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or its parent company was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the Directors and
chief executives in the shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which such Directors or chief executives are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or were required
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or were required pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
relating to securities transactions by Directors to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

EERBEITHRAERAQRFAHEM
MHEEERNRD - HERO R EERD
BER /KR

REEFELELH=1T—H > EELERETHEA
BIRAGS w) B H AR i ) (B A sk 0156 571 &
I R B AR (T8 25 R 51 1) 58 XV 0T 119 188
) (19 A Hh B A AR R O B U R R A9 28 XV R Y 5
7 R 8 03 B U AR R B A W W 58 o P AT RS
A (WA e 1) e g (B 33 AR 4 i o5 I 0 R il A
IR 0k SC A B g A R AT BN B 80 R SBLAE B A
A HE i SR ) 5 BORR B R I B B A0k 91 25 352 7R
O A W% A0 SC BT 2t 14 %5 T M 5 B 5 g 5 BT A1 S M
Zr B BRI (TR S AR i AR 5 546 5 5.67 ik
A B E FEAT B A ) LK B AR R R AL
P e AT

Number of ordinary shares held

ESRES LIS ¢!

Personal/ Family Corporate Total number Percentage of
Name other interests interests interests of shares shareholding
A~ S A JBe A e
s A B 2 iE B2t A Eligd
LIU Changle (Note 1) BHS 44 (it 1) - - 1,854,000,000 1,854,000,000 37.45%
LO Ka Shui (Note 2) 75 5y (Hf % 2) 4,630,000 - - 4,630,000 0.09%

Notes: iigia

1. Asat 31 December 2007, Mr. LIU Changle was the beneficial owner of
approximately 93.3% of the issued share capital of Today’s Asia Limited,
which in turn had an interest in approximately 37.45% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

2. As at 31 December 2007, Dr. LO Ka Shui was the beneficial owner of
500,000 Shares while 4,130,000 Shares were held for a discretionary
trust of which Dr. LO Ka Shui was the founder.

. R ERELESL A= —H BIRERAERSHE
YA PR R #793.3% C 8 AT IRAS I EL 25 A A > M %
oy w R £937.45% M AR w) 84T I A 25 -

2. MEEEFEFE+T A=+ —H > BB S 500,000
TR B3 B B S AT N > T 4,130,000 BB TS 1 — K A
REAR 5T (B 5% B B 26 2 LB ) W R -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and/
or Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporation (continued)

Save as disclosed herein, so far as the Directors are aware, as at
31 December 2007, none of the Directors and chief executives
of the Company had any interest or short positions in any Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors or chief executives are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Under the terms of the Company’s share option schemes approved
by the Shareholders on 7 June 2000, the Committee may, at their
discretion, invite any employee of the Company or any of the Group
companies, including any executive directors, to take up options to
subscribe for Shares. The maximum number of Shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the share option schemes
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company.
The terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were amended on
14 February 2001 and 10 December 2004 and the terms of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme were amended on 14 February 2001,
6 August 2002 and 10 December 2004, respectively. A summary of
the amended share option schemes is set out in the section headed
“Share Option Schemes” of this report.

Save as disclosed herein, and other than those in connection with the
Group reorganisation scheme prior to the Company’s listing of Shares,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of the companies
comprising the Group a party to any arrangement to enable the
Company’s Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2007, the interest of the shareholders (not being
Directors and the chief executive of the Company) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO or entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, were as follows:

(i) Long positions of substantial shareholders in the
ordinary shares of the Company

Name of substantial shareholders

FERRRAAARGREBERDH
BERAR

AR LAES T H =T H s R G R EE A
ST RATON B) AN R s AT AT AR B A B (B
W5 I T B B 9 28 XV T 00 W ) 09 A S A B
JBE A7 v A AR 0 R T S B R R 0 2B XV IR 5 2 SR
35 ERZE AN AN ) KA T LA R IEGEAAR S FIAR
PE B S MO B 5 56 336 M6 A7 B R B R I B A AR
2 ) KR R S e ) B AR 1) 55 35246 BE AT I B R T A
B QR -

(i)  FEEBAAA A T b

Percentage

Number of shares of shareholding

EX YT s €| JRe M 4 bl

Today's Asia Limited (Note 1) A HEMA RN (B 1,854,000,000 37.45%

Extra Step Investments Limited (Note 2) Extra Step Investments Limited (#7£2) 983,000,000 19.86%

Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. (Note 3) Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. (#f#£3) 871,000,000 17.59%

Notes: Wat -

1. Today's Asia Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. LIU Changle 1. A H A A &) iy 2R 48 50 A KBk Bt e 2k
and Mr. CHAN Wing Kee as to approximately 93.3% and 6.7% TR HEAT > WA R #993.3% S 6.7% W HE 4 -

interests, respectively.

2. Extra Step Investments Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China Mobile (Hong Kong) Group Limited which in turn
is a subsidiary of China Mobile Communications Corporation
(“"CMCC"). By virtue of the SFO, CMCC and China Mobile
(Hong Kong) Group Limited are deemed to be interested in the
983,000,000 shares held by Extra Step Investments Limited.

w

Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of STAR
Group Limited. News Cayman Holdings Limited holds 100%
of the ordinary voting shares of STAR Group Limited. News
Publishers Investments Pty. Limited holds 100% of the ordinary
voting shares of News Cayman Holdings Limited. News
Publishers Investments Pty. Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of STAR LLC Australia Pty Limited, which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC.
New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC, which in turn
is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR US Holdings, Inc..
STAR US Holdings, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of News
Publishing Australia Limited, which is an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of News Corporation.

2. Extra Step Investments Limited £ 1 B F 8) ()
A B RN W R 4 B S\ AR E T R
BEpa A w (Th R E @ ) kA -
TR R 5 S B e i) - op 7% B 2 A5 K v 1) S )
(Fr W) 45 [ A PR 2> W) WL 2% A Extra Step
Investments Limited T4 19 983,000,000 % % {7
HIHERS o

3. Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. £ 5 %2 {3 it
VA BR A ) 00 B D o ) o i A e AR A
PR 2% &) HIl Y News Cayman Holdings Limited £ A
H100% 28 v] % 52 B HE 73 © News Publishers
Investments Pty. Limited % & News Cayman
Holdings Limited [ 100% % 8 7] 5 55 B 03 HE 45 o
News Publishers Investments Pty. Limited 25 STAR
LLC Australia Pty Limited it 4> % Bt J& 2 ] > 1
STAR LLC Australia Pty Limited 4 New STAR
US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC ¥ 4% ¥& B J&§ 23 7 o
New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC % STAR
US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC #J 4> & Fff & /A & >
I STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC % STAR US
Holdings, Inc. 1 B 4% 4 & b Ji§ 22 @) © STAR US
Holdings, Inc. % News Publishing Australia Limited
R 4> & Bt & 22w > il News Publishing Australia
Limited £ News Corporation [ [H 4 2 & M A 7] o
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company (continued)

(i) Long positions of substantial shareholders in the
ordinary shares of the Company (continued)
By virtue of the SFO, News Corporation, News Publishing
Australia Limited, STAR US Holdings, Inc., STAR US
Holdings Subsidiary, LLC, New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary,
LLC, STAR LLC Australia Pty Limited, News Publishers
Investments Pty. Limited, News Cayman Holdings Limited and
STAR Group Limited are all deemed to be interested in the
871,000,000 shares held by Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co.,
Ltd.

(ii) Long position of other person in the ordinary shares of
the Company

Name of other person who has

more than 5% interest
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EREREAQTRG KAEEBEKRGDH
1‘3% KRB @

R

(i)  FEEBAUA AL W] b A (A7)
HRIE R F XA BB > News Corporation > News
Publishing Australia Limited * STAR US Holdings,

c. > STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC *
New STAR US Holdings Subsidiary, LLC * STAR
LLC Australia Pty Limited * News Publishers
Investments Pty. Limited * News Cayman Holdings
Limited ¢ 52 2 (S5 BA BRAY ®) - 39040 7 B
A M Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. I £f
A7 11 871,000,000 i A 47 1) 1 2. -

(i) AN A A A T B A

Percentage

of shareholding

Number of shares

P M 5% HEZS W HoAb N+ 2 &4 B H JRHEE 4 L
China Wise International Limited (Note) 3 FH B PR AT PR /) (M 2E) 412,000,000 8.32%

Note: China Wise International Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Cultural Developments Limited, which in turn is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Bank of China Group Investment Limited.
Bank of China Group Investment Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Bank of China Limited, which in turn is a
subsidiary of Central SAFE Investments Limited. By virtue of
the SFO, Central SAFE Investments Limited, Bank of China
Limited, Bank of China Group Investment Limited and Cultural
Developments Limited are all deemed to be interested in the
412,000,000 shares held by China Wise International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other shareholders or other persons
had interest or short position in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of the issued share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.

Kt - #EFE B R AT BR /A ® J% Cultural Developments
Limited [ 2 & Bt J&§ 24 7 > 1 Cultural
Developments Limited 7 1 §R 4 [ 4% & IR A
) A BB 2 ) o SRR B A R T
T v B SR AT R0 A B ) I A RS A A
T SR AT B A R4S D 2 v O BE 4 1R
B R AT 2 A B A R o AR RS IR S &
el > v o BEE 4 % B AT BRIFAE 2 A) ~ 4R
AT AR AT RS )~ b AR [ % AT BR 2 | %
Cultural Developments Limited 2 # 1 7 % &
HY 26 B B A B 2 )RR A 9 412,000,000 [
e R £ o

B b SCHIT 4 A b > Sl A e R B A A R AR
O3 AL~ A R A AR R R A AR R T
B AR 910 585 XV 0 Y 55 2 B 55 3 70 IS A Ak S 1l A 8
T W 52 P AR e A RE A IR O T T R A
WA TP A 4 AT T FC At AR B 2 R B SRR & B Y
P A 15 LT B RE R © 8 AT RO T (B SRt A B B A
A4 A AT i P HE 1) 59 S DA B HE 4R o
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or existed during the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of programme purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and advertising end-

customers are as follows:

BEEEESHN

AR T A Rl 0BT S SRR W A S &
RS o] TR B 1 B B A 1Y 45 4
TEHEBREF

A T (Y T AR R A A A T A AR A B H
PRI B s 45 | o Lot

Year 2007 Year 2006

SERLE CEBARF
Programme purchases i B P71
— the largest supplier — R L 18% 17%
— five largest suppliers — FR A P 54% 48%
Sales P
— the largest advertising end-customer — KBS REET 3% 3%
— five largest advertising end-customers — HRESREHET 11% 11%

The largest advertising end-customer during the current year ended
31 December 2007 is represented by CMCC and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “CMCC Group”). Details of the transactions
between the Group and the CMCC Group are set out in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. The CMCC Group through
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Mobile (Hong Kong) Group
Limited, owns 19.86% of the issued share capital of the Company.
CMCC has become a substantial shareholder and related party of the
Group since 25 August 2006.

The film license fees paid/payable to STAR TV Filmed Entertainment
Limited (“STAR Filmed”) are not included in the above list of
programme purchases suppliers. Details of the transactions
between the Group and STAR Filmed are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. STAR Filmed is an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of STAR Group Limited, which holds 100% of Xing
Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

REE ZTEE+T A=+ HIEFEER > &K
JBE A # i 2  RS B A AE B LR AN R (BAR T R
FE B 5 42 1)) o A< 4 (9] B i B o 4 A 4 AT 1Y
25 I O S S R B R 34 o T RS B A AR 4R
97 3 P I B B () 4 AT BR AN A A A R R
AR AN A BT AN 19.86% HE 45 o F R B
G H ZFFENRF/NHA A B H R AR /) F 5
JRCHR B AT B A o

BT MEAT T STAR TV Filmed Entertainment Limited
(['STAR Filmed |) 2 % 5% #F ] #30f R 61 3% it B3R HET H
RS AL I R 4 - AS4E [ BL STAR Filmed #E1T 19 58 2 7
175 A 57 BA TS 3 B 5E 34  STAR Filmed /7 A 22 {4
BWAEBARARAMHERERB AR - BERAA
23 ) F R Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. )
100% i <
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Major Suppliers and Customers (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, such transactions were carried out on
terms no more favourable than terms available to independent third

parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholder (which to the best knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the major suppliers or customers mentioned above.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements also constituted connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules, are required to be
disclosed in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company have been
entered into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements,
if necessary, had been made by the Company in accordance with the

requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

1. The connected transactions with Satellite Television Asian
Region Limited (“STARL”) and STAR Filmed had been
approved by resolutions of independent shareholders of the
Company (“Independent Sharcholders”) passed on 18 August
2006.

(a) STARL is a subsidiary of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group
Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company. The
connected transactions are:

(i) STARL provides technical and administrative services
for the operations of the Phoenix Chinese Channel,
Phoenix Movies Channel, Phoenix InfoNews
Channel, Phoenix North America Chinese Channel
and Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment
Channel. For the year ended 31 December
2007, the service charges paid/payable to STARL
amounted to approximately HK$54,258,000 (2006:
HK$53,416,000), which were calculated under the
terms of the executed service agreement between a
subsidiary of the Company and STARL. Such amount
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$59,000,000 for
the financial year ended 31 December 2007, approved
under the relevant resolutions.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

(b)

(ii) STARL acts as a non-exclusive agent to promote
international subscription sales and marketing services
for the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2007, commission for international subscription
sales and marketing services paid/payable to STARL
amounted to approximately HK$3,447,000 (2006:
HK$3,201,000), which was calculated based on 15%
of the gross subscription fees received by Phoenix
Satellite Television Company Limited (“Phoenix HK”)
attributable to the subscribers referred to Phoenix HK
by STARL. Such amount did not exceed the annual
cap of HK$4,000,000 for the financial year ended
31 December 2007, approved under the relevant

resolutions.

=

(iii) STARL provides purchase of decoders and viewing
cards service to Phoenix HK. For the year ended 31
December 2007, payment for purchase of decoders
and viewing cards was HK$33,000. Such amount did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$1,000,000 for the
financial year ending 31 December 2007, approved

under the relevant resolutions.

STAR Filmed is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
News Corporation, which is the ultimate holding company
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The connected transaction
relates to the granting of a non-exclusive license to exhibit
a selection of movies on Phoenix Movies Channel in the
PRC for a term of 10 years commencing from 28 August
1998. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the film
license fees paid/payable to STAR Filmed amounted to
approximately HK$20,413,000 (2006: HK$20,326,000),
which were charged according to the executed film rights

license agreement between a subsidiary of the Company

and STAR Filmed. Such amount did not exceed the annual
cap of HK$22,000,000 for the financial year ending 31
December 2007, approved under the relevant resolutions.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

2.

On 15 June 2004, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an
agreement with Fox News Network L.L.C. (“Fox”), an associate
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The connected transactions relate
to:

(a) granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable license to
subscribe for Fox's news service;

(b) leasing of office space and access to workspace, subject to
availability; and

(¢c) accessing Fox’s camera hook up at the United Nations,
interview positions in various places in the United States
and live shots from Fox’s satellite truck positions for events
that Fox is already covering, subject to availability.

For the period from 1 January 2007 to 25 July 2007, the
service charges paid/payable to Fox amounted to approximately
HK$2,151,000, which were charged under the license
agreement between this subsidiary and Fox. Such amount
did not exceed the cap of HK$2,157,005 for the period from
1 January 2007 to 25 July 2007 approved under the relevant
resolutions.

For the period from 26 July 2007 to 31 December 2007, the
service charges paid/payable to Fox amounted to approximately
HK$1,568,000. For the year ended 31 December 2007,
the total service charges paid/payable to Fox amounted
to approximately HK$3,719,000 (2006: HK$3,689,000).
These are connected transactions and are exempted from
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

On 31 August 2005, Phoenix Chinese News & Entertainment
Limited (“Phoenix CNE”) a 70% owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an electronic programme guide (“EPG”)
services agreement (“2005 EPG Services Agreement”) with
British Sky Broadcasting Limited (“BSkyB”), an associate
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The 2005 EPG Services
Agreement was terminated by BSkyB in accordance with the
provision therein with effect from midnight on 31 December
2006. On 8 January 2007, Phoenix CNE entered into a new
EPG service agreement (2007 EPG Services Agreement”) with
BSkyB for provision of EPG services for a term commencing
from 1 January 2007 until 30 August 2008. Pursuant to the
2007 EPG Services Agreement, Phoenix CNE shall pay BSkyB
a service fee on monthly basis. This connected transaction
fell within Rule 20.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and was
exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the costs paid/payable
to BSkyB amounted to approximately HK$1,233,000 (2006:
HK$1,120,000), which was charged in accordance with the
2007 EPG Service Agreement with BSkyB.
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On 30 October 2000, a subsidiary of the Company had entered
into a license agreement with DIRECTV Inc. (“DIRECTV”)
for the non-exclusive distribution of Phoenix North America
Chinese Channel via its direct broadcast service satellite
— delivered television system in North America (“License
Agreement”), which term had been extended by various letters
until the end of 2004. DIRECTV is approximately 40.97%
owned by News Corporation, the ultimate holding company
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co. Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. On 1 March 2005, a subsidiary
of the Company and DIRECTV signed a letter which extended
the term of the License Agreement for four months from
1 January 2005 or until the First Amendment Agreement (as
defined below) became effective, whichever is the earlier. Also
on 1 March 2005, a subsidiary of the Company entered into
an amendment agreement with DIRECTV (“First Amendment
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Group further granted
DIRECTV the non-exclusive right to distribute Phoenix
InfoNews Channel in addition to the Phoenix North America
Chinese Channel and that the term of the License Agreement
was further extended for another six months commencing from
5 March 2005. DIRECTYV, which has the right to extend for
a year after the expiry of the First Amendment Agreement,
had chosen to extend the License Agreement on a monthly
basis with the view to conclude new terms with the Group.
On 25 January 2006, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into another amendment agreement with DIRECTV (“Second
Amendment Agreement”) pursuant to which certain material
terms of the License Agreement have been supplemented and/
or amended and the term of the License Agreement has been
extended for 3 years commencing from 25 January 2006. The
Company has made an announcement in respect of these
connected transactions with DIRECTV on 7 February 2006.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the license fee
received/receivable from DIRECTV amounted to approximately
HK$1,378,000 (2006: HK$1,954,000), which were charged
in accordance with the License Agreement as amended by its

subsequent amendment agreements. Such amount did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$4,000,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007.
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A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, through its PRC
advertising agent, Shenzhou Television Company Limited,
entered into four advertising contracts with CNHK Media
Limited ("CNHK Media”), the PRC advertising agent of
CMCC (i) on 26 December 2006 and 2 February 2007
respectively, relating to the purchase of advertising airtime at
and/or sponsoring the programme “Phoenix News Express”
broadcasted on Phoenix Chinese Channel operated by the
Group for the period from 1 January 2007 to 31 December
2007 and (ii) on 25 June 2007 and 14 August 2007 respectively,
relating to the purchase of advertising airtime at and/or
sponsoring the programme “Phoenix Horizons” broadcasted
on Phoenix InfoNews Channel operated by the Group for the
period from 1 July 2007 to 31 December 2007. The respective
contracts sum of the above advertising contracts dated 26
December 2006, 2 February 2007, 25 June 2007 and 14 August
2007 were approximately HK$9,356,000, HK$23,350,000,
HK$1,020,000 and HK$3,788,000. China Mobile (Hong Kong)
Group Limited (‘CMHKG") is a substantial shareholder of the
Company, holding approximately 19.86% of the issued share
capital of the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary
namely Extra Step Investments Limited, CMCC being the
ultimate holding company of CMHKG, is a connected person
of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
had made announcements in respect of these connected
transactions on 3 January 2007, 6 February 2007 and
14 August 2007. For the year ended 31 December 2007, the
advertising sales to CMCC and its subsidiary amounted to
approximately HK$31,778,000 (2006: HK$8,912,000), which
were charged in accordance with the advertising contracts with

CNHK Media.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the above transactions and have considered
the procedures performed by the auditor of the Company
in reviewing them and confirmed that at the time of the
transactions:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the relevant
member of the Group in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; and
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(b) the transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length
basis and on normal commercial terms (to the extent
that there are comparable transactions) or, if there are
not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from (as
the case may be) independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

Competing Business

Today's Asia Limited has interests in approximately 37.45%, of the
share capital of the Company. Today’s Asia Limited, together with its
sharcholder, Mr. LIU Changle, are deemed to be the management
shareholders of the Company as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules.

Mr. LIU Changle and Mr. CHAN Wing Kee beneficially own
93.3% and 6.7% respectively of Today's Asia Limited, which holds
100% of Vital Media Holdings Limited. Vital Media Holdings
Limited holds 100% of Dragon Viceroy Limited which in turn holds
approximately 26.85% of Asia Television Limited (“ATV”), a Hong
Kong based television broadcasting company. Primarily aiming
at audiences in Hong Kong, ATV broadcasts its programmes via
terrestrial transmission through two channels, one in Cantonese
and the other in English. Signals of such two channels can also be
received in certain parts of Guangdong Province of the PRC. ATV
announced in August 2002 that it received the approval from the
authorities in China to broadcast its Cantonese and English channels
through the cable system in Guangdong. ATV is also granted a non-
domestic television programme service license in May 2004, in
addition to its existing domestic free television programme service
license. Commencing from 31 December 2007, in addition to the

two channels mentioned in the foregoing, ATV launched six digital

channels including one CCTV 4 Channel.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules) has any interests in a business

which competes or may compete with the business of the Group.
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Sponsors’ Interests

As at 30 June 2002, BOCI Asia Limited and Merrill Lynch Far East
Limited ceased to be the sponsors of the Company upon expiration
of the terms of contract after two years of service. The Company has
no sponsor since 1 July 2002. Accordingly, no additional disclosure is
made.

Advances to an Entity

Details of the relevant advance to an entity from the Group which
exceeds 8% of the Group’s total assets, as defined in rules 17.14 of
the GEM Listing Rules, are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Audit Committee
The audit committee had reviewed the Group’s annual results for the

year ended 31 December 2007 and provided advice and comments
thereon.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Changle

Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2008
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BORMKEGTTMERR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF PHOENIX SATELLITE
TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 78 to 178,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as
at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for
The Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates

that are reasonable in the circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile (852) 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2008

RBE 2 BT

AR 2 AL R R A% TAF 2 &5 R B A 5
AR AE A > W A R R A B
TS T A A o A A TR S A R
Z N AR H A £ 3 BORIE BAE

AL 2 35 4% TAF 4 B o & w2 & i 2
A% e BN AT o 5% 5 Y ) RS X BT R ST R 5T
BLE DL e wt ) B e 4 9 A% DL & BILAR R MG 2 B 5 R 3R
T AAFTEE R Z S iR B

WAL AR W BT AR 7 DA IR Bl B 65 Sk 3 T o 2
e e 8 IR A B 2 R IR R IR % SF )Y A
PR B 2 B > B BT A A B R 2 TR B R B
2 (A i i 75 PRWCRE B8 it 51 8) 2 B o 7EAF %
S5 Ju\ B RV IR > A SR 5 i B R B A R O iR
DT 5 BB R R AT B 2 TR AR B s DU R A
T UL B 2 AT > AR IR R AT
EERTAMKRERL - % TS FET EESR
Prif Az gt BRE R E KTEEsHE R ES S
o DA R R B AR B R 510 e

ARZBERARLS AR C S SR A 8 2 I
RN CIPa: 2y K e 3

=z
=

AL B ER S > &5 B TR AR R A U 5 i s e
IR EEH A THE R BAF L BEMR
FEXELFEFT A=+ HZBBHRE & 85
i H R 2 A R B Mk IR A A
A9 2 4B 5 K % T i 3

HE F& LK I8 €T il 2 i
S ES e

Fil —BEAEZA LA




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BlEE®RFHR 2007

Consolidated Income Statement &Z& k&

For the year ended 31 December 2007

WE - FFLET A=A L

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILAE)
2007 2006
SRBLE | FEARE
Note(s) $’000 $°000
e 5% 5%

Revenue A 5 1,178,667 1,057,667
Operating expenses iS4 di] 6, 34(i) (803,823) (729,483)
Selling, general and administrative expenses 8§ ~ — & X A7 8 # M 6, 34(i) (128,300) (137,330)
Other income AN

Interest income FLE WA 5 24,503 23,118

Other gains — net At i 2 V5 HE 5, 23(a)(iii) 59,194 33,371
Share of loss of jointly controlled entities A 3L [ 42 ) A R 19 (1,067) (1,518)
Profit before income tax B e 45 i 46 ) 329,174 245,825
Income tax expense Fifs Bt g i 7 (50,640) (34,938)
Profit for the year 4 BE i ) 278,534 210,887
Attributable to: T 5 4 TE HE A i )

Equity holders of the Company AN ARER A A 278,749 212,385

Minority interests D e SRR 25 (215) (1,498)

278,534 210,887

Earnings per share for profit attributable MAENKAFRRERFEA A

to the equity holders of the Company JRE A i ) #4558 ¢ 451 )

during the year
Basic earnings per share, Hong Kong cents FEATE AL > WAl 10 5.64 4.30
Diluted earnings per share, Hong Kong cents AR IR LA - A 10 5.62 4.29
Dividends JBe 8 9 89,108 69,243
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. T A\
Consolidated Balance Sheet 8 EEAER
As at 31 December 2007 W EELFE A =1+ —H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILFE)
2007 2006
“EFLE CERENRE
Note(s) $’000 $000
b 5 T
ASSETS HE
Non-current assets 3}3{}2@@]?%
Purchased programme and film rights, net WA B B T s URE T A 16 17,823 13,915
Lease premium for land R R EN=E ¢ 17 132,810 74,696
Property, plant and equipment, net Y2~ W7 B A 18 248,951 106,950
Intangible assets TV & 2,705 -
Investments in jointly controlled entities i S [R] 42 T B Y 19 8,283 9,350
Available-for-sale financial assets R Y B B 962 962
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss N (B 7 4 4H 1wl IR
119 S 5 21 39,757 80,027
Prepayment for long-term assets TR 2 A SRR - 24,393
Deferred income tax assets R S PTG 30 8,272 12,233
459,563 322,526
Current assets ik B A
Accounts receivable, net JRE WS B 3 7 12 25,666 56,159
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TEAS IR ~ 4 4 B H At R i
A 13 449,551 407,376
Inventories ﬁi@l’: 14 4,585 4,952
Amounts due from related companies JRE WS A B 78 ) R A 15, 34(ii) 3,840 38
Self-produced programmes EES 115 1,050 3,206
Purchased programme and film rights, net WA H R 5 RORE A 16 2,889 4,061
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8 TES MR 5 e iR
) B 5 21 36,881 22,479
Loans and receivables B M R T 26 120,260 69,136
Cash and cash equivalents W kB eEEER 25 531,257 543,417
1,175,979 1,110,824
Total assets M 1,635,542 1,433,350
EQUITY HE 5
Capital and reserves attributable to AR\ FIRE B A A AL B AR
the Company’s equity holders B it
Share capital Jie A 27 495,042 494213
Reserves ﬁ%ﬁ 890,323 665,336
1,385,365 1,159,549
Minority interests A YR RAE A 24,424 7,139
Total equity RS 1,409,789 1,166,688
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Consolidated Balance Sheet 88 EARB K

As at 31 December 2007 W oEELEFEF H=Z+—H
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILAE)
2007 2006
SRBLE | IR
Note(s) $’000 $'000
Wik T3 5
LIABILITIES £
Non-current liabilities | =R
Provision for asset retirement reinstatement g 5 1R R 4,912 4,342
Deferred income tax liabilities I HIE T 15 B A 30 5,908 1,213
10,820 5,555
Current liabilities it B B AR
Accounts payable, other payables and accruals JRE A B~ H At A S
JREFT AR IH 24 106,736 119,378
Deferred income EFEYTA 95,365 119,580
Amounts due to related companies JREASH A B 7 ) R E 15, 34(ii) 3,506 4,743
Profits tax payable JREARH A5 9,326 17,406
214,933 261,107
Total liabilities A 225,753 266,662
Total equity and liabilities HRERS I BE 1,635,542 1,433,350
Net current assets T A 961,046 849,717
Total assets less current liabilities HE 7S Y B A 1,420,609 1,172,243

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2008 and signed on A “EZENFE=ZH L HEFEE @G > WH D FE

behalf of the Board by FREFERGHEE
LIU Changle CHUI Keung

BIR % IR

Director Director

HH #HH
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Balance Sheet EE& &%

As at 31 December 2007 W oEBELAFES H=1—H

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILFE)
2007 2006
SEELE | BB
Note(s) $’000 $’000
e 5% 5%
ASSETS R
Non-current asset Iy A
Interests in subsidiaries i B 2 R A R 4 23 1,117,649 1,170,216
Current asset i A
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kB &S5 EEE 25 336 7,458
Total assets R 1,117,985 1,177,674
EQUITY HE 5
Capital and reserves attributable to AR 2 v RE SR R N AL
the Company’s equity holders AR B it
Share capital A 27 495,042 494213
Reserves Tt A5 29 622,793 683,307
Total equity HaRER 1,117,835 1,177,520
LIABILITY FAR
Current liability it B 1 1
Other payables and accruals At A T S S 150 154
Total liability A E 1 150 154
Total equity and liability HORERR T A A 1,117,985 1,177,674
Net current assets By 186 7,304
Total assets less current liability HEEE A B B A 1,117,835 1,177,520

Approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2008 and signed on

behalf of the Board by FARHEHGHEE
LIU Changle CHUI Keung

BIR % iR

Director Director

#HF #HF

I EEFNFEZ A EEREGEE - WH U T E
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity &8 EZ# X

For the year ended 31 December 2007

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

WE - FFLET A=A L
(BB I

Attributable to the Company’s equity holders

A v BE g A A
Share Share Exchange  Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium reserve deficit interests equity
MR
(&N e 3 i HE 32t 2HEH HERS ARER:
Notel(s) $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Mt i i i i it it
Balance at 1 January 2006 REEFEANE—H—H
Atk 27 493,867 782,128 3,587 (280,495) 8,019 1,007,106
Exchange differences arising 1551 A 8 24 ] it 5
on translation of the WAL LA
financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries - - 3,642 - - 3,642
Exercise of share options 1 0 P 27,28 346 3,367 - - - 3,713
Dividend related to 2003 e LS - (59,278) - - - (59,278)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEA (EE) - - - 212,385 (1,498) 210,887
Investment in a subsidiary D BORE £ 1B SR W
by a minority shareholder AR ZBE - - - - 618 618
Balance at 31 December 2006 A = FZN4F+ A
S e 494213 726,217 7,229 (68,110) 7,139 1,166,688
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity e EZ 2 X
For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-EELHE+T A =+—HILEE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILFE)

Attributable to the Company's equity holders

AN IR F A L

Employee  (Accumulated
share-based deficits)
Share Share Statutory Exchange payment retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings interests equity
{2 L DAy

XA (RHESR) . SRR
it Byt G BERGEE  REME REARN Mt Fisl £

Note(s) $000 $1000 $000 $000 $1000 $'000 $000 $000
i3 T T T T T T T T
(Note a)
(Hfita)
Balance at 1 January 2007 R_FFLE
—H— R4k 27 494213 726217 - 7,229 - (68,110) 7139 1,166,688
Exchange differences arising M S W I A )
on translation of the WA S R E
financial statements of 58,2 %
foreign subsidiaries - - - 5,465 - - - 5,465
Exercise of share options 17 B 27,28 829 8,139 - - - - - 8,968
Dividend related to 2006 BTN
el Lolhest 9 - (69,243) - - - - - (69,243)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERF R - - - - - 278749 (215) 278,534
Employee share-based payment 1§ B PARR 43 3 £+
308 - - - - 1877 - - 1,877
Investment in a subsidiary D BORE £ 1B R
by a minority shareholder Bt N ) 2 B 23(a) i) - - - - - - 17,500 17,500
Allocation to statutory reserve P E S - - 3,612 - - (3,612) - -
Balance at 31 December 2007 REFFLFE+TZNA
=1 HA R 495,042 665,113 3612 12,6%4 1,877 207,027 24424 1,409,789

Notea:  The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the PRC statutory reserve fund.  MfaFa © ASHE B35 2 REA 16 P B0 2 R i 4 o ) s (it

Appropriations to such reserve fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the F A M H B T B 1 P B S T R R R
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be less (0 i A5 005 ) o T 488 4 A A5G A 1 5 S 3 32 o

than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial statements unless

5 IE Sy A 40 2 ) 05 0 v
the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. ﬁ”ﬁlz‘ IK/T‘TE (L 3xipd 1070 N 5 JF A %ﬁﬁiﬂ o Mﬂ%
The statutory reserve fund can be used to make up prior years' losses of the PRC 2 A REM B A 2 50% o 5 4 5 4 T AT 98 A
subsidiaries. w2 A R 2 W Y A AR R 4
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z8HEHER

For the year ended 31 December 2007

WE - FFLET A=A L

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILAE)
2007 2006
—FFLE CAEENAE
Note(s) $’000 $°000
b T o
Cash flows from operating activities A8 SN ) Y B 4 it
Cash generated from operations R S A A Bl 31 225,296 154,248
Interest received B A1 S, 24,503 23,118
Income from certificate of deposit AR WA 705 976
Income from financial assets at fair value A HEE R AR AR AR
through profit or loss A B 55 A 4,384 5,569
Hong Kong taxation paid AT F B (51,311) (33,615)
Overseas taxation paid B A5 i MBI 3) (51)
Hong Kong taxation refunded TR ] A s Bl JH 1,251 -
Net cash generated from operating activities AR ZE S B P AR Bl AR AR 204,825 150,245
Cash flows from investing activities BEWE ﬂ’ﬂfﬂﬁﬁiﬁ
Decrease/(increase) in prepayment Fﬂﬁ A TH AT EROH
for long-term assets Wb ) 24,393 (24,393)
Increase in property deposit and Wy A B T B R AR
development costs e m - (288)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets A g B IS e R - (962)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment WA ZE ~ k)7 Bt (163,951) (29,708)
Increase in land lease premium - s AH B4 (60,100) —
Purchase of programme and film rights E%/\ﬁﬁ H I R 16 (20,612) (16,728)
Investment in a jointly controlled entity ] 2 T B A 19 - (1,274)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BB Kk
and equipment REEeL] 1,916 29
Proceeds from partial disposal of property B ) S e E
deposit interest f T 153 5KH - 19,602
Purchase of financial assets at fair value WA THEE
through profit or loss 8 15 s AR A B S (55,950) (148,873)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets A E B
at fair value through profit or loss 15 5 O AR 1Y B 55 B T A 500E 77,760 134,437
Net cash used in investing activities B0 B i B 4 (196,544) (68,158)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement Z8HEHER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-EELHE+T A =+—HILEE
(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (HH LI ILFE)
2007 2006
SEBEE  RTAE
Note(s) $’000 $’000
Wik T3 i
Cash flows from financing activities Al S 4% T Y B O
Proceeds from exercise of share options A7 {85 5 E T 45 20 27,28 8,968 3,713
Dividends paid to Company’s equity holders BT A A mRE R R A N R 9 (69,243) (59,278)
Investment in a subsidiary by a D HORE 45 JBCSRC I B I A )
minority shareholder B 23(a)(iii) 35,000 618
Net cash used in financing activities Tl VS B BT B 4 R R (25,275) (54,947)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BHeRB4&%MEEA
cash equivalents (W A) /38 4 (16,994) 27,140
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year TR N B HIEE 543,417 513,364
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents B4 K B4 4 (L TE H (1 BE S804 4,834 2,913
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year R BLE MBS EIH 531,257 543,417
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R Hiat

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

General Information

Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) engage in
satellite television broadcasting activities.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements were approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 7 March 2008.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Phoenix
Satellite Television Holdings Limited have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the

revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit

or loss.

(&% LA T H)
1. —RER

JEJEN A AR 2 AT R R (AR W) 1) B e g
A (s [ A SR ] |) s s i B AR A R 2675 -

AN A By O BRI sk A S B DA A Uk A AR
BB A PR T o A 2% ) Y 3% 5 0 2 Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °

Ao F A WA 25 A R R (TS )
AR BT o

WG MBRMRCHERFER —FF NE=
H - HHEHETE -

2. EEGHHEHE

PATR /% i S M 45 5 BA S S R BT IE L 0 £ 28 g
FPEUK « BR 55 A @ WIAE > BEAF BUK B R BT 2 51
9 I A AR B 75 B E RO

(a) #FEAE
JEJEE A 2 AT B 2 W) B BA B R T
AR 7 s B w2 A A ) A o B S
e ) (A o B 5 A MR A D) R A i 8wl
5] ¥ 788 FF) 457 % 10 R S g 22 i ) SE AR B O
I AR At S

AR K7 BB R T 2 BRURE SRR S R
e AL A 42 TR0 7 2 1R i RO MR 1) A B
FEAF T o




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT ElE#E®RFH 2007 87

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements £ & B I SRR M 5E

EESTBEREE @)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(a) # B (B
A AT 7 s T At o B B B R
SO M TE R 8 F R R
i LT A bR AR SR T B0 R ORI R A
H B o R AR B R R e R R
YRR JEE P A > BOA R S A R
F SR G 3 A RS 5 4 4%

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

() B EF AR R - WA 15
AR
AR~ 2 AT R R
FOFFLEF A=A LM
A AT - A S R B
W% -

(i)  Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
effective in 2007
The following new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are mandatory for the
financial year ended 31 December 2007. The Group

adopted those which are relevant to its operations.

7 s 0 5 i A B T 5 7 9E [ BB T
Hoo gz ] KEFd st
9E [ R 1 251 — A R
MM TR > I AA BB TR
(19 57 45 5 AR AE o Sl 0 3B R 4R 1
B TR U AG - S0f B
T T B AT R G Y 98¢ o KR E A

e HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’, °
and the complementary amendment to HKAS 1,
‘Presentation of financial statements — Capital
disclosures’, introduces new disclosures relating
to financial instruments and does not have any
impact on the classification and valuation of the
Group’s financial instruments, or the disclosures

relating to taxation and accounts payables.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8, ‘Scope of HKFRS 2,
requires consideration of transactions involving
the issuance of equity instruments, where the
identifiable consideration received is less than
the fair value of the equity instruments issued in
order to establish whether or not they fall within
the scope of HKFRS 2. This standard does
not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

FE AT

o HiEE (HEMBEHERELZAEY) -
i B 5 8 BT [ A v T s ko e A2
2R | o BE i 22 B 2 AUE
W BT AR TR i Y
T A AR RS BT AT e A TR
923 ~F-{H - R 5 fE S A B 28 5
T 7 JAB P A s B S S o )5 2 5%
1) 8 B I o 1 JE Ve JU 7 A B A AR
1 B 5 R AT AT 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R Hiat

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EE&BEHE @)

(continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued) (a) #WEdIL4E (%)

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations

effective in 2007 (continued)

e  HK(IFRIC) — Int 9, ‘Reassessment of embedded
derivatives’, requires an entity to assess whether
an embedded derivative is required to be
separated from the host contract and accounted
for as a derivative when the entity first becomes a
party to the contract. Subsequent reassessment is
prohibited unless there is a change in the terms
of contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that otherwise would be required under the
contract, in which case reassessment is required.
As the Group’s entities have not changed the
terms of their contracts. This does not have
any material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 10, ‘Interim financial reporting
and impairment’, prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill
and investments in equity instruments and in
financial assets carried at cost to be reversed at
a subsequent balance sheet date. This standard
does not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

There is also a number of new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations issued
that are not yet effective for the financial year
ended 31 December 2007. The Group has carried
out a preliminary assessment of these standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations and
considered that HKAS 23 (Revised), HK(IFRIC) —
Int 11, HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 may not have significant impact
on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position but a detailed assessment is still being carried
on. The Group is also in the process of assessing the

impact of HKFRS 8.

(i) W E L ARG R~ A Y

AT Rt FE ()

o FHiE (HEMBEAEREEZAE) -
e B 5 O 9% [ 30T WP A ik A AT AR
TR HERBE TR LER
9 H 8 Sl A AT A T AR
o H E A B AT R
TR - BRI AE G A P8 Sl Rk
B N 7 B AT
E AL B EATEA o R
A G2 [ ) B AR A O O A A
% v TR B A 4 T Y B 5 i i NI
SEAT T SRR

o FHiEE (HEMBEAREREEZAE) —
i FR AR 10 9E [ b 399 B 5 i 4 B Bl
(B > B A o 303 S s 3 At
B R BEAS TR 1 B R AL
A e 2 Tt 5 ) 5 T A
(ORCRIN RN N S N
DA fm] 485 o 1 T E B SIf 4 S A 2 ()
(19 oF 5 o 7 A AT AT R 2

IR AT T 4 0 Y B~ HE R 2 A T M R
SREIR RN/ s 2 s iy
=t F Ok PR R AR e AR
B A% S e A~ YE RN 2B RT Mowe B
HEAT R0 A0 G Al Sl 3 A o T e 1
2358 (BRT) ~ il (B BRI 85 s
e FEZ W) @R 118t B (I
PRI BHRE R BEEZAE) @ REE 12
9 A (MBS R EEAE) —
e R 2R 13 9% S A ik (I B T 85 ik o e
BLZEE) — 2B 149 A g B AL
(1 KL SE AT S B IR DU AR R 2
M A Al 1 AR HEAT P o AR SRR I
T A 7 v B i 75 TR S 8 SRR RO
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements £ & B I SRR M 5E

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in

(iii

2007 but not relevant

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to published standards are mandatory
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2007 but they are not relevant to the Group’s
operations:

e  HKFRS 4, ‘Insurance contracts’; and

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 7, ‘Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29, Financial reporting in
hyper-inflationary economies’.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008 or later periods, but the Group has not early
adopted them:

e HKAS 23 (Amendment), ‘Borrowing costs’
(effective from 1 January 2009). The amendment
requires an entity to capitalise borrowing
costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset
(one that takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for use or sale) as part of the cost of
that asset. The option of immediately expensing
those borrowing costs will be removed. The
Group is in the process of assessing the impact
of this impact, but it is not expected to have any
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statement as the Group does not have

any borrowings.

2.

EESTBEREE @)

(a) # B (B

(ii) AL A A S T B 19 A
AT Rt FE
DUTR e [~ 35 2 ) % e A 22 A8 AT ek
BN —FEFLFE A — HEZR&EMN
b5 B0 B R AT o M R A B A AR
Y K S5 e B

o M B WO ERIZE 498 (R
215 K

o B (HBEMBRERHELZES) —
o REER 7 R AR 45 A s o wh R T 2R
29 5% i MR 155 38 AR £ T L I8 eR ) B
Bt w0k -

(iii) 1 AR 2 R K 7 S5 [l JE 48 7L 4R 4 119 2
A - BB AR 2 AAERT K it FE

DATRHER 33 AT o QI 2 B BT Sk R
BT AREMAR T FNFE—H
— H B2 AR B GA 09 w1 ) s AR

.

M1 ECAT - P A 2 o 310 42 L R A

o e HHHERILE 2358 (IBF]) [HE
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2. EE&BEHE @)

(continued)

(a) H R (H])
(iii) 1 AR 2 R K 7 S5 [0l JE 48 7 4R 4 119 2
A ~ BB AR 2 AT R it RE (B

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)
(iii) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group (continued)

e HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ (effective from 1 o TR BT A ME R GR S R [ KR )
January 2009). HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS 14 and I ZFEE— A — HEE
aligns segment reporting with the requirements RO o A HE B i HE SR 8 B IR
of the US standard SFAS 131, ‘Disclosures A & T RIS 14 98 - 0K O
about segments of an enterprise and related $RUHR Oy A 5 I B Bt e
information’. The new standard requires a Il (US Standard SFAS) 5 131 5% [ 4>
‘management approach’, under which segment SE BB R 2 S SRR | 2 HE -
information is presented on the same basis as B UE U BR R [ R 5 g B
that used for internal reporting purposes. The 73 S EORL i B A TS R i H Y i ER
Group will apply HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009. 7 R [E] R 5 v 2 4] o A AR N
The expected impact is still being assessed in HEoERNFE—H—HEERE
detail by management, but it appears likely that T F 5 S YR L) 28 8 9 o A R )
the number of reportable segments, as well as the TE WF A RT Al E 5 2 > (B R AR AR
manner in which the segments are reported, will n] HE AT H R BE 2 BOE KT R
change in a manner that is consistent with the oz gy AR R AR T
internal reporting provided to the chief operating RIS S AR SR T8 Rk i)
decision-maker. HAE BT o

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 11, ‘HKFRS 2 — Group and il (BB ke L B ) —

treasury share transactions’ (effective from 1
March 2007). HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 provides
guidance on whether share-based transactions
involving treasury shares or involving Group
entities (for example, options over a parent’s
shares) should be accounted for as equity-settled
or cash-settled share-based payment transactions
in the stand-alone accounts of the parent and
Group companies. The Group is in the process
of assessing the impact of this interpretation, but
it is not expected to have any material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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EESTBEREE @)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(a) # B (B

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iii) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been

early adopted by the Group (continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14, ‘HKAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction’ (effective
from 1 January 2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
provides guidance on assessing the limit in
HKAS 19 on the amount of the surplus that can
be recognised as an asset. It also explains how
the pension asset or liability may be affected
by a statutory or contractual minimum funding
requirement. The Group will apply HK(IFRIC) —
Int 14 from 1 January 2008, but it is not expected
to have any impact on the Group's accounts.

(iv) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet

effective and not relevant for the Group's operations

The following interpretations to existing standards

have been published and are mandatory for the

Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1

January 2008 or later periods but are not relevant for

the Group's operations:

HK(IFRIC) — Int 12, ‘Service concession
arrangements’ (effective from 1 January 2008).
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 applies to contractual
arrangements whereby a private sector operator
participates in the development, financing,
operation and maintenance of infrastructure for
public sector services. HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 is not
relevant to the Group's operations because none
of the Group’s companies provide public sector

services.

(iii) 1 AR 2 R K 7 S5 [ 501 JE 48 7. 4R 4 119 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R Hiat

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

(iv) Interpretations to existing standards that are not yet

effective and not relevant for the Group'’s operations

(continued)

e HK(IFRIC) — Int 13, ‘Customer loyalty
programmes’ (effective from 1 July
2008). HK(IFRIC) — Int 13 clarifies that
where goods or services are sold together with
a customer loyalty incentive (for example,
loyalty points or free products), the arrangement
is a multiple-element arrangement and the
consideration receivable from the customer
is allocated between the components of the
arrangement using fair values. HK(IFRIC) —
Int 13 is not relevant to the Group’s operations
because none of the Group’s companies operate
any loyalty programmes.

(b) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made

up to 31 December.

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally
accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

EESTBEREE @)

(a) H R (H])
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Subsidiaries (continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost
of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly to the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries and amount due from a subsidiary are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

2.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(b) #ify (A1)
(ii) 55 R D EIER B4

(b) Consolidation (continued)
(ii) Transactions and minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests
result in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the consolidated income statement.
Purchases from minority interests result in goodwill,
being the difference between any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary.

(iii) Jointly controlled entities

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are
accounted for by the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its jointly controlled entities’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in the jointly
controlled entity, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entities. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
jointly controlled entities have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in jointly controlled entities

are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and operations
engaged in providing products or services that are subject
to risks and returns that are different from those of other
business segments. A geographical segment is engaged in
providing products or services within a particular economic
environment that are subject to risks and returns that
are different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

(ii) ‘Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets such as equities classified as available
for sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve

in equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(d) AP (4)
(iii) FE [ 28 A]

(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to equity. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the gain
or loss on sale.

The functional currency of the jointly controlled
entities in which the Group has invested is the
Renminbi. The Group’s investment in the net assets
of the jointly controlled entities are translated at
the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet.
The Group's share of losses of the jointly controlled
entities are translated at the average exchange rates

for equity accounting purposes. All resulting exchange

differences are recognised as a separate component of
equity.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(e) W3k ~ W5s M et

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No depreciation is provided on assets under construction
until they are completed and are available for use.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

2.22% — 3.33%
15% or over the terms of

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
the leases

15% — 20%

Broadcast operations and 20%

Furniture and fixtures

other equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2(i)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the income statement.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(co

()

(h)

ntinued)

Club debentures

Acquired club debentures are intangible assets with an
infinite useful life. They are therefore shown at historical
cost and are not amortised. Impairment assessments
on club debentures are carried out by comparing their
recoverable amounts with their carrying amounts annually
and whenever there is an indication that the intangible
assets maybe impaired.

Purchased programme and film rights

Purchased programme and film rights are recorded at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. The cost of purchased programme and film rights is
expensed in the income statement either on the first and
second showing of such purchased programme and film
rights or amortised over the license period if the license
allows multiple showings within the license period.

Purchased programme and film rights with a remaining
license period of 12 months or less are classified as current
assets.

Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct production
expenditures and an appropriate portion of production
overheads. Programmes in production that are abandoned
are written off in the income statement immediately, or
when the revenue to be generated by these programmes is
determined to be lower than cost, the cost is written down
to recoverable amount. Completed programmes will be
broadcast over a short period of time and their costs are
expensed in the income statement in accordance with a
formula computed to write off the cost over the broadcast

period.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(i)

G

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivable and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purposes for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or
loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in
this category if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term or if so designated by
management. Derivatives are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current if the remaining
period to maturity is less than 12 months after the
balance sheet date.
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EESTBEREE @)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

() M EH)
(i) Bk RIEW K IH

(j) Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date.
These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are also included in accounts receivable,
and prepayments, deposits and other receivables in
the balance sheet.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless management
intends to dispose of the investment within 12
months of the balance sheet date. Available-for-sale
financial assets represented unlisted securities of

private issuers outside Hong Kong.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently
carried at cost as these securities have no quoted
market price in an active market and their fair values
cannot be reliably measured. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried
at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(1ii)
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EESTBEREE @)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

G) MBEE(H)
(i) A] L5 Y 5 & (4E)

(j) Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the income statement
within ‘other gains — net’, in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the

Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair value of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
carried at fair value is not active (and for unlisted
securities), the Group established fair value by using
valuation techniques feasible to the Group. These
include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
reference to other instruments that are substantially
the same, indicative market values obtained from
reputable financial institutions, discounted cash flow
analysis and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible
on entity-specific inputs.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets are impaired.
Impairment testing of loans and receivables, accounts
receivable, and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables is described in Note 2(1).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Inventories

Inventories, comprising decoder devices and satellite
receivers, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

(I) Loans and receivables, accounts receivable, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Loans and receivables, accounts receivable, and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect or realise all amounts due
according to the original terms of the assets. Significant
financial difficulties of the counterparty, probability
that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the asset is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced
through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement within
selling, general and administration expenses. When an
accounts receivable is determined to be uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for accounts
receivable. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against selling, general and

administration expenses in the income statement.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R Hiat
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents advertising revenue,
subscription revenue and promotion service revenue
received in advance from third party customers.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

2. EESTHHEEME@m

(m) Bl KB &% HEH

(n)

(o)

(p)

Bl KBS EEHQREFHB & - A7
SEAE > Bt A E HERHEIE & =
A8 B DL 8 A e B B o

BEIE N
IRAE WA TS 46 B 5 =07 % F SRR
AN ~ U 2 A B B AR AR LA

JBeA

A IO A HE A o SR AT R B0 B B
AL B 8 B A > B ARE SR AE 2 BT 1R
AIE R E (UBRBLIE) -

A I 15 B

A BT A3 B0 DA B AR L I A B
SHLHCAE S5 5 i3 B U M T (L 2 TR 22
IRy 22 BAE A B A o SR R S i
BT IR B 2655 5 UF LAY 22 5 h 90 2 T
0 BB AR S 5 RIS R B
oM SR i M B 1E o RIS B AR E BE
A R A T A B A B O S T 7%
Bl A i O 45 3R > RAE T BL LU A5 H H
AT Ll 5 BOR B b B K T R 2
Bi A (S L)) fHEE o




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BlE#E®RFHR 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R M st

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(co

(p)

(@)

ntinued)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and jointly controlled
entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
(ii) Bonus plans
The expected bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered
by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled
within 12 months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.

(continued)

(q) 18 B A (%)
(iii) BEE (T

(q) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
schemes for the Hong Kong employees based on
local laws and regulations. Contributions to the
schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit schemes’ costs expensed in the
income statement represent contributions paid or
payable by the Group to the funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant local regulations of the
countries where the overseas subsidiaries of the
Group are located, these subsidiaries participate in
respective government retirement benefit schemes
and/or set up their own retirement benefit schemes
(the “Schemes”) whereby they are required to
contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated either based on
certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
or fixed sums for each employee with reference to a
salary scale, as stipulated under the requirements in
the respective countries. The Group has no further
obligation beyond the required contributions. The
contributions under the Schemes are expensed in the
income statement as incurred.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)
(iv) Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services received in
exchange for the grant of share options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed over
the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the Company revises its estimates of the
number of share options that are expected to become
exercisable. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the income statement,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the
remaining vesting period. When the share options are
exercised, the proceeds received net of any transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium account.

(r) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest

expense.

Revenue recognition
Revenue mainly represents income from advertising
sales, net of the related agency commission expenses, and

subscription sales after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities as
described below. The amount of revenue is not considered
to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases its estimates
on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each

arrangement.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i)  Broadcasting advertising revenue
Broadcasting advertising revenue, net of agency
commission expenses, is recognised upon the
broadcast of advertisements.

(ii) Subscription revenue
Subscription revenue received or receivable from
the cable distributors or agents is amortised on a
time proportion basis to the income statement. The
unamortised portion is classified as deferred income.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Magazine advertising revenue

(iv)

(vi)

Magazine advertising revenue net of commission
expense is recognised when the magazine is

published.

Magazine subscription/circulation revenue

Magazine subscription or circulation revenue
represents subscription or circulation money received
or receivable from customers and is recognised when

the respective magazine is dispatched or sold.

Sales of decoder devices and satellite receivers

Revenue from sales of decoder devices and satellite
receivers is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers
and the title has passed.

Technical services income

Revenue from the provision of technical services is
recognised when the value-added telecommunication
services are provided/delivered to customers.

(vii) Interest income and income from certificate of deposit

Interest income from bank deposits and income
from certificate of deposit are recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

(viii) Barter revenue

Barter revenue is recognised at the fair value of goods
or services received or receivable in the transaction
upon the broadcast of advertisements, the publishing
of the magazine or the provision of promotion services

to be provided by the Group in the barter transaction.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(t) Leases

(i)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The up-front prepayments made for land use rights
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease, or where there is impairment, the

impairment is expensed in the income statement.

i) Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

(u) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is

recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements

in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company’s equity holders.

2.

EESTBEREE @)

(t) HE

(i) HEHE

P R PR B T A R 45 e B A% ]
BB B AR HEE - RIEL
B ST R (FIBR [ AR A
AL AT 48 ) T 2 A B DA B S0 TR Ik
i 2% SO o

39 R T S A Y TR SRR S 4
RS DA B AR A B - i o B 3ol
BUA IR Tol AL 7 A i 6 PP S8 o

(i) A E

A MM E S T Y WE Kt o
FH A S 0 B A 9T A R 48 R A JRL B
[m] % B 0 3 ~ WS K s 9 FEL B 3
MamEME - mEmeE s mEH
B W 4 P ML 3 2 8 (B A (R AL
HIHZ BUEME TR EREE TUEA
b o MRS T A 282 s
B i ) 5 % VU A T AR
HLE W W h B T LA -

(Ll) Hﬁ A%‘ 6}?)&

1] A 2% w)RE A5 45 A A R S 20 R e
SR R RE £ 5 A A T A ST TR A TE AR

AF ) VA5 e 3 TR e A LR o




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BlE#E®RFHR 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R M st

3.

Financial Risk Management

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair value
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk
and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is mainly carried out by the finance
department (the “Finance Department”) headed by
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. The Finance
Department identifies and evaluates financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units to cope with
overall risk management, as well as specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use
of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative

financial instruments, and investing excess liquidity.

(i) Market risk
(a) Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates internationally and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the Renminbi (“RMB”), US dollar (“US$”) and
UK pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

To manage their foreign exchange risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities, entities in the
Group engage in transactions mainly in HK dollar
(“HKS$”), RMB and US$ to the extent possible.
The Group currently does not hedge transactions
undertaken in foreign currencies but manages
its exposure through constant monitoring to limit
as much as possible the amount of its foreign
currencies exposures. Foreign exchange risk
arises when future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated
in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency. The Finance Department is responsible
for monitoring and managing the net position in

each foreign currency.

3.
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B % B B B 1B (@)

(a) P25 b R 3R (4)
(i) 15 R (A7)
(a) SNHEREFR (48)

3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3.

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The Group has certain investments in foreign
operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk. Currency
exposure arising from the net assets of the
Group’s operations, such as those in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
United Kingdom and the United States is
managed primarily through operating liabilities
denominated in the relevant foreign currencies.

During the year ended 31 December 2007,
if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 6%
against the RMB, with all other variables held
constant, after-tax profit for the year would have
been HK$24,640,000 (2006: HK$21,898,000),
lower or higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-
denominated accounts receivable and receivables
from an advertising agent, Shenzhou. Profit
is more sensitive to movement in HK$/RMB
exchange rates in 2007 than 2006 because of
the increased amount of RMB-denominated
receivables. At 31 December 2007, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 6% against the RMB,
equity would have been HK$7,136,000 (2006:
HK$6,013,000), lower or higher, arising mainly
from foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of PRC subsidiaries’ equity denominated in
RMB. Equity is more sensitive to movement
in HK$/RMB exchange rates in 2007 than in
2006 because of the increased amount of PRC
subsidiaries’ equity denominated in RMB.

At 31 December 2007, certain of the assets
of the Group are denominated in US$. The
Group also had operations in the United States.
Since HK$ is pegged to US$, foreign exchange
exposure with respect to the US$ denominated
asset or its operations in the United States is
considered as minimal.
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3.

Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(i)

Market risk (continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

During the year ended, 31 December 2007, if
HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against the UK pound , with all other variables
held constant, after-tax profit for the year would
have been HK$781,000 (2006: HK$615,000),
lower or higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of UK
pound-denominated accounts receivables.
Profit is more sensitive to movement in HK$/
UK pound exchange rates in 2007 than 2006
because of the increased amount of UK pound-
denominated receivables. At 31 December
2007, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against the UK pound, equity would have
been HK$518,000 (2006: HK$517,000), lower
or higher, arising mainly from foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of UK subsidiaries’,
equity denominated in UK pound. Equity is
more sensitive to movement in HK$/UK pound
exchange rates in 2007 than in 2006 because of
the increased amount of UK subsidiaries’ deficits
denominated in UK pound.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to unlisted and listed
equity securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, for which
management adopts the indicative market value
provided by the issuers as their best estimate of
the fair values of such securities and some of
the equity linked notes are linked to some listed
securities. None of Group's equity investments
in equity of other entities are publicly traded.
The Group exposes to commodity price risk as
some of the equity linked notes are linked to
some listed securities. For the further price risk

exposed by the Group, please refer to Note 21.

3.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3. B bEE @

(a) B # B B 2% (4)
(ii) 17 B B

(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, deposits with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures
to advertising agents and customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions.
The Group has a receivable from an advertising agent,
Shenzhou, in the PRC amounting to HK$377,501,000
representing approximately 23% of the total assets
of the Group as of 31 December 2007. The Group
manages its exposure to credit risk through continual
monitoring of the credit quality of its customers and
advertising agents, taking into account their financial
position, collection history, past experience and other
factors. For banks, financial institutions and issuers
of derivative financial instruments, only reputable
well established banks and financial institutions are

accepted.

The Group has put in place policies to ensure that
the sales, in particular advertising airtime and other
activities are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit

evaluations of its customers.

Most of the payment terms for advertising revenue
will be agreed between the Group and the customers.
The customer will make the payment in accordance
with the contract terms. Thus, all the outstanding
receivable balances are due immediately and there is
no credit period granted to the customers.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3. WM bEE @
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) A% RmBEE & (8)
(iii) Liquidity risk (iii) ) B A B
Prudent liquidity risk management implies alf AR O 3 < S B A LA AR T 10
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents, the Bla kB aEEER - ERTER
availability of funding through an adequate amount of S 1 SRAT A5 B N R A i 35 TR Bk )
committed banking facilities and the ability to close AE 7 o A AR B SE S Y DB R - W
out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of B P B A A% 8 ] B SR AT AR BEAR
the underlying businesses, the Finance Department ERRmEE o A KBS EIEH
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping Lo SRAT AR B 23 Al O B 5 25 K
committed banking facilities available. Details of cash 32°

and cash equivalents and banking facilities are set out
in Notes 25 and 32 respectively.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TR A BB HHE A E
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on WA TITRBERAHEHE54%
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the BHZ 6 N IAMEE - RIS
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed GHEL A GHRMBEEERE - B
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Rl B0 07 A o R B A R A )
flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their W 22 &5 AR A5 I HC IR T 45 R o
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.
Less than
1 year Total
i S FSE
$'000 $'000
Tt Tt
Group A4 H
At 31 December 2007 W _RFLFET_H=1+—H
Deferred income ELEWL A 95,365 95,365
Accounts and other payables JREAST R 3 e JH At JRE A 3 T 46,438 46,438
Amounts due to related companies JREASS A R 3 ] 3KTE 3,506 3,506
At 31 December 2006 W _BFAFET_H=1T—H
Deferred income ELEWL A 119,580 119,580
Accounts and other payables JREAST R 3 e JH At JRE A 3 T 56,776 56,776

Amounts due to related companies JREASS A R 3 ] 3KTE 4,743 4,743
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
As the Group has interest-bearing assets comprising
cash and cash equivalents and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows can be affected by changes in
market interest rates.

The Group’s cash flow and fair value interest-rate
risks primarily arise from bank deposits. Bank deposits
placed at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk whereas those placed at fixed
rates expose the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
The Finance Department’s policy is to maintain an
appropriate level between fixed-rate and floating-rate
deposits. At the year end, 27% of bank deposits were
at fixed rates.

(b) Capital risk management

(c)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, loans and
receivables, accounts receivable, prepayment, deposits and
other receivables, investments in jointly controlled entities,
available-for-sale financial assets, amounts due from/ to
related companies, accounts payable, other payables and
accruals, deferred income approximate their fair value due
to their short maturity.

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss that are not openly traded is determined with
reference to indicative market values provided by issuers
(Note 21).
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(i) Provision for impairment of receivables

Significant judgment is exercised in the assessment
of the collectibility of accounts receivable from each
customer and the receivable from an advertising agent,
Shenzhou. In making such judgment, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures performed by sales personnel,
customers’ and Shenzhou’s payment trends including
subsequent payments and customers” and Shenzhou'’s
financial positions.

(ii) Income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions, including Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the
worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax liabilities based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made. For the Group’s

tax exposure in the PRC, please refer to Note 7.

4.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4, BEESTHETT R HE @
Judgments (continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) HEEFHGF R MR ()

(continued)

(iii) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (iii) Y5 ~ J 7 Rty < 7 & 4 2
The Group’s management determines the estimated A B B e R Y R K
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its A M TR S ik R AT T AE S RO B T B
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based 2 o B Al FH T AR AR LM B K T g
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives W~ WS B R 2 T AR B AT -
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature BOARFT R A AR B 488 26 2 2 ) (L
and function. It could change significantly as a 15 H A8 A S5 [ 45 08 SR BT T i 3
result of changes in the Group'’s operations including R 5 By o kg T A T 4 9 D R e i B
any future relocation or renovation of the Group’s flFE A SR B SO B g ek
facilities. Management will increase the depreciation th B R R e M A o R Y
charge where useful lives are less than previously A BRI 5

estimated, or it will write-off or write-down non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and 4. BEESTHEE R HE @
Judgments (continued)

(a) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (a) HZEEFHGF R MR ()

(continued)

(iv) Fair value of a property received in a barter transaction
The Group received a property in a barter transaction
during 2006 (please refer to Note 18(b) for details of
the transaction). The revenue to be recognised by the
Group as a result of the transaction is measured based
on the fair value of the property received. The Group
determined the fair value of the property upon taking
possession of the property by making reference to the
price for the property negotiated with the third party
counterparty to the transaction and a valuation of the
property as at the date of the transaction prepared by
an independent valuer.

(b) Critical judgments in applying the Group’s

accounting policies

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is
determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
adopted the indicative market value provided by the
issuers as their best estimate of the fair values of these
financial instruments (Note 21). The Group considered
that it would be more practicable to benchmark the
values of these financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss to the indicative market value provided by the
issuers of these financial instruments rather than selecting
another valuation method. The Group considered that the
indicative market values provided by the issuers of these

financial instruments were prepared based on financial

valuation models and can be relied on.

(iv) W55 B35 BT # ALY 5 1Y 25T
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5. Revenue and Segment Information 5. WARZTEEHR
The Group is principally engaged in satellite television A B B Y T B S5 1 R T A R S o et
broadcasting activities. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and BB A SR B A R ILAB A BT T
other income by nature is as follows:
2007 2006
—RELS TERENAE
$000 $000
it 5t
Revenue A
Advertising sales S A Y 1,037,898 973,310
Subscription sales gL PN 45,480 41,511
Magazine advertising and subscription or HEGE B 4 BT W s AT A 23,512 18,030
circulation sales
Technical services income FEAT M5 U A 56,391 13,491
Others HoAth 15,386 11,325
1,178,667 1,057,667
Other income Ho At e A
Interest income, net Al E\ llﬁt]\(%"%”ﬁ 24,503 23,118
Exchange gain, net T 58, 05 i ¥ 4H 25,583 15,124
Income from certificate of deposit FEF U 705 976
Sales of programmes i H &8 934 3,715
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value Fe N BB R R 4 v IR
through profit or loss (realised and unrealised) B B 355 1) N (B A 4
(B M RSB 2,110 4910
Gain on the formation of a subsidiary WS —FK I}ﬁ%{/_\\ ELSEE
(Note 23(a)(iii)) (Mt i# 23 (a) (iii) 17,500 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment B E ~ RS TR A Y 0 i 664 -
Others, net HoAth 5 48 11,698 8,646
83,697 56,489
Total At 1,262,364 1,114,156
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5.

Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group is organised into four main business segments

including:

(i) Television broadcasting — broadcasting of television
programmes and commercials and provision of promotion
activities;

(i) Programme production and ancillary services;

(iii) New media — provision of website portal and value-added

telecommunication services; and

(iv) Other activities — merchandising services, magazine

publication and distribution, and other related services.

WARDEER @
B L S Y Yy
A4 6 5 DU U E T AN > LA

(i) TEALRAE — B MR R R
HAEEH
(i) i B A KSR R

(i) HTUERE — SR AP ol K R (ERES
K

(iv) HABSERBS — P oAb RS ~ s i i S 84T
DA % At AR B 5
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5.

Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5.

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

BRE_ZZLETHAZT—HILEE

WARDEER @
0 R R — A (D)

Year ended 31 December 2007

Programme
production Inter-
Television  and ancillary Other segment
broadcasting services  New media activities  elimination Group
il H SR R
EBBR SR M Ml Hbks  ABHHH AR
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Revenue A
External sales EapN e 1,083,379 5,433 56,391 33464 - 1,178,667
Inter-segment sales i 8 204 27,392 - 265 (27,861) -
Total revenue BA 1,083,583 32,825 56,391 33,729 (27,861) 1,178,667
Seament results NEER 367,699 181 25313 692 - 393,885
Unallocated income (Note a) KOECA (Wit a) 79,130
Unallocated expenses (Note b) KAEER (Hitb) (142,774)
Profit before share of results I A 1 ) 2
of jointly controlled entities, EGES R
income tax and minority P8 B b
interests E&%T&ﬁ_ﬁﬁﬁ{ﬁ il 330,241
Share of losses of jointly B L 7
controlled entities ) EHEE (1,067)
Income tax expense g B (50,640)
Profit for the year NG| 278,534
Minority interests b Uit
Profit attributable to equity P/NGIL SRR EDN
holders of the Company At 5 1 278,749
Segment assets (Note ) NEERE (i) 96,195 53,266 82,284 13,299 - 245,044
Unallocated assets (Note c) RNBEE (f e 1,390,498
Total assets B 1,635,542
Seament liabilities (Note d) NEAE ) (139,668) (5,898) (19,278) (9,218) - (174,062)
Unallocated liabilities(Note d) KABERE (Hitd) (51,691)
Total liabilities AR (225,753)
Capital expenditure (Note ¢) BRI (ke (18,612) (1,081) (3,517) - - (23,210)
Unallocated capital expenditure KABEAR L (209,876)
(233,086)
Depreciation e (23,946) (1,741) (1,685) (60) - (27,432)
Provision for impairment TR AT R B (A
of accounts receivable (5,547) - - - - (5,547)
Amortisation of purchased EAHH R B
programme and film rights WURE 22 1 8 (17,799) - - - - (17,799)
Reversal of previously written- e Wi B HE i
off accounts receivable HR R B ) 8,505 - - - - 8,505
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WARDEER @
0 R R — A ()

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5.

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2006
HEZZEAGE+ A=A

Programme
production Inter-
Television and ancillary Other segment
broadcasting services New media activities elimination Group
| BB I ‘ |
EHLE SR M i BERTUE S S ¥ YE ok g3
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tic T T Fi i Tic
Revenue liON
External sales B 1,014,822 1914 13,490 27,441 - 1,057,667
Inter-segment sales R E 611 24,584 - 30 (25,225) -
Total revenue A 1,015,433 26,498 13,490 27471 (25,225) 1,057,667
Segment results RS 351,549 (1,921) 894 (2,984) - 347538
Unallocated income (Note a) RAFIA /ﬁffi:fa) 45,408
Unallocated expenses (Note b) KA BER (Hzth) (145,603)
Profit before share of results %%& {2 ] £ ]
of jointly controlled TR ES
entities, income tax Fﬁﬁ‘ﬁ&'}‘%{
and minority interests R SRR 2 T i 247343
Share of losses of jointly A S 7] 2 S e L
controlled entities N (1,518)
Income tax expense FifakiE A (34,938)
Profit for the year AR B A 210,887
Minority interests D BB £ 1,498
Profit attributable to A wIRE g R A EAG i
equity holders
of the Company 212,385
Segment assets (Note c) AERE (Wakc) 64,385 68,454 17,038 10,191 - 160,068
Unallocated assets (Note ¢ RO BEE (ke 1,273,282
Total assets g RE 1,433,350
Segment liabilities (Note d) AEA (WEFJ) (27,0006) (5,281) (11,888) (10,273) - (54,448)
Unallocated liabilities (Note d) KA itd) (212,214)
Total liabilities FER (266,662)
Capital expenditure (Note e) EARSCH (ffite) (11,678) (2,789) (3,417) - - (17,884)
Unallocated capital expenditure FAEAR L (67,979)
(85,863)
Depreciation b (18,533) (2,883) (1,897) (60) - (23,373)
[mpairment of purchased LN =D 7
programme and film rights WU Bt (1,680) - - - - (1,680)
Provision for impairment of FE R R 1
accounts receivable Bt (16,293) - - - - (16,293)
Amortisation of purchased LN =D %S 7
programme and film rights HUHE 2 18 (17,011) - - - - (17,011)
Reversal of previously written- S8 i i 4 M
off accounts receivable JEK 2 it ol 12,152 - - - - 12,152
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments (continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Unallocated income represents income recognised on formation
of a subsidiary with another third party investor to undertake the
outdoor media business (Note 23 (a)(iii)), and other gains such as
exchange gain, interest income, fair value gain on financial assets

and liabilities (realised and unrealised).
Unallocated expenses represent primarily:

—  corporate staff costs;

—  office rental;

—  general administrative expenses; and

—  marketing and advertising expenses that relate to the Group

as a whole.

Segment assets consist primarily of purchased programme and
film rights, broadcast operations and other equipments (Note 18),

inventories, accounts receivable, and self-produced programmes.

Unallocated assets comprise property, plant and equipment other
than broadcast operations and other equipments (Note 18),
lease premium for land, intangible assets, investments in jointly
controlled entities, available-for-sale financial assets, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, amounts due from
related companies, deferred income tax assets, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, loans and receivables, and cash

and cash equivalents.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of certain payables and

deferred income.

Unallocated liabilities comprise of provision for asset retirement
reinstatement, deferred income tax liabilities, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to related companies and profits tax

payable.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and

equipment, lease premium for land and intangible assets.
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B RS R Y RE

T RE R (&

2R o X - B (D

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

RO BE A A8 LS 5 — (58 = 7 BUEHE AL —
5 B Jag 2 W) LUEAT 5 1 68 HEE S5 1 ife A i £
(B RE 23 (a) (i) ) B HAt U 2 - U0 SE i i ~ LG

WA~ B S BRI A T Y 2 ( E“IE&
REEBL)

KT WE R FES

— %@EIEMX'

— A EMAE

- *ﬂ&ﬁﬂzﬂﬂi‘z K&

— B R AT B O T G R R RS T -
/}ﬁEéQFHF%EEEB%EEnEI ?E%Ui’fg“"
o L H AL A (B RE18) ~ 7R & ~ HE W 3Kk

E?& H 4L -
A B G A A 2 RS KR (R AR
i ARG RR AN (BffaE18) ~ LbfH 4 - T2

B~ SR S ATk R 2

BE f/\ﬂF{ﬁt i H 2 AR Y B E - BB
W AT B H R SE T A ﬁiiﬁfé‘%‘?ﬁﬁ

HIE Fi&ﬁﬁjﬁl&
K4 B e (EHY) -

RIE ~ B8R U K

Oy R A T B A T A AR R SE A -
R e B AL AT BRI RS T A
B IE AR A A BROE e e T R A AT
Rl 22 % ) R R A RIS L

EARCHOHRIREYE - BB &
BB R ATE 5 E -

A A




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT BlE#E®RFHR 2007

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B &8 R M st

5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5. WARZEER @)

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments ST R — R 4

Year ended 31 December 2007
BEZRZFLETH=ZT—H ISR

Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditure
A R e A S
$'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt Tt
The People’s Republic of China LA NERE
(including Hong Kong) (EL46 7 i) 1,092,995 1,593,612 230,729
United States F [ 41,747 18,664 813
Europe el 18,488 18,101 1,118
Others HoAt 25,437 5,165 426
1,178,667 1,635,542 233,086
Year ended 31 December 2006
WECERNET A =P —HIEE
Total Capital
Revenue assets expenditure
A AR BARSCH
$'000 $'000 $°000
Tt Tt Tt
The People’s Republic of China LRk DN 1
(including Hong Kong) (L3 s 985,536 1,390,662 84,143
United States E3 30,600 20,828 380
Europe el 18,014 16,030 436
Others FoAty 23,517 5,830 904
1,057,667 1,433,350 85,863
Revenue is based on the country in which the customer is WA TI R & e B K w0 - ME R K
located. Total assets and capital expenditure are based on the A S T FE R P TE B B R

country where the assets are located.
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6.

Profit Before Income Tax

The following items have been credited/charged to the profit

before income tax during the year:

&l E

T IETHCAEAAE L AR ERE

Pt A6 A1 A T

2007 2006
—FFUE IR
$'000 $°000
Tt 5
Crediting A
Fair value gain on financial assets N PE 5 MR 2 RO IR
at fair value through profit or loss 1 BA TS A A TE
(realised and unrealised) e 4 (258 M R 558 2,110 4910
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment WY - W DR 2 I i 664 -
Reversal of previously written off accounts receivable T BT Y R B 3k 2 3% (] 8,505 12,152
Reversal of provision for impairment of accounts receivable 18 Wit Ff% 3K Jak (1 485 55 43 1] 5,192 -
Gain on the formation of a subsidiary B — F W E S | 2 05 17,500 —
Charging S
Amortisation of purchased programme and film rights W AE H M 5 WURE 2 17,799 17,011
Production costs of self-produced programmes B R H AR A 133,130 119,786
Transponder rental (Note 34(j), (k), (1)) L
(Bt 7E340) > (k) ~ (1) 21,052 17,000
Provision for impairment of accounts receivable T WS B B (L4 5,547 16,293
Provision for impairment of prepayments, deposits TEAT I ~ #e 4 S At
and other receivables JRE SR VB 2 o (4 A 6,874 —
Employee benefit expenses flE B A48 | BA 32
(including Directors’ emoluments) (B35 2 = 1l <)
(Note 11) (Ktzt11) 296,407 263,418
Operating lease rental in respect of TR T B
— Directors’ quarters —EHEE 1,322 1,202
— Land and buildings of third parties — 5 = F A o S 18,842 17,959
Depreciation expenses Tﬁ% % H 27,432 23,373
Amortisation of lease premium for land b A A 2 1,402 540
Auditor’s remuneration % B Eﬂi il 4 2,835 2,410
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W~ W MR 2 e 226 677
Impairment of purchased programme and film rights WA B H K R 5 WO 2 - 1,680
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7. Income Tax Expense 7. FiISHER

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% s A 4G Bi T He A 4R LA R BB A A
(2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the 17.5% (. FZE N 2 17.5%) Bl o 6 7N
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the T8 T T AR A A 4 B ) A s BB SRR i ) - A
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation G 1 2605 BT T B K B0 Y B R R o

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

2007 2006
—EFLE CRTNAE
$'000 $000
T Tt
Current income tax IE H%F)f?‘%& *}‘E :
— Hong Kong profits tax — A 1B 43,825 45,532
— Overseas taxation — g IMBLIH 3 51
— (Over)/under provision of Hong Kong — R A A B A s A4S L
profits tax in the prior year CEEzESEMH) A L (1,844) 375
Deferred income tax (Note 30) % SiE Fr A5 (W?fxg()) 8,656 (11,020)
50,640 34,938
On 20 January 1998, the PRC State Administration of Taxation A= IULNE— A =+ H > B B KB AR
granted a Tax Ruling of Business Tax and Foreign Enterprise R A 18 e A BRA ] (TR 1) i
Income Tax on certain of the Group’s advertising fees collected I F B 2 0 L R AP R S
from Shenzhou Television Company Ltd. (“Shenzhou”) in BIBE O (M52 13) (TRZ#EE ) - AEBOR
the PRC (Note 13) (the “Ruling”). The Group has dealt with P RZHOE W S A MBS R N R F AR B IE - R
the aforementioned taxes according to the Ruling in the M > o B A BB SOk A B s B s B H A% vl g
consolidated financial statements. However, PRC tax laws BEEY > HI A 42 [ ZE A T AR B s b B IE A
and regulations and the interpretations thereof may change TR A 2 WSO A0 v (B B T o A B I A A
in the future such that the Group would be subject to PRC 5¢ o B BV 8 ) 2 B e DAL R e 2
taxation on certain income deemed to be sourced in the PRC AR

other than Hong Kong. The Group will continue to monitor
developments in the PRC tax regime in order to assess the

ongoing applicability and validity of the Ruling.
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7.

Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of the
location in which the Company operates as follows:

7. ISHER@

ZRMTE

S AR B R B iR A RO B
O ) KSR BT AE M i ) B R E A 2 B e KR Y

SR A

2007 2006
—RELE TERENAE
$000 $000
Tt Tt
Profit before income tax ¥ Jr 15 38 T i ) 329,174 245,825
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% IERL R 17.5% 51 A
(2006: 17.5%) (ZEEIRE 1 17.5%) 57,605 43,019
Income not subject to taxation HER B (14,266) (10,823)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes R a] gt s T e 11,095 10,273
Tax losses not recognised I W GRB VE s 18 6,973 9,431
Effect of tax holiday granted to PRC subsidiaries 577 v 12 o A 2 ) A T ek A
145 (4,617) -
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B 2 A ok i RR R S 1R (4,309) (3,631)
Recognition of deferred tax asset arising il 52 R 542 i A e 5 B0 M 48T
from previously unrecognised tax losses FE A 2 A S B U A - (13,900)
Provision for overseas operations T AN SE B A 3 51
(Over)/under provision of Hong Kong T HE AR AT B A U R A5 B
profits tax in prior years (R ZE B4R /T%%Z:E (1,844) 375
Others HoAt — 143
Tax expense Tl TE 2 50,640 34,938

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16% (2006: 17%).

Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the 8.

Company

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent

of HK$1,287,000 (2006: HK$1,276,000).

B -

TINHESE- 2938 B R B 16% (B ENAE 1 17%) o

RARERBFEARLER

A FRE 7 R A O BE A 5 481,287,000 #5 o6 (—
RN 11,276,000 90) B FFA AL 7 B
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9. Dividends 9. BRE
The 2006 final dividends paid during the year ended 31 PBEZEFRLET = — HIRFE Y
December 2007 were HK$69,243,000 (HK$0.014 per B T N AR AR RS 569,243,000 kT (4
share). A dividend in respect of 2007 of HK$0.018 per share, B0.014#0) - EFHENR FEFENE=HLH
amounting to a total dividend of HK$89,108,000 estimated AT E R OH® LIRE R AR R
based upon the number of outstanding shares of approximately 0.018#JC » RN —FXLFE+ A =+—
4,950,422,000 as at 31 December 2007, was proposed by the H 2 B 847 B0y 8L H %9 4,950,422,000 A 5154
Directors at a Board of Directors meeting held on 7 March Al 5k & 3 45 89,108,000 #E JC 155 BA 1 Wt 2= 3F
2008. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend I I W S R A L
payable.
2007 2006
e 2 S CERFNAE
$'000 $000
Toc Tt
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.018 AR B A% 0.018HE T
(2006: HK$0.014) per share (B EFNAF 1 0.014%0) 89,108 69,243
10. Earnings Per Share 10. BREF
Basic B
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable B I FEAS 2 F T AR R AR S W) RE 25 F5 A A EAL i
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of FI B DAAFE 0 AT 30 28 I 1) IR - 34 BEH A -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2007 2006
ZERERLE TEEN
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ($'000) EN/NCIE S e X EDN
it F1l (F7C) 278,749 212,385
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ('000) L8547 4 B 1 e
11 (T 1) 4,946,338 4,940,000
Basic earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) B IR B AR Z R G A1) 5.64 4.30
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10.

Earnings Per Share (continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The
Company has one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares
which is share options. A calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options. Where the number of shares so
calculated is smaller than the number of shares that would
have been issued assuming the exercise of all the outstanding
share options, the difference represents potential dilutive
shares and is added to the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue to arrive at the weighted average number of
ordinary shares for diluted earnings per share.

10.

BERERN @

v

5 FC 0 2 ) 5 7 Ml s A R S B
AT ILT - MR T AT I i Bl AR5 B
R BGEER o AR Al — SR TR A
B S S R o A ) T MR 18 SR AT o8 S A HEE S R
I R A R AT AT DA E AR AP
(A W) JS A7 T S T 09 ~F- 24 T 35 B A v )
AW AR B o Bl a5 B s 09 Bt B H U5 B
B2 L% S5 W PSR A T B 20 SR AT IO e B
PR o i #% B T 0 10 B0 B D MRS A R
A7 18 06 PBC M AR AT G AR A & SR AT IO MR B - AN
A B 2= A RV TE S e TS A 2 B 84T K a
P A AIIREE - 249 S > L d P S R E A B
] R 5 BT HEE - 25 9

2007 2006
—ERLE | 3T
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company JTV A 7t 5 g R4 v 0 ) B
used to determine diluted earnings per share ($'000) 7R N T RE 35 R A N E AL i )
(T7t) 278,749 212,385
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue ('000) B 854730 20 I A Jon A - 2 B
(F 1) 4,946,338 4,940,000
Adjustment for share options ('000) AC I I R A L R 2 (T %) 15,383 5,582
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FH P 18 78 A I 2 R Y
for diluted earnings per share ('000) M IR T TR 4,961,721 4,945,582
Diluted earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) B R 2 R R A1) 5.62 4.29
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11.

Employee Benefit Expenses (Including
Directors’ Emoluments)

N BERINER (BERESEHE)

2007 2006

SEBLE T

$'000 HKS$'000

T Tt

Wages, salaries and other allowances T~ 34 S H A R 284,025 251,010

Unutilised annual leave xR 406 1,544
Pension costs — defined contribution plan, BIRA A — AT B

net of forfeited contributions (Note a) (FUBR B L) (M aEa) 11,976 10,864

296,407 263,418

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group operates a number of defined contribution

pension schemes in accordance with the respective

subsidiaries’ local practices and regulations. The Group

is obligated to contribute funding to these plans based on

various percentages of the employees’ salaries or a fixed

sum per employee with reference to their salary level. The

assets of these schemes are generally held in separate

trustee administered funds.

(i)

Employees in Hong Kong are provided with a
defined contribution provident fund scheme and the
Group is required to make monthly contribution to
the scheme based on 10% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Forfeited contributions are used to offset
the employer’s future contributions. For the year
ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount
of the employer’s contributions was approximately
HKS$11,613,000 (2006: HK$11,037,000) and the total
amount of forfeited contributions was approximately
HK$1,613,000 (2006: HK$1,875,000).

Since 1 December 2000, the employees in Hong
Kong can elect to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme
was introduced pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation introduced in 2000. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and each of the employees
make monthly contribution to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income as defined under the

Mandatory Provident Fund legislation.

(a) BIRSE — ALK #

7 2 1] 2 R % Y Ja 2 ) i A B R b 451 B
B Z HE MR IR G R # - A%
B ZE % A B T 4 1 R [ 4 L R 2 IR
R RAR TG4 R B DL SE 81 7% 5wt
PEBEE & o a2 5 HBIA G A — M B B
B B SLAE REANFRA

() HisiE B TR e AR A &
B WAL EES A R B EAFH S
1 10% [ 3% 5 B0 /E t A5 3K o B 12 i it
R R A S R 0 R K o W E
CEEEE+ A=+ HIEEE
g B AY 1 3k 2 %8 A 49 11,613,000 #5 7T
(RIS 11,037,000 8 70) - T B
W 2R AR B 491,613,000 T (—
FENAE 11,875,000 7C) o

BoEEREL A AR F il
LR AR (T
Bt - BT S R

A T A R A Y R A R AR 0 0 T
o MM SR H > ALH LA
fifE B 5 H &g BB A 19 5% (E
e SR I VE A BT Bk ) 1) 5% B AR
K
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11.

Employee Benefit Expenses (Including
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Both the employer’s and the employees’ contributions
are subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000 for each employee. For those employees
with monthly relevant income less than HK$5,000,
since 1 February 2003, the employees’ contributions
are voluntary.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the
Group to the MPF Scheme was approximately
HK$2,192,000 (2006: HK$1,296,000) and no
contribution was forfeited (2006: HK$40,000).

Pursuant to the relevant local regulations of the
countries where the overseas subsidiaries of the
Group are located, these subsidiaries participate in
respective government retirement benefit schemes
and/or set up their own schemes (collectively, the
“Schemes”) whereby they are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the
Schemes are calculated either based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed
sums for each employee with reference to a salary
scale, as stipulated under the requirements in the
respective countries. The Group has no further
obligation beyond the required contributions. The
contributions under the Schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

M. EEBFNER(BEREEML) @

(a) BARE — B At (5)

(i)

(i)

(%)

i 3= B A B 0 4 3R 20 22 45 AR B
AR B A 20,000 3 5T LR AT FR -
A H A B WA DT 5,000 # 0 R
B H_ZEZ=H_"_H—H %%
& & 7T B BRAE k-

WEZEEZLET A= —HIEE
JE o AR 42 ) 1) 5 R 4 nt AR B A 3
Ik 3R A RE Fy #92,192,000 9 00 (T E X
INAE 1,296,000 5 70) > HIf EREIZ 0k
PR (R INAE £ 40,0005 70) ©

R 98 A 4 9] Ve A1 Y D 2 ) i A B R
AR B 7 T R o % A R S ) 2 L A%
1 B R K AR R T8> K Bk or
HARGME# (KR IABIRD > 58
W o 5 S ZE ) A BR TR R R DA
BAERKEE N BKEAEMLES -
1) A B T 3 A 0 T AR 45 o7 f
SRR ENE S - NP e e A A T
TE SRR S 45 R R R T
FRE 1) 3 4 A o AR A [ NI 0 AT o]
fiby 8 TR S I K AT o w24 Rl B
LR E RS & A i 2R R
Ok -
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11.

Employee Benefit Expenses (Including
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31
December 2007 is set out below:

BEERAMNER(BRESHE) @

(b) % K A BN BT 5
BHrEREE _TTEFET A=+ —H
1k 4 B2 I 6 51 4T

Employer’s

Quarters and contribution

Discretionary housing  to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses  allowance scheme Total

1 3: i

Y% B mak Bk
HHIEA s e ma  FEEE fEh gt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
I LIU Changle B4 - 4,963 1,800 924 458 8,145
2. CHUIKeung Ei - 2,033 1,200 1,000 188 4,421
3. WANG JiYan THE - 1,772 1,000 875 163 3,810
4. LAUYu Leung, John Bl&E 57 - - - - - -
5. LOKa Shui A 200 - - - - 200

6. XU Gang Frl
(resigned on 12 Jan 2007) (T = F LA

— At HEHT) - - - - - -
7. GONG Jianzhong g - - - - - -
8. LEUNG Hok Lim AL 200 - - - - 200
9. Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK  Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK 200 - - - - 200
10.  GAO Nianshu s B - . . - -
1. LU Xiangdong B R - - - - - -
12, Paul Francis AIELLO Paul Francis AIELLO - - - - - -

As of 31 December 2007, Mr. LIU Changle, Mr. CHUI
Keung and Mr. WANG Ji Yan had outstanding share
options to purchase 5,320,000 (2006: 5,320,000),

3,990,000 (2006: 3,990,000) and 3,990,000 (2006:
3,990,000) shares of the Company at HK$1.08 per share,
respectively. No options were exercised during 2007 and
the fair values of these options have not been included
in the directors’ emoluments disclosed above. The above

outstanding share options had vested as at 31 December
2007.

WEEELFET A= T—H BIR%E A -
E%ﬂa?ﬁi&ﬂi T A Al R He R 1.08
5 0 B8 B 5,320,000 I (ZZFE XA ¢ 5,320,000
%)~ 3,990,000 % (& Z 7SN 4F 13,990,000 /1)
53,990,000 & (- FFINAE ¢ 3,990,000 %) 7R
s A B Ay 0 SR AT o 1 PREAE o g FRE A NI i i —
TLNEATAH > T % 55 B B RE MY A T IR R 5T
AL ST B R 00 A A o Ll SR AT %
HOR —EELFE A= —HEE -
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BEERAMNER(BRESHE) @

11. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)

29 September 2006)

nh‘:mw;%ém

(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) EHE KA WHEEANB WA (5)
(continued)
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 GREFHRE _EFERNFET A=+ —H
December 2006 is set out below: IEAF BE N & s an R
Quarters Employer's
and  contribution
Discretionary housing to pension
Name of Director Fees Salary bonuses allowance scheme Total
fEf:m
0t 8 BEk RS
HHILL fiE #e iits FREEN LR st
$000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000
T T T T T T
I LIU Changle BIR% - 4818 1,500 879 445 7,642
2. CHUIKeung B - 1,974 700 971 182 3,827
3. WANG JiYan IRE
(appointed on (R =FERE
29 September 2006) JLA _+jL AEZAE)
(Note ) (W3EA) - 172 700 848 159 3429
4. Michelle Lee GUTHRIE Michelle Lee GUTHRIE
(resigned on (MZEFAE
29 September 2006) A g‘lﬂjl A #T) - - - - - -
5. LAUYu Leung, John L - - - - - -
6. CHEUNG ChunOn,Daniel ~ TREE
(resigned on (R ZFENE
29 September 2006) JURZ A LHEHE) - - - - - -
7. LOKaShui i 200 - - - - 200
8 CHEUNG San Ping "J‘F&ﬁ/\
(resigned on (RZFFERE
29 September 2006) LA _+jL A RHE) - -
XU Gang il - -
GONG Jianzhong Hgh - -
LEUNG Hok Lim RE TR 200 200
Thaddeus Thomas BECZAK Tlnddeus Thomas BECZAK 200 200
GAO Nianshu A u %
(appointed on ZENE

LU Xiangdong &*ﬁﬁﬁ
(appointed on (MZEZAE
29 September 2006) A g‘lﬂjl AEZI) - -

Paul Francis AIELLO

(appointed on
29 September 2006)

Paul Francis AIELLO
(=B

AT HEZRT)

MEA: ERFRLCEREFESR i %
TRFEILH AU H B AR B
covers full year 2006. BT B RNFRFE

Note A: Mr. WANG Ji Yan was appointed as a Director effective

from 29 September 2006, the amount of remuneration
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11. Employee Benefit Expenses (Including 1. EEGANER(BFEEEmE) @
Directors’ Emoluments) (continued)
(c) Five highest paid individuals (c) Fifrdm i AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest BE_ELZLHET A=+ HILFEE
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 AEE LR EH AL GfFE =4 (Z
include three (2006: three) Executive Directors whose BRI Z24) PATES > HEME R L
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in (a) S (a) BANEI BTN o S NER N4 (.
above. The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining two TEN W) NS HEAT 40
(2006: two) individuals during the year are as follows:
2007 2006
ZRRLS TRENA
$’000 $000
T Tt
Salaries B 4,198 4,076
Discretionary bonus T 1 % AR AE AL 800 1,400
Housing allowance 5= 2,069 2,009
Pension fund FER N 388 376
Compensation and others %%T%f’i\&/ﬁ\ﬁﬂ 2,943 —
10,398 7,861
The emoluments of the remaining two (2006: two) BTG (CFEENE W) AL AN T
individuals fell within the following bands: PIF#E 1
Number of individuals
AN
Emolument band 2007 2006
P 2 6 ] —RFLE TREBRNE
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # 76 — 3,500,000 #5 7C - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #7C — 4,000,000 % 75 1 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 # 76 — 4,500,000 #5 JG - 1
HK$6,500,001 — HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 #5JC — 7,000,000 %5 G 1 -
During the year, no emoluments or incentive payments Wk b S i B 3 AN o A TR SN R 1) R A B o A
were paid or payable to the five highest paid individuals as ~F SCAS SR A AT o] P < K B A 1 > DAAE 2
an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for NS B 9] 11 58 8 A 2 ABAT R B (=R AR -

loss of office except as disclosed above (2006: Nil). ) o
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. =} 35
12. Accounts Receivable, Net 12. BRI FEE
2007 2006
—FFLE ZERENAE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Accounts receivable JRE AT B K 34,289 70,938
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables e R RS AL A (8,623) (14,779)
25,666 56,159
The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, net, approximate JFRE WA SR K % L ) R T (L B A8 55 Y P (B AT o
their fair value.
The Group has appointed an advertising agent in the PRC A B2 [ 2 v R AT — B A AR 3 AR
to promote the sales of the Group’s advertising airtime and B TR # R A AR [ 0 B A W B B T H Rl
programme sponsorship and collect advertising revenues 37 AR AR B BB A O (B RE 13) o AR —
within the PRC on behalf of the Group (Note 13). The Group B SR B 5 ZR TR e ST RO o
generally requires customers to pay in advance.
The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from customers JREC 2 5 R R B BR e 20 BT B
is as follows:
2007 2006
—FFLE —e S
$'000 $000
T Tt
0-30 days 02 30H 10,320 31,446
31-60 days 31260 H 6,062 10,780
61-90 days 61290 H 3,843 4,343
91-120 days 91 & 120H 2,821 5,644
Over 120 days 120 H A | 11,243 18,725
34,289 70,938
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables e R O B (A A (8,623) (14,779)
25,666 56,159
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12. Accounts Receivable, Net (continued) 12. EWERFFEE @)

7S [ S R ) R AT LA B B R

The carrying amounts of the Group's accounts receivable are
denominated in the following currencies:

2007 2006

e = < S TRENAE

$’000 $000

T Tt

RMB N 21,451 60,029
Uss E=in 6,789 7,509
UK pound g 6,049 3,400
34,289 70,938

Movements on the provision for impairment of accounts

receivable are as follows:

JFE S S Bl (L 8 AR ) S B AR

2007 2006

“RRLE | I

$'000 $000

5t Fe

At 1 January w—H—H (14,779) (127,065)

Provision for impairment of accounts receivable AR AT R 0 ik {4 A (5,547) (16,293)

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 4 [AI 5 /4~ AT Wi 7 119 JE i 3 18 6,463 128,593
Reversal of provision for impairment of JRRE AT e 0 U L 4 £ 43 I

accounts receivable 5,192 —

Exchange difference TE 58, 22 %H 48 (14)

At 31 December B+ =ZA=+—H (8,623) (14,779)

JE A SRRk (L 4B 4 2 T 2 48 (] 2w A i aE R
RS — B R AT ECE AT o F AR
TN By > — RO B A A HE R AT BR 2 BKOH

The creation and release of provision for impairment of
accounts receivable have been included in selling, general and
administrative expenses in the income statement. Amounts
charged to the allowance account are generally written off
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

A S T R A S I A
I ISR 10 £ 65 4 v JELR -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable because the Group has a large number of

customers.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12.

13.

PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT ElEE®RFH 2007 137

e M EHRME

Accounts Receivable, Net (continued) 12. EWERFFEE @)
The Group has recognised a loss of HK$5,547,000 (2006: R E EEFLEFF A=t —HIEEERX
HK$16,293,000) for the impairment of its accounts receivable A A T L R A B S (L TG E 52 5 1 5,547,000
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The loss has been Wt (EEINAE 116,293,000 0) ° 7K HE
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in Crt AZE W R PHE - — R AT B A
the consolidated income statement. The Group has written TR o A B A AS 4 2 A A 1 4F R AR
off HK$6,463,000 (2006: HK$128,579,000) of accounts 2 JRE A B 2 Dk (L 4% A BB 6,463,000 5 0 (&
receivable against the provision for impairment of accounts FTNAE £ 128,579,000 % 70) 2 ME MR 3K - AR
receivable made in prior years during the year. The Group B R E 7 A 4F B A 8 [ 5l T B 2 R s IR K
has also reversed HK$8,505,000 (2006: HK$12,152,000) of 8,505,000 #5 7C (/N4 1 12,152,000 #57T) ©
previously written-off accounts receivable during the year.
As at 31 December 2007 accounts receivable of approximately ACEEELEFFAZT—H BIURRY
HK$25,666,000 (2006: HK$56,159,000) were past due but not 25,666,000 #5 70 (ZFFE N 56,159,000 #I0)
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers OB HE R T W ME o 3% 55 3IH T Bl & 24901 10T
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing MR B ILEF AR - 225 BIURRZ
analysis of these accounts receivable is as follows: HRER AT I T -
2007 2006
=% b TERTNAE
$’000 $000
T Tt
Up to 90 days 0%90H 20,225 46,569
91 — 180 days 91 & 180 H 5,132 8,969
Over 180 days 180 H LA | 309 621
25,666 56,159
Prepayments, Deposits and Other 13. AARE - RERHMWEWRE

Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables is an
amount of approximately RMB357,994,000 (HK$377,501,000)
(2006: RMB346,928,000 or HK$344,263,000) owing from
an advertising agent, Shenzhou, in the PRC. The amount
represents advertising revenue collected, net of expenses
incurred by Shenzhou on behalf of the Group. The balance is
unsecured and bears interest at prevailing bank interest rates.

The Group has set up a commercial and trust arrangement
with Shenzhou, details of which have been disclosed in the
announcement made by the Company on 25 September 2002.

TA AT IR ~ 4% G B I Ath B A K TR AL 45— S
r B R A AR RN 1 ETE A9 A R 357,994,000
JC (377,501,000 76) (FEEN4E - AR
346,928,000 JC 5% 344,263,000 5 7C) © MK IH £
N A QA S BT B U A (ELIBR S ) -
&5 B 2 SEHC R R 9 AT SRAT R R FH AL o

7 £ [ BN 2 RT3 — TH S RS R HE > R
T CAEARRN AR FF AR HH
2 5 N % o
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13.

14.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other
Receivables (continued)

The Trust Law in the PRC enacted in recent years has not
laid out specific detailed implementation rules applicable to
trust arrangements such as that of the Group with Shenzhou,
therefore the extent of the enforceability of the arrangement
is still unclear. Although the management recognises that the
present arrangement is the only legally viable arrangement, the
management will continue to monitor and explore alternatives
to improve the situation.

The management of the Group is of the opinion that
the amount owing from Shenzhou of approximately
RMB357,994,000 (HK$377,501,000) as at 31 December 2007
is fully recoverable and no provision is required. The balance is

repayable on demand and is not pledged.

The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate their fair values.

13.

ERARE -RERHMMEWFE @)

SRTAT > v B 0T A7 4fE Y 1) 5 E 35 35 A 42 1) B e
19 15 5E 2 P I I M A A P B RLE > R
RBEH E i L PR AT HE ATV SEE - MR
B TR B BUAT Pk AT R B
LA L g A A0 5 S F 9 HL At W AT R DL ok
LA B -

AREMERBR L R _FEZXTLFE+ A
= H O & 2 B IA A R 357,994,000
JG (377,501,000 5 7T) A% 7T S Bl =] > e 328
{4 oA B R PR SR AR > LD MESIC A

B R e 0 5 4 T (5
0 2 F (I -

Inventories 14. &
2007 2006
“RRLE TEENRE
$’000 $'000
5 o
Decoder devices and satellite receivers AT o o B I i L 4 Wi 4,585 4,952

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in other income, net, amounted to HK$615,000 (2006:
HK$626,000).

8 A B #e615,000 6 (. FFAN4E
626,000 70) T HEREAEE ) - 36 5F A HAB A
TR o
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15. B "ENEBRELQRANRE

15. Amounts due from/to Related Companies

2007 2006

=== L RN

$'000 $000

Tt Tt

Amounts due from related companies JRESCA B 722w 3ROE 3,840 38
Amounts due to related companies AT A B 7 ) 3B (3,506) (4,743)

REERELEF A= —H Bl AR
LN R RIE 2 MR B AT

At 31 December 2007, the ageing analysis of the amounts due

from/to related companies, were as follows:

2007 2006
e L
$'000 $000
Tt T

Amounts due from related companies JE WA TR A ) ek
0 —90 days 0% 90H 3,745 26
91 — 120 days 91 & 120 H - -
over 120 days 120 H UL B 95 12
3,840 38

Amounts due to related companies JE A A TR 4 ] R
0 - 90 days 0290 H 3,503 4,740
91-120 days 91 & 120 H — -
over 120 days 120 H A | 3 3
3,506 4,743

The outstanding balances with related companies are aged
less than one year and are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand (2006: Same).

The carrying amounts of amounts due from/to related

companies approximate their fair values.

A7 B2 R B OR SORE A BRI D —4F > 0 2
SR ~ 602 B AL ORI (TN ) o

JE WL, A5F A R L ) G L ) R T {1 B HG  SP-(H

FHA o
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16. Purchased Programme and Film Rights, 16. BABHERERZIREFE

Net

2007 2006
e 2 TEREBNE
$’000 $'000
Tt Tt
Balance, beginning of year AR B B 17,976 20,109
Additions WE 20,612 16,728
Amortisation T (17,799) (17,011)
Impairment loss RN, 2R - (1,680)
Others HoAt (77) (170)
Balance, end of year ey o 20,712 17,976

Less: Purchased programme and film rights Wk BEACET TR R RRORE
— current portion — S BTy (2,889) (4,061)
17,823 13,915
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17. Lease Premium for Land 17. T#HEEEH
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid A B B AP RE 22 M A 9 A A AL A
operating lease payments and their net book value are analysed Ao SR A AT

as follows:

2007 2006
ZRELE TEREINAE
$'000 $'000
Too Tt
In Hong Kong, held on: U R
Leases of over 10 to 50 years 10 B S0FE L E 39,547 -
Outside Hong Kong, held on: FWEA > F5 4
Leases of over 10 to 50 years 10 2 S0 E R E 93,263 74,696
132,810 74,696
2007 2006
—FFLE —e S
$'000 $°000
Tt Tt
Balance, beginning of year ERUEE S 74,696 -
Additions (Note a) WE (B ita) 60,100 75,236
Amortisation (Note b) WS E ) (ML D) (1,986) (540)
Balance, end of year A4 iR 132,810 74,696
(a) Additions for the year ended 31 December 2007 (a) B2 _FZELFE+ __H=1+—HIFFEEWN
represented: NHET
(i)  Taxes amounting to HK$2,322,000 paid for the (i) A B B R s A A PR W] ([ BR5E )
title registration for the land use rights of a villa AT 5 B2 5 b BT HE W 22 (%
(the “Villa") received in a barter transaction with AL EE ) B e H Al RE 2 SERE S R S
Mission Hills Group Limited (“Mission Hills”) in ASH %) 5 TEL 5 902,322,000 5 T (AL B 55

the PRC (Note 18(b)). 18(b)) °
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17. Lease Premium for Land (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(ii)

Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 October 2003
and the two supplementary agreements dated 12
May 2005 and 27 July 2007 respectively, the Group
entered into a construction development project
with Oasiscity Limited (“Oasiscity), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Neo-China Land Group
(Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong. Under the terms of the contracts, the Group
was effectively entitled to 10,000 square meters of
the non-saleable areas in a building in Shenzhen
(the “Shenzhen Building”) upon the completion
of development in exchange for the land use
rights previously obtained by the Group for the
land on which the building stands. The Shenzhen
Building was completed in December 2006 and
the Group began its use of its entitled areas in the
building. As at 31 December 2006, the Group’s
entitlement to use was accounted for as a finance
lease as the Group did not have title to its entitled
areas. On 20 November 2007, pursuant to a
notification from the Shenzhen Municipal Bureau
of Land Resources and Housing Management, the
Group paid a land premium of RMB16,574,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,133,000)
and related land tax of RMB497,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$514,000) to the Shenzhen
Municipal Bureau of Land Resources and Housing
Management to obtain a title certificate in the
name of Phoenix Satellite Television Company
Limited (the “Phoenix Subsidiary”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group, for the Group’s
upper ground space entitlement of 8,500 square
meters. As of 31 December 2007, The Group was
still awaiting the issuance of the title certificate to
the Phoenix Subsidiary by the Shenzhen Municipal

Government. The Directors are of the opinion that
the title certificate of the Shenzhen Building will
be issued in the near future.

17. T#HEEEH @)

(a)

(
(

%

#
ii

#)
)

WRIEH - FFZ=F+H -+ ILHF X
Z Wk By At —FEFE LA+
Hk —FEFELHFELH - FLEHF L2
Al 78 oh e o A 4 (] BRL v i b A [ (2
) A PR A (R A F BB A S
FT A BR S | A ) B2 E A
] Oasiscity Limited ([ Oasiscity 1) %1 37
— MR IEE » RS ET
ABAEEIE H 2 TR > ARE M = —
YRS (TERIIES 110,000 ~F-F7 K1Y
IE S TERE > DA s A 4 ) o A 1S
M E 2 R o R
JMEFR ZFENETHENR > A
A% A [ 2 BH 46 (8 i e e el =
MR - i —FEEANFEF H =+ —
H oo i A 48 ]8I o 48 15 5 T == 4 T
FEMZERE > L > AREE =4 0%
MR ARS ARG E - it =&
TEE+—HZ+H - ARBEEIITERN
AR A LR @ AR
i) R Y1l T [ A R R R R X
A7 38 N B % 16,574,000 T8 (49 %5 ih
17,133,000 #5 70) B AHBH + b Bi A
497,000 7G (%% i~ 514,000 6) > LA
Tk A 4R T A A AT 22 [ 8,500 - U oK
DL R [ 1Y) A B N R R R AR
BN wD (TR B G 2 W) 1) 19 4% 36 45 15
EWH R FEFELF+ A=+
H o> AR AT AL 55 17 VR I T BT 1) JR
JERR RS 28 WA R R o EE RS
GEYIME T 7 SERE RS AL A S AR 7S
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17. T#HEEEH @)

17. Lease Premium for Land (continued)

(%)

(ifi) A7 R I T3 Wi + AR 8 28

(a) (continued) (a)
(iii) Land lease premium for the property in the Tai Po

Industrial Estate in Hong Kong

On 14 September 2006, Phoenix Centre (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Phoenix Centre”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser, and
Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as Phoenix Centre’s guarantor, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Freescale Semiconductor Hong
Kong Limited (“Freescale”) (formerly known as
Motorola Semiconductors Hong Kong, Limited) as
vendor, whereby Phoenix Centre agreed to purchase
a property located in the Tai Po Industrial Estate in
Hong Kong (the “Property”), for a total consideration
of US$15,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$120,900,000) (the “Consideration”).

In accordance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation, the
lessor of the leasehold land of the Property, Phoenix
Centre has also undertaken to complete installation
of new machinery and equipment with a value of not
less than HK$105,000,000 at the Property within 48
months of 31 May 2007, and to commence operation
of the facility within 18 months from the completion
date.

In May 2007, the Group completed the purchase
and took possession of the Property. The total cost of
the Property, including relevant taxes and purchase
expenses, is approximately HK$126,238,000, and has
been allocated between the lease premium for land
(approximately HK$40,131,000) and the cost of the
building (approximately HK$86,107,000) based on
a valuation of the Property as at 31 May 2007 by an
independent valuer.

(b) For the year ended 31 December 2007, amortisation of

W EBERAEIJUA T HE > BUE AL
() A R A (TR (R F
W E W E AR > EAE D) KR
FAHE AR BR 28 7 (A28 W) A ] 4 2 S
J& AR o AR B BRI TE AR L) BRI
BRW P EEEGBAERA A ([HRE
W) (HifG & o EmEw A RAA
YERE J7) w150 B E Wh ok > 558 R R
EARIINEID =N 3= Sl 1 DA N
TR 2E ([FZWED » W R AR
15,500,000 3% 70 (4B % A 49 120,900,000
woo) (FezftfEl)) -

WRAFFZY ENAE - A F B
BRI A TR BLE o B PG IR K R
W oEFEELFEAH =+ — H 481
H N TE 5% W 2 58 i AE R D iR
105,000,000 #5 JG 19 85 1% &8 S 5% A > 3
A B 58 AL H IR 1848 H 7Y B 4 5 it
A o

R TEEFLER A > AE M R E
KRR W - N AR (BT
E B B8 T e i 5 4 D) 49 7% 126,238,000
W oC o AR IR S AG R —FEE L
ERH=ZT—-HEZYWEZLE B
oy & AR B R (%940,131,000 #5
JC) KRR (4)86,107,000#7T) -

(b) BE-FELE+_H=Z+—HILFEE

T AL 2 E R RS Kk
R R 2 7 2 TR & Ak B 584,000 i
JC (B E N ) o

lease premium for land capitalised in construction in
progress under property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$584,000 (2006: Nil).
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

18. %X BEKZREFHE

Broadcast
Leasehold ~ Furniture operations Construc-
improve- and  and other Motor tion in
Buildings ments  fixtures equipment  vehicles  progress Total
HE HRR REBEK
LSBT B SR Wi ERIR #it
§000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
R T A T T
At 1 January 2006 R_ZBNE—A—H
Cost A - M0 2802 119612 9916 — 15649
Accumulated depreciation Zatne - (14,915) (2,206) (89,490) (5,361) - (111,972)
Net book amount IR (B - 9,205 036 30122 155 S M3
Year ended 31 December 2006 BE_FFRAFZH =+~ L4
Opening net book amount A - 9205 636 30122 4555 - #4518
Exchange differences W 5.7 3 - 104 11 645 (1) - 729
Additions RE 25,307 4348 110 17,624 1,768 36,706 85,863
Disposals i - - - - (110) - (110)
Depreciation 78 (352 (6,109) @37 (15013)  (1539) - @3
Impairment Wi - (256) (188) (233) - - (677)
Closing net book amount SR 24,955 7292 3 B 4683 36706 106950
At 31 December 2006 REREAEFZAZ,—H
Cost A 5307 28530 2888 136946 11501 36706 241878
Accumulated depreciation 2t E S
and impairment (352) (21,238) (2,550)  (103,924) (6,858) - (134928
Net book amount M (A 24955 7292 3 B 4643 36706 106,950
Year ended 31 December 2007 KE-FFLEF A =+~ H L
Opening net book amount A 24955 7292 330 B 4643 36,706 106950
Exchange differences W 5.7 3 - (127) 2 650 101 - 045
Additions (Note a and b) INE (W kD) 781 14,444 2350 20921 1,637 120148 170281
Disposals i - - - (203 (1,064) - (1267)
Depreciation T (133 (69%) (5200 (142%3)  (4330) - (4
Impairment Wi - (143) - (83) - - (226)
Transfer/reclassification iii}ﬁi%/ EHE (b L)
(Note b and c) 5,980 5,858 - - - (11,838) -
Closing net hook amount MR T { 30382 20329 2083 4005 10987 145016 248951
At 31 December 2007 REZZLEFZAZ+—H
Cost A 3068 48781 508 160779 19822 145016 411764
Accumulated depreciation ZRTERME
and impairment (1686) (84520 (3115)  (120725)  (8.83%) - (162813)
Net book amount TR 5 30382 20329 2183 4005 10987 145016 248951

Depreciation expense of HK$14,253,000 (2006: HK$15,136,000)
has been included in operating expenses, and HK$13,179,000
(2006: HK$8,237,000) in selling, general and administrative

expenses.

P8 2 1 14,253,000 #E 78 (FE N4 ¢ 15,136,000
Won) CRP AR E A > 13,179,000 70 (—
B INAE 18,237,000 J0) TrEE AR E - — %
FATBUCE A »
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

(continued)

(a)

Additions to construction in progress for the year ended
31 December 2007 include the building element of the
Property in the Tai Po Industrial Estate in Hong Kong
with cost of approximately HK$86,107,000 (Note 17(a)
(iii)) and cost of interior fitting out of approximately

HK$28,013,000.

On 23 June 2006, the Group entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement (the “Strategic Cooperation
Agreement”) and a barter agreement (the “Barter
Agreement”) with Mission Hills. According to the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement, the Group would provide
advertising airtime on its satellite television channels and
assist Mission Hills in the planning and promotion of the
corporate image and branding of Mission Hills by using
the Group’s resources and leading position in the media
industry. The contract term of the Strategic Cooperation
Agreement is five years from the date of the contract.

Under the Barter Agreement, Mission Hills transferred
the title, rights and interests of a villa in Mission Hills
in Residence development to the Group at a price of
approximately HK$98,000,000 and in exchange, the Group
would provide: (1) airtime for advertisements for five years
from the date of the Barter Agreement of an equivalent
value based on charging rates that are at a discount to the
Group’s normal rate card charges and (2) services related
to the planning and promotion of the corporate image and
branding of Mission Hills and its projects. The Group
took possession of the Villa in July 2006 and received title
in February 2007. Interior fitting out of the villa began
in 2007. The cost of the building portion of the villa of
approximately HK$25,307,000 together with fitting out
costs of HK$5,443,000 was included in construction in
progress during the year ended 31 December 2007.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
recognised revenue of approximately HK$9,825,000
(2006: HK$22,856,000) for services provided to
Mission Hills, and approximately HK$4,399,000 (2006:
HK$9,827,000) for airtime utilised. As at 31 December
2007, the unutilised value of airtime and services totaling
HK$51,137,000 has been recorded in deferred income in
the balance sheet.

18. ¥ - BMERREFZTE @

(a) MEZELLHFE T ZH =T —HIEEED
TS ETE i DR S A U RO L
Wy B AR > AR £ £ 86,107,000 s
JC (RLBR EE 17(a)(iii) ) J2 5B 618 B & £
28,013,000 #5 JC ©

(b) MZENFEANA T =H o AL MR
SCRT LB R (TR 15 PR T ok ) I
o Btk ([ Bk ]) o A2 5 1 1
w o AR [ TR A R A b R
7 IR BE > Sl 9 A R A 4R T R I A S
ESUE LS VAL e SN IDNEERLY 31
ST B K it Rt o O 5 A Bk e 19 5 T A
BR Y H 6T Sz TR) H RS R 2 0 T 4F -

M98 5 & i sk > B8 52 D) £998,000,000 ¥ JG
A 1] A A [ A LR v T R K
BERTEH v 2 — BT I BT 00 S0~ RER] A
%o AR B 54 > AREE PR AL (1) i ET
7 Gy B e HOBA AL FT A AR 0 ] S5 1 (E
JEE A IR B (R 48 e A 4 [ e — e 1 H Rk
B YT N AT R D K(2) A B R E
T B AR B 52 L TE A 1A 28 R L%
MRS o AREFEE A EENEL A A%
AEE S Sl LA A B R -
BN A L E R o
Al EE 1) 5 B A B AR £ 25,307,000 % IC K
B A S 443,000 LTI RIABE 2%
CEF A= B IHEE MR g IRENA -

BE ZZLE+T_HA=+—HILERE
A A R AR 1 T B 3 2 MRS T HE RR A £
9,825,000 % 7 (. EE N4 1 22,856,000 1
Jt) o Ht BB A 2 A R B AR A A B
4,399,000 #5 JC (= EE IS 4F 1 9,827,000 ¥
L) R ZEEELFETHEZT—H A
F51,137,000 % 70 11 2R A& 2 5 BE ARk
HORIAEE B ERPIIELEIANR -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 18. ¥ - BMERZEFE @

(continued)

(¢) The balance includes an amount of HK$30,848,000 (c) &5 fr G035 B A AL B 7T = 4 I

which relates to the Group’s entitlement to use 10,000
square meters in the Shenzhen Building (Note 17(a)(ii)).
The Building was completed in December 2006 and the
Group began fitting out its entitled areas in the Building.
Fitting out was completed in 2007 and the balance was
transferred from construction in progress to buildings
and leaschold improvements. The Group’s entitlement
to use was accounted for as a finance lease as at 31
December 2007. As at 31 December 2007, the cost of
this capitalised finance lease was HK$30,848,000 (2006:
HK$30,848,000) with a net book value of HK$30,382,000
(2006: HK$30,848,000). As at 31 December 2007, the
Group was in the process of obtaining the title certificate
to the 8,500 square meters of the entitled areas through
the payment of land premium and taxes (see Note 17(a)

(if)).

19. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities

19 10,000 7 75 K i F RE R A7 B 09 3K 3R
30,848,000 # o6 (B 5F 17(a)(ii)) ° #Z 4 F
A TRR A A A TE I AL B
IR B R ZM T R Al A IR - 1
A EEEEEN AR MR TR
W M O B AL o ARLEE T AW
AMAE R —FELFE+ =+ —
HARS 2R EME - R 2 F L4+
HA=+—H > &AL RE &R S A 5
30,848,000 #5 JC (~EZ XA 1 30,848,000
W or) o BRI VT (E 245 30,382,000 U0 (&
EINAE 130,848,000 90) o i TEE LA
TZH =B AR IE i S A
T Fod, JEUHE AT 22 4 RE I 19 °8,500 1 77 oK T
FE 2 FERER (AMEGE 17(a) (i) ©

19. RABEZEHERNKRE

2007 2006
e L
$’000 $000
T Tt
Unlisted investments, at cost, beginning of the year I LW - AT
FH 13,246 11,972
Capital injection into a jointly controlled entity OECEZY N4 R <y - 1,274
Unlisted investments, at cost, end of the year JEEHHRE > ARSI
RS 13,246 13,246
Less: provision for impairment U Ul (L T A (472) (472)
Less: share of jointly controlled entities’ results — net loss Ul A ] 2 )
SR — 1R A (4,491) (3,424)
Unlisted investments, net, end of the year JE EHRCE R K 8,283 9,350
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19. RERBEZEFHERBNKRE @)

19. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities

(continued)

R EE AR T = By Sk fE] 2 R

Details of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 December

2007 were as follows: FEEINR
Percentage Issued and fully
of equity paid share
Place and date of Place of Principal interest held  capital/registered
Name incorporation operation activity by the Group capital
ARSI E o7 R
il i FA I RA B IBA
4 g K H B B =3 MR T A 1L Rl 7 A
China Global British Virgin British Virgin Dormant 50% US$2
Television Limited Islands, Islands W fie s 2 2FEIC
B B Bk 18 October 2001 KB R L
BHARAF B LRSS B
“ET
+A+AH
Ao a2 The PRC, The PRC Dormant 40% RMB1,250,000
SULBEE 27 June 2003 Y s 3 NG
AR A T 1,250,000 7
e 2 s
ANAZTEH
JE s [F] 25 45 The PRC, The PRC Advertising 45% RMB30,000,000
R A PR 7 January 2005 H business in radio NG
(Note a) HE broadcasting 30,000,000 7C
(Hfita) CERELAE industry
—H+LtH in the PRC
I 2 A%
B AREN

JBE o S
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19. REREZEFERNKRE @)

19. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities

(continued)

(a) On 8 June 2007, Hong Kong Phoenix Satellite Television (a) A EEELFENHI/NH - AN A M2
- g

Limited (“Hong Kong Phoenix”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement (the
“Agreement”) with 4t 5% B #5 22 7] and CBC Advertising
Limited pursuant to which the registered capital of Jb
5[] 25 B 4 G A PR A Al will be increased from
RMB30,000,000 to RMB44,600,000. According to the
Agreement, the increase in capital is to be contributed
by Hong Kong Phoenix and CBC Advertising Limited as
to RMB2,110,000 and RMB12,488,000, respectively.
Subject to certain conditions, Hong Kong Phoenix and
CBC Advertising Limited will have to inject no less than
RMB422,000 and RMB2,497,600, respectively, five days
prior to the application for the capital increment with the
relevant authorities in Mainland China and must inject
the remaining funds within one month after the issuance
of the business licence reflecting the capital increment.

Immediately after the capital increment, the registered
capital of Jt 5t [F] 2 Ji & £ A PR 2 H owned by the
Group, dt 5 BE 4% /A 7] and CBC Advertising Limited
will change from 45%, 55% and 0% to 35%, 37% and 28%

respectively.

O R 2 ) A i SRR A AR AT BR A D ([ A s
JB\ L A AR ]) BRI I R A R B A b R
HHEBAAEE iR (&R
P UL L 3T [ 25 B A (5 A PR | S A
A N R 30,000,000 7T 8 A0 &= A R HE
44,600,000 7T ° M9 % h ik > & ik LR B
Te A Vo SEURE A5 A BR A |51 4 Tl 44 o N R
2,110,000 76 & A 12,488,000 7€ © HR 4%
T T ARAT > F s BR R AR A LR R
FRL 2 i A9 2R ) Hp B A B R R B T
HH A RNEAR DI N R 422,000 76 K
NEHE 2,497,600 7T > A E 7 48 A7 B &
M E B —MARNTEAHLRES - B
Wi 3 B A% > AREE - LR A A KA L
BREA R A A LT R 2 % E
R 2% ) 0 G A 43 Al B 45% ~ 55% B 0%
PR 35% ~ 37% M 28% ©
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19. Investments in Jointly Controlled Entities 19. REEZEH EE IR E @)

(continued)

(a) (continued) (a) (#%)
As of 31 December 2007, the Group and CBC Advertising PEEEELEL A= —H AR R
Limited are in the process of obtaining the approvals from Ao S JBE  A BRA w)  TE J HG EEAR h
relevant Mainland Chinese government departments for A B EUN B FTRHLUE > B A% & 5l R 19
the capital increment and none of the additional capital bt 6] 25 B 5 R A PR W) 0 AT ol B AT
has been injected into db 5% [F] 25 B % 8L 4% A B ] by B o
the joint venture parties.
Unaudited combined financial information of the jointly F ] P ) EE 00 R A A% A O B R
controlled entities was as follows: o
2007 2006
—RELE TERENAE
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Assets: R
Non-current assets T E) G 229 267
Current assets MENEE 20,954 22,271
21,183 22,538
Liabilities: Ff
Current liabilities it B A i 110 285
110 285
Net assets R 21,073 22,253
Income PN 20,687 -
Expenses i (23,009) (3,427)
Loss after income tax [ B 159 B8 4% 65 18 (2,322) (3,427)
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s 7R A TR NI B 74 3 (] 42 7 B A 0 HE 4 A B Y
interests in the jointly controlled entities, and no AT A =S AT o T A () 42 ) B A B S AT ]
contingent liabilities of the jointly controlled entities AR

themselves.
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20. BRI E T WMBETA

A TRA & FHECRC R LR & 0A

20. Financial Instruments by Category

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been
applied to the line items below:

Group

A KL
Financial
assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
Loans and profit financial
receivables or loss assets Total
AT
BRAR
AR ] A a
W g W st
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Assets per consolidated balance sheet a8 E R ERIIR I B
31 December 2007 ZERLEF A=A
Available-for-sale financial assets S E - - 962 962
Financial assets at fair value AT EERB S DIRY
through profit or loss (Note 21) WS R (M 21) - 76,638 - 76,638
Loans and receivables SR EOR 120,260 - - 120,260
Accounts receivable (Note 12) TR (Wt 12) 34,289 - - 34,289
Prepayments, deposits and FRFOR - des R
other receivables (Note 13) MECHR (7 1 %') 449,551 - - 449,551
Amounts due from related companies WE [&ﬁ B T FOR 3,840 - - 3,840
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) S RBSEHEER (7 25) 531,257 - - 531,257
Total st 1,139,197 76,638 962 1,216,797
31 December 2006 ZEEAET A —H
Available-for-sale financial assets G I A - - 962 962
Financial assets at fair value through N TE B R 4 AR
profit or loss (Note 21) B (Mt 21) - 102,506 - 102,506
Loans and receivables BB ME N R 69,136 - - 69,136
Accounts receivable (Note 12) WEWEE (/J?']‘pf /2/ 70,938 - - 70,938
Prepayments, deposits and TR ~ 154 R
other receivables (Note 13) WE WO (7 13) 407,376 - - 407,376
Amounts due from related companies T NSO R 4 7] O 38 - - 38
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) He kB % HE E (H7t25) 543,417 - - 543,417
Total At 1,090,905 102,506 962 1,194,373




20. Financial Instruments by Category (continued)

PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT ElEE®RFH 2007 151

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements £ & Bt & SRR M 5E

20. RERHE PN E TR @

Other financial liabilities Total
FAth BA 5 AR At
$'000 $°000
T3t T3t
Liabilities per consolidated balance sheet PR E A R RIIR M AR
31 December 2007 CEEEFEF H=+—H
Accounts payable, other payables and accruals JREASF B~ oAt AT 3 TE
Je e 106,736 106,736
Deferred income AT A 95,365 95,365
Amounts due to related companies JEAHA B 48 N R 3RO 3,506 3,506
Total Hast 205,607 205,607
31 December 2006 CEEARNFT _H=Z+—H
Accounts payable, other payables and accruals JREASE B~ JH A JE AT 3K T
KERE 2 A 119,378 119,378
Deferred income RAE WA 119,580 119,580
Amounts due to related companies A AT B N W) 3R 4,743 4,743
Total Hast 243,701 243,701
Company A
Loans and
Receivables
$'000
T
Assets as per balance sheet A A R MR B R
31 December 2007 “EZEELHE T _H=+—H
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) e MBS EER (Wit25) 336
31 December 2006 CEERFET H=+—H
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) W4 MBS EER (i 25) 7,458

Other financial liabilities

Fo At S B £ 65
$°000
Tt
Liabilities as per balance sheet A A R MR B £ A
31 December 2007 CEEELFT _H=1+—H
Other payables and accruals Al 8 A 3K TR B 2 150
31 December 2006 ZERENETH=1T—H
Other payables and accruals At 1 AT 2 T e T 154
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21. Financial Assets at Fair Value through 21. BAFEEBERETRD
Profit or Loss MBEE

2007 2006

=FF L4 TERERAF

$'000 $'000

Tt Tt

Unlisted investments at fair value JEEHE - A TEYIR 76,638 102,506
Less: Non-current portion W R WA (39,757) (80,027)

36,881 22,479
The above investments were designated as fair value through b T A A A e R IR A SE S 1R PE A
profit or loss on initial recognition. Investments with a maturity A A R AR Y WS A o FR bR H R E 0 H
longer than one year at the inception date are classified as AR BCE T BE R ARGy o A TEE
non-current. Changes in fair values (realised and unrealised) i 18 75 RO AR Y S ) B B R s LN T
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are H 52 8 TrRl AR A 35 TP A ATE R (B S) -

recognised in other income in the income statement (Note 5).

As these investments are not publicly traded and in the absence F 7 5% S 50T AN 2 B L R Bk = m ) B A )
of readily available information to determine the fair values R DL R RGN AT A B B IR
of these investments, the Group has adopted the indicative ANEEAT N R B0 F8 7R T B BB AR B i S IR

market value provided by the issuers as its best estimate of the I AP -
fair values of these investments.
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- - . - S e ﬁ
22. Credit Quality of Financial Assets 22. IBEENEEEER
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past A8 1 I 0 7 00 A AR I R b B (L ) A 5 )
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to historical FRERWSEARLHH T EHE RS
information about counterparty default rates: R LLREAY
Accounts receivable JAE WA e 3K
2007 2006
=ZF Ui TERTNAE
$’000 $000
Tt Tt
Counterparties without external credit rating WA SIS AR 22 5 B T
Group 1 A — 29 10,671
Group 2 Al — 34,260 60,267
Total accounts receivable W BR Sk AR %A 34,289 70,938
Group 1 — new customers (less than 6 months) with no AR —— 1 R R AR ERNFEF
business relationships in the past. (D78 )
Group 2 — existing customers with no defaults in the past. APl ==K EL N RAEF
Cash and cash equivalents Bla KBl &S EEA
Ratings of banks at which cash and deposits are held by rating SRR B TAE A SRAT 1 W AR AR B A
agencies. 17 e
Group Company
A4 AT
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEFLE CEENAE e 2 s CERTNAE
$’°000 $000 $’°000 $'000
T Too T T
AA AA 75,648 49,256 280 7,402
A A 14,251 7,306 56 56
A- A— 52,415 53,808 — -
BBB BBB 261,510 215,116 — -
Others (Note a) HoA (ftita) 126,987 216,640 - -
530,811 542,126 336 7,458

Note a:  Others represented cash held at banks without credit rating. Miita - AR B RAES R SRATREAT I B4 -
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22.

Credit Quality of Financial Assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

22.

MREENEEEERZ @)

RO ME WK I

2007 2006
—FFLE —e S
$’000 $000
T Tt
AA AA - 38,794
A— A- - 30,342
BBB BBB 21,090 -
Others (Note b) Hotb (mtatp) 99,170 -
120,260 69,136

Note b: Others represented short-term deposits placed at banks Bitath o FABFE AR ARAEAS ALY SRAT B LA 3K -

without credit rating.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2 AP A 75 3 4R 2 e M 1 0 O

2007 2006

ZRERLE TREINAF

$’000 $'000

+It Tt

AA AA 24,748 22,479
A A 51,890 80,027
76,638 102,506

None of the financial assets that are fully performing has been

renegotiated in the last year.

E7E 22 T AT B B 55 2 I 2% 47 I M T LA E B

TET -
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T B B 2~ B) 9 2 11 I R LW — T Y BB

NCIE/SEb: 3]

Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due 23.
from a Subsidiary, Net

23.

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as

Company
AT

2007 2006
.
$’000 $'000
T BT
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note a) IE LR > Fe A (Ffata) - —
Amount due from a subsidiary, net (Note b) JRE e — FH] B T 2 7] SKSELIF AR (WA D) 1,117,649 1,170,216
1,117,649 1,170,216

(a) RZFFELEFTHA=Z+—HBMEL A

follows: RN
Issued and
Percentage of fully paid
equity interest share capital/
held by the registered
Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity AR B 5 ORI R
Name W R b B Place of operation Principal activities JBe A R 25 BOLA
# & E AU egisiE RE S [Eig’ HANE
Phoenix Satellite Television Hong Kong, Hong Kong Provision of management and 100% HKS$20
Company Limited limited liability company 7t related services 203 7T
BEARHARAR (R f e A B
AL AR
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong Satellite television broadcasting 100% US$1
(Chinese Channel) Limited limited liability company % i i B B R 170
BRERECAARAT  REEAHE
HIREAEA
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong Satellite television broadcasting 100% Uss1
(Movies) Limited limited liability company 7 % i B B BT
BEEHEY A AR KRELHS
HIREAEA T
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Trademark holding 100% USs1
Trademark Limited limited liability company %< J& & B 5 FEA T 170

BB EARAR

Bl RE RS
A IRFE R ]
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23. Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due

from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

(a)

NERIEFE @

23. RME QAR R KR — B

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as (a) M _FEEEF+H=1+—HWKHIELH
follows: (continued) FEIE IR - (8D
Issued and
Percentage of fully paid
equity interest share capital/
held by the registered
Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity AR5 c#Tk
Name Al A1tk o 4 5 Place of operation Principal activities g A i 25 WA/
#iE & E AU B RES [Eg’ AL A
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin [slands Investment holding 100% USs1
(Europe) Limited limited liability company 3 & & Bt 5 fid et e 1E78
AL RO & A PR ] B i
ARFAL AR
PCNE Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 70% USS1,000
limited liability company % J& 4 B & RGP 1,000 370
Yol R L RES
HIRFEALAF
Phoenix Chinese News & The United Kingdom, The United Kingdom  Satellite television broadcasting 70% £9,831,424
Entertainment Limited limited liability company ~ 3% T L E B 9,831,424 B gk
e
HIREAEAH
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% USS1
Information Limited limited liability company % j& 4 B 5 BE R 170
AR A R KBE LR
HIREAEAH
PHOENIXi Investment Limited  British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 94.3% US$123,976
(Note a (i) (Hfita (i) limited liability company % % & Bt 5 B (Ordinary shares)
SR G T US$7,500
ARFAL AR (Series A preferred
shares)
123976 %It
(% 4 o)
7,500 %7
(AR
PHOENIXi, Inc. The United States of The United States of Dormant 94.3% US$0.1
America, limited America W A 2 0.1%7C
liability company FAEA R

F MBS R
A IRFE R
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23. Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due

from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

23. RMEBLARANERRER—BEHE

NEREFE @

RoEELEF A=+ — HOWEA A
T ()

(a)  Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as (a)
follows: (continued)

Percentage of
equity interest
held by the

Issued and
fully paid
share capital/

registered

Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity AR B 5 CEITR
Name S A o o 2 Place of operation Principal activities M ARE 25 s A/
iR I H R B ER S+ [EFix: ik g A
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% USs1
(B.V.1) Holding Limited limited liability company %< J& & B 5 fidsitl e 1578
(Note a (ii)) S A
BB A RA R HIREA AT
(Hfita (i)
Phoenix Weekly Magazine British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% USs1
(B.V.I.) Limited limited liability company 32 & & Bt 5 ita2eeds IESH
Yl A RE RS
HIRE AT
Hong Kong Phoenix Weekly Hong Kong, Hong Kong Publishing and distribution 77% HK$100
Magazine Limited limited liability company % i of periodicals 10070
7 JE A A7 PR ik ST
ARFHAR
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, Hong Kong Satellite television broadcasting 100% US$1
(InfoNews) Limited limited liability company % ifs T E B 170
JBBRH E N A A RA A KBRS
ARTHEAR
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% Uss1
Development (BVI) Limited limited liability company % & & & B 5 RGP 170
0 el
HIREAEAF
Phoenix Satellite Television Hong Kong, Hong Kong Investment holding 100% HK$2
Development Limited limited liability company 75 BB 2T
LB A RA R R
HIREA AT
Guofeng On-line (Beijing) The PRC, The PRC Internet services 94.3% US$500,000
Information Technology limited liability company [l IR 500,000 3 70
Company Limited ]
B B A (I ) £ B ol ARAEEAR

AR
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23. RME QAR R KR — B

NERIEFE @

23. Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due
from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

AT ERELET A=+ H KB A
FEIEMS ¢ ()

(a)  Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as (a)

follows: (continued)

Percentage of

equity interest

Issued and
fully paid

share capital/

held by the registered
Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity A i E#Tk
Name T R b B R Place of operation Principal activities TR ARE 25 sERA
< E TR EE TR Fa ik REMHEA
Phoenix Film and Television The PRC, The PRC Ancillary services for 60% HK$10,000,000
(Shenzhen) Company Limited limited liability company programme production 10,000,000 ¥ 7
JBEUEAL (BRI A7 PR ] I i B S SR M
LSS GRAT
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% USS1
(Universal) Limited limited liability company % ji 4 B 5 B 1%70
Y AR
LS G
Phoenix Satellite Television The United States of The United States of Provision of management and 100% US$1
(U.S.) Inc. America, limited America promotional related services 1 %70
liability company FHBA R AL T I R A0 AR
M B R B
HIREAEAF
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, Taiwan Programme production 100% Uss1
(Taiwan) Limited limited liability company £ ¥ i {1 1£7T
AR A A PR BB R AT
HIREAE AT
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, British Virgin [slands Dormant 100% USs1
Investments (BVI) Limited limited liability company %< J& 4 B 5 g% 1£78
YIRS
HIREA AT
Hong Kong Phoenix Satellite Hong Kong, Hong Kong Investment holding 100% HKS2
Television Limited limited liability company % it BE e 28T
ik AR A RA R i
LSS GRAT
Phoenix Glow Limited British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Provision of agency services 100% USs1
BEZ A RAT limited liability company % Ji 4 B 5 AR IR 1%7T

SR B B
R
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23.

from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

(a)

Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due

NEREFE @

23. RMEBLARANERRER—BEHE

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as (a) M FEEELFE+H=1+—HWKHIELH
follows: (continued) FEIB AR ¢ (D)
Issued and
Percentage of fully paid
equity interest share capital/
held by the registered
Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity AR i CEITR
Name A R B R Place of operation Principal activities TR ARE 25 MERA
# T E TR B B Fa Al REMHEA
Shenzhen Wutong Shan Television  The PRC, The PRC Programme production 54% RMBS5,000,000
Broadcasting Limited limited liability company ~ H[&] i H 84 1 5,000,000 76
PRI RE o L) S50 4 i
HHRA HREAEAH
Phoenix Global Television Limited  British Virgin Islands, British Virgin Islands Investment holding 100% US$1
BRI B AR limited liability company 5 J& 5 & Ji K BEZER 170
e ey
HIREAEA
Fenghuang On-line (Beijing) The PRC, The PRC Internet services 100% US$1,850,000
Information Technology limited liability company [l H IR 1,850,000 3 JG
Company Limited Lt
BE S (st f2 B 4k HRHEHEAT
HIRAF
Phoenix Pictures Limited Hong Kong, Hong Kong Dormant 100% HKS$1
R R RAF limited liability company 7t W imi 2 10
il
HIRFHE R
Phoenix Media and Broadcast Malaysia, Malaysia Satellite television broadcasting 70% RM1,000,000
Sdn Bhd limited liability company & 3¢ 25 R B 1,000,000 5 ¥
A
HIRFEALAT
Phoenix Centre (Hong Kong) Hong Kong, Hong Kong Property holding 100% HKS1
Limited limited liability company % i WIS 17T
JBRAD (Fi) AIRAF FiE
HREAEAH
Green Lagoon Investments British Virgin Islands, The PRC Property holding 100% US$1
Limited limited liability company ~ #1 [ MR 157
AW B A AT KRELRS

HRFHEAR
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23. RME QAR R KR — B

NERIEFE @

23. Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due
from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

AT ERELET A=+ H KB A
FEIEMS ¢ ()

(a)  Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007 were as (a)

follows: (continued)

Issued and
Percentage of

fully paid

equity interest share capital/

held by the registered
Place of incorporation Group capital
and kind of legal entity A i E#Tk
Name SR o b B S Place of operation Principal activities T A 25 HRERA/
# E TR EE FHEH Fa ik REMHEA
Phoenix Publications Hong Kong, The PRC Dormant 100% HKS$1
(Hong Kong) Limited limited liability company o 1T
BRI AL (B ) FIRAR Ak
LSS GRAT
Phoenix Outdoor Media Hong Kong, The PRC Outdoor media business 75% HK$100
Company Limited (Note a (i) limited liability company 7 41 g5 e 37 100 7T
JERJELFS S B A R i
(Wit atiio) HREAL A
Phoenix Satellite Television British Virgin Islands, The PRC Property holding 100% USS1
Company Limited limited liability company 1[5 MESA 1590
IR RRA IR KBELREE
HIREAEA
Phoenix News Media Limited Cayman Islands The PRC Dormant 100% US$0.01
LT L RS ) b & T 5 e LRy e 0.01 3870
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23.

Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due
from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

Notes:

(a)

ii.

PHOENIXi Investment Limited is currently undergoing

liquidation.

Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.1.) Holding Limited is
directly held by the Company, while all other subsidiaries
are indirectly held by the Company through Phoenix
Satellite Television (B.V.I.) Holding Limited.

On 22 June 2007, Phoenix Satellite Television Company
Limited (“Phoenix Television”) signed a cooperation
agreement with Regal Fame Investments Ltd. (“Regal
Fame”) to form a Hong Kong company, Phoenix Outdoor
Media Company Limited (“Phoenix Outdoor Media”),
which would then set up a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
(“WOFE”) in Mainland China to develop the outdoor
media business. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
and Regal Fame would each contribute HK$35,000,000 to
Phoenix Outdoor Media and would hold equity interests in
Phoenix Outdoor Media of 75% and 25% respectively. Any
additional capital injection in excess of HK$70,000,000
is to be shared equally by the Group and Regal Fame up
to a total capital injection of HK$100,000,000, and any
capital injection balance above HK$100,000,000 is to be
contributed by the Group and Regal Fame in accordance

with their respective equity interest of 75% and 25%.

As of 31 December 2007, the total capital of
HK$70,000,000 had been paid up by Phoenix Television

and Regal Fame respectively.

The excess of the Group’s share of the net assets of
Phoenix Outdoor Media (HK$52,500,000) over the cost
of the Group’s investment (HK$35,000,000) amounting to
HK$17,500,000 on formation of Phoenix Outdoor Media
has been recognised as income and included in “Other
gains” in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

23. RMEBLARANERRER—BEHE

= = o] -
A B FRIE FEE (@)
Kt -
(a) i. PHOENIXi Invetment Limited B IF 75 #E 1T 1§

R -

i, JAARERERARAF AR HESA
7T A H A B 2 ) Bl A 2 ) 925 ot JeL e
TS A R F A -

i, M OEEEAENH A H BUREEA
B2 (T B 7 AR 28 7] ) B v B R
P2 ([ o ) %5 28 6 1 B ok DA S —
FAT A A B S A A B2 (L
FANEERE 1) H AR BURL S A1 R R b
T b 5 ST — FR A0 T A 2 (T A 1
) DAEEJRE P OAMEEHE 2T o AR IR LI
AR ) B v A A ) JBVELF AN
35,000,000 ¥ 7T » Sf7 ¥ H A< 2 ] K v 245
TR BT AN 759% K 25% W REASHE 35
it 70,000,000 5 I 19 AT A A 4 G Hh A
2 Jo P B SY R EMBRZ A
i 100,000,000 % JC > 1Ml & 1 100,000,000 #
TG AT AR 1 45 1 P A R ] R v e IR
WS B 75% X 25% M I ARE R AE AR A -

AEREELFET A S —H o MEARHE
70,000,000 %5 76 £ 43 Al H JBU B A A /) B o
BOE -

(R 7 BB 5 A I B AR R AL A
I (52,500,000 % 7T) H H A< 4 [ 8 #H
(35,000,000 # ¢) 19545 > Bl 17,500,000 #
JG o CHERR AR A M FE A E R R LA
TZA = H IR E NS A s AT H
fisie s JTH T o
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23.

24,

Interests in Subsidiaries and Amount due
from a Subsidiary, Net (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b)  Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest

bearing and repayable on demand.
g pay

(c)  The Company has undertaken to provide the necessary financial
resources to support the future operations of the subsidiaries
within the Group. The Directors are of the opinion that the
underlying value of the subsidiaries was not less than the

carrying amount of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2007.

Accounts Payable, Other Payables and

23. RME QAR R KR — B

NERIEFE @

Mt - ()
(b)  REASCBEFJag 2 Rk IE 25y SEHEAT 0 5 R R A o

(c) AR 2% ALK R B A3k a0 B2 B VR A S A A 4 T A
V1 B 2 R I R AR I o SRR Sy o B A R
AR B R (S R B 2 ) B AR
H=+—H R -

24, FEHERF - HittENSFE R ES

&

Accruals IE
2007 2006
R
$'000 $000
Tt Tt
Accounts payable JRE AF i 3K 12,740 10,253
Other payables and accruals A AT R T K T OE 93,996 109,125
106,736 119,378

The ageing analysis of the accounts payable is as follows:

JREARK MR AR B R 3 AT A

2007 2006

ZRR L CEFINAE

$’000 $'000

Toe Tt

0-30 days 0%30H 8,138 5,234
31-60 days 31260 H 1,875 1,286
61-90 days 61290 H 534 593
91-120 days 91 & 120 H 466 13
Over 120 days 120 HEL | 1,727 3,127
12,740 10,253

The carrying amounts of accounts payable, other payables and

accruals approximate their fair values.

AT SR~ A B A 5 L o K I R 1
S ARAT
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Cash and Cash Equivalents 25. REeRAELZEER
Group Company
A4 A H]
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERRLH TERFNRA ZEREFLE ZEERNA
$'000 $'000 $’000 $'000
Tt Tt T Tt
Cash at bank and in hand SRAT I F U 4 385,690 144,887 336 7,458
Short-term bank deposits FLHASRAT AR 145,567 398,530 - -
531,257 543,417 336 7,458
Maximum exposure to credit risk I K A5 B 530,811 542,126 - -
Denominated in: DL A B R

— HK$ — T 255,406 16,573 211 5,623
— RMB — NR¥ 81,184 82,036 — —
- US$ —%£IT 186,543 435,119 125 1,835
— Other currencies — HoAh & 8,124 9,689 — —
531,257 543,417 336 7,458

The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
3.59% (2006: 4.61%); these deposits have an average maturity
of 6 days.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in
hand and short-term bank deposits for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statement.

S ERATAT R B AR 5 3.59% (R E KA
4.61%) > SR T THERMH Ko H o

MG BERRERNE - BHe MBRe%FHEEA
ELFESRAT B e T BRI 8 DA S S SR AT A7 K
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26. Loans and Receivables 26. ER R EWFIE
2007 2006
ZRFLE TERE N
$’000 $'000
T Tt

Certificate of deposit (Note a) 173 (Mt a) — 30,342

Unlisted securities (Note b) JE BT EESE (At b) - 38,794

Short-term deposits (Note c) FLAE S (B 7 ) 120,260 -

120,260 69,136

Less: Current portion W A AR (120,260) (69,136)

(a) Certificate of deposit represented deposit placed with (a) FFAKRBIRAFIT — WSRAT IR —FF L4
a bank which matured in October 2007 and is stated at + H BRI T B S ARSI R -
amortised cost.

(b) Unlisted securities are securities with determinable (b) FE b T R 5 T B S A R T s AT LS A IS
payments that are not quoted in an active market issued R T 5 R A 0 T W ST AR R R R S o
by a financial institution. Unlisted securities are stated at I LT R SR TG O AR R -
amortised cost.

(¢) Short-term bank deposits represents bank deposits with a (c) FLINERATAF I8 BAAA 2 H BB A
maturity date exceeding 90 days but not exceeding 1 year 90 HH AR — 4 ZRATAFK o
from the date of making the deposit.

27. Share Capital 27. B
2007 2006
—FFLE TEENRE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
Jit K Ji B X
$’000 $'000
Tt Tt
Authorised: B
Ordinary share of $0.1 each BB 0.1 # T
W50 e 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ST RAE

At 1 January w—A—H 4,942,126,000 494,213 4,938,666,000 493,867

Exercise of share options A7 A8 5 A 8,296,000 829 3,460,000 346

At 31 December Rt—H=+—H 4,950,422,000 495,042 4,942,126,000 494213




PHOENIX ANNUAL REPORT ElE#E®RFH 2007 165

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %4 B & R M st

28.

Share Options

The Company has several share option schemes under which
it may grant options to employees of the Group (including
Executive Directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares
of the Company. Options are granted and exercisable in

8. IR

AR T BAT B B R R B o AR R A
EHEREE (BFALFANPATES) 2T
U A ) B A ) U PR T ) U B T 4%
A7 B w B SRS B AR AT (o AR 2 Sl A ] ik

accordance with the terms set out in the relevant schemes. The JE BCHE S PR BT A 4 0 ] sl 4% O T IO o
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or
settle the options in cash.

IR AT 6 i PSR D ) 5 Bl R AR B i - 2947

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and

their related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: RS T
2007 2006
—FF L —

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options

BRI BT
(RREEC i P A (RRL I FBC A
Wt $'000 It $000
Tt Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 1.09 48,236 1.11 54,378
Granted 2 1.45 12,922 - -
Exercised CA7fi 1.08 (8,296) 1.07 (3,460)
Lapsed B 1.44 (520) 1.49 (2,682)
At 31 December BH=ZA=+—H 1.18 52,342 1.09 48,236

As at 31 December 2007, out of the 52,342,000 outstanding
options (2006: 48,236,000 options), 39,920,000 (2006:
48,236,000) were exercisable. Options exercised in 2007
resulted in 8,296,000 shares (2006: 3,460,000 shares) being
issued at HK$1.08 each (2006: HK$1.07). The related
weighted average share price at the time of exercise was

HK$1.82 (2006: HK$1.27) per share.

B TEEELHE+ T H =+ —H 52,342,000
By (B EZ N 48,236,000 43 M B HE) 47 (H
IR 5 BE A > 39,920,000 14 I B BE (B E N
4F 1 48,236,000) AT TAT(E o A R E LT
) B I ME B B g I T 108 s T (R E
AR T 1.07 W I0) #2517 8,296,000 BT Ay (&
A 13,460,000 8 BEA) o R AT {8 IRE (9 AR BE
WEST- 24 IR A 5 B3 B 1.82 6 U0 (B /N4 & 1.27
#IT) o
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28.

Share Options (continued)

Share options outstanding (in '000) at the end of the year have

the following expiry dates and exercise prices:

& IR A ()

T A R AT T B (AT B2 BELA60) 1) 31300 H
FeAT T

Share options

Exercise price I R E
Expiry date HKS$ per share 2007 2006
FHIH g AT “RRUE TERENGF
oI '000 '000
T Tk
13 June 2010 SRR A T =H 1.08 32,210 37,140
14 February 2011 —E—-—FZH+WMH 1.99 500 500
9 August 2011 ZEZ——FNAJLH 1.13 6,210 9,124
19 December 2012 ZE - TZAT LA 0.79 1,000 1,472
25 March 2017 “E -t =A== +THH 1.45 12,422 -
52,342 48,236

The weighted average fair value of options granted during
2007 determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model was
HK$0.4 per option (2006: N/A). The significant inputs into
the model were weighted share price of HK$1.42 (2006: N/A),
at the grant date, the exercise price shown above, volatilities
ranged from 32.95% to 44.55% (2006: N/A), dividend yield
of 0.99% (2006: N/A), an expected option life of 4 to 7 years
on annual risk-free interest rates ranged from 4.667% to
4.748% (2006: N/A). The volatilities measured at the standard
deviation of continuously compounded share returns are based
on statistical analysis of daily share prices over the last 208-

week to 364-week.

TR A T A5 I TSR N R ST N T T 4%
F1 T3 Se—&7 BT AG E A 0T - AR H A
G M RAE0 4 TE (S BEANE  RBH) o
FAUARFE A ) EEIEE 2 B % 3 H
INEME RS 1 42300 (FENE  REH) b
SCHT R ATAEAG ~ B A 5 32.95% % 44.55% (—
TR A > BB 20.99% (—F
TN AN~ Al E G RE AR B 2 B AR
T A8 JEL B AF I 2R A N 4.667% 2 4.748% (—F %
PN R ) o R AEAE A R0y A e o
w1 U TG AR B de 4T 208 JB) & 364 JE 1Y A H
BEAE R ARt -
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29. Reserves 29. &
Movement in the reserves of the Company during the year was AN FRAER RS T
as follows:
Employee
Share share-based Accumulated
premium  payment reserve deficit Total
@ B DL A
T8 3 i 15 A B RitiE#H Hgt
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
At31 December 2005 REEERFF A= R 782,128 - (41,634) 740,494
Exercise of share options Gid 3ie 3,367 - - 3,367
Loss for the year R - - (1,276) (1,276)
Dividends paid relating to 2005 B RR AR EBE (59,278) - - (59,278)
At 31 December 2006 RE-EERET A=A 726,217 - (42,910) 683,307
Exercise of share options Gd e 8,139 - - 8,139
Loss for the year I R - - (1,287) (1,287)
Dividends paid relating to 2006 BZZRANFEHRME M RE (69,243) - - (69,243)
Employee share-based payment EBERD X HMFE - 1,877 - 1,877
At 31 December 2007 RE-ZRZLEFZA=Z1—H 665,113 1,877 (44,197) 622,793

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company, share premium of the Company is available for
distribution to equity holders. As at 31 December 2007, in the
opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity holders, comprising the share premium
account and accumulated deficit, amounted to approximately

HK$620,916,000 (2006: approximately HK$683,307,000).

HRE BH 2 B B 8 Al 3L (BB RT) 28 34k AR
Al EEFR AN AN > AR 2N E) ) R v T A UR T RE
HEFEAEN R EEEEFT _H=+—H> &
HRB L Al IR T £ A A AR LS F e
(CBLFE B 1y Jan 1 AR I B2 51 S 4R) £9 55 620,916,000
L (CEZINAE ¢ £)683,307,000%70) ©
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30. Deferred Income Tax

Deferred taxation for the year ended 31 December 2007 is
calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability
method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%).
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The
Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$447,000,000 as at
31 December 2007 (2006: HK$423,000,000) to carry forward
against future taxable income. Approximately HK$432,000,000
(2006: HK$403,000,000) of the unrecognised tax losses have
no expiry date and the remaining balance will expire at various
dates up to and including 2026.

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements & &

30.

P RS ERaR M EE

IEFE FR 1B

BWEEZLFE+H =+ — H IR
%RIEJHETJ“‘E{ R R R R
17.5% (" E BN 1 17.5%) (ER B -
MLW%HEié”:?)bﬂitﬁﬁ“nﬁzmlﬁﬁéﬁaf’ﬁﬂjﬁﬁ
B> ME DL AT RE 2 A R Al RE R B Thk A PT A5 2 2 A
BB B it 2 B o AN —FR-LHE+ A
=+ Ezﬁ%ﬁﬁa B &R 40 B 447,000,000 s

JC (U FEINAE 423,000,000 # 8) > 0] 451 L
HEEH AP ERR BN 5 A R HERR 2 BLBS s iE
#1432,000,000 % 76 (- EZ IS4 1 403,000,000
W on) N SR H > TR R E N
F(EIERZAE) M2 8 H I E -

TP A A F A S R % A B (7 R [
— R L [ Y A5 BR AT A0 F

Accelerated
Deferred income tax liabilities tax depreciation
T A JT 45 B AL Jov 32k A3 2 Py
2007 2006
“RR LA ZERFRNE
$'000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 January w—H—H 1,213 963
Charged to the consolidated income statement AUkt R 4,695 250
At 31 December WrZHA=+—H 5,908 1,213
Decelerated
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses tax depreciation Total
AR A P B B BE B At
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
“EFRLE ZERRE RFEE ZFFAFE CERFLE _FEARE
$’000 $000 $°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
T Tt T T T TIu
At 1 January #—A—H (11,545) (963) (688) - (12,233) (963)
Charged/(Credited) to the e/ GEA) A k%
consolidated income statement 3,793 (10,582) 168 (688) 3,961 (11,270)
At 31 December wrZA=+—H (7,752) (11,545) (520) (688) (8,272) (12,233)
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31.

Cash Generated from Operations
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3. REXBELENRE

Reconciliation of profit from operations to net cash inflow from R i ) B

operating activities

2007 2006
—ERFLE TRTNE
$000 $000
Tt Tt
Profit before income tax 53 T A5 B4 i Ve A 329,174 245,825
Amortisation of lease premium for land I M B A A 1,986 540
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BB KT 25,544 23,373
Amortisation of purchased programme and WEACER -~ o R NURE S At BH S 3 £
film rights and other charges 17,876 18,861
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W2 BB SR 226 677
Employee share-based payment A& B DU AR 34 i 30 1,877 -
Provision for impairment of receivables JRRE Az 5k T (4% A 5,547 16,293
Reversal of provision for impairment of receivables JRRE A 3k T (4% £ 435 [m] (8,505) (12,152)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment i &E#) 3 i K sl #5, (s18) (664) 81
Share of losses of jointly controlled entities Ao ] 42 ) 7 8 A 4R 1,067 1,518
Interest income, net FLE A 558 (24,503) (23,118)
Other income, net HAblse A 558 (18,531) (7,325)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable JRE Wi B i b (B4 ) 24,946 (29,198)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TE AT A ~ 2 4 S A R A 3
other receivables Ham (49,322) (83,939)
Increase in loans and receivables K IR S 3 T (51,124) (38,794)
Decrease in inventories FEWD 367 605
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from JREAS A R B N W) ROE (B8 b
related companies (3,802) 1,194
Decrease in self-produced programmes B R H > 2,156 554
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable, JREAS R~ JFEA R A S T B R | K T
other payables and accruals (B P) 1 (12,072) 27,772
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income PEAEYT A (B D) /38 (15,710) 11,638
Decrease in amounts due to related companies JREAST A5 I L ) K TR > (1,237) (157)
225,296 154,248
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32.

33.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had banking facilities
amounting to approximately HK$19,067,000 (2006:
HK$18,907,000) of which approximately HK$11,440,000
(2006: HK$11,735,000) was unutilised. The facilities are
covered by counter indemnities from the Group.

As at 31 December 2007, deposits of approximately
HK$4,067,000 (2006: HK$3,907,000) were pledged with a
bank to secure a banking guarantee given to the landlord of a
subsidiary.

Commitments

(a) Programme and film rights acquisition

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had aggregate
outstanding programme and film rights related
commitments of approximately HK$13,368,000 (2006:
HK$34,123,000) of which all (2006: HK$33,695,000)
was in respect of a film rights acquisition agreement with
STAR TV Filmed Entertainment Limited (“STAR Filmed”)
extending to 27 August 2008. Total programme and film
rights related commitments are analysed as follows:

32.

33.

RITEE

AEEELET A=+ H o AEEAER

715 B4 4 519,067,000 #5 70 ( BE 4R
18,907,000 %% J6) » & H 411,440,000 # 7T (—
FEINAF 111,735,000 00) VKRB H - A BIME
1 F A A B 2 AL 0 B0 AR VR IR o

ATEELES T HZ=Z+—H > 44,067,000
JC (R E IS 3,907,000 % 90) 1947 3 B K

TRAT AR BT — WS A R ERATIER Y
LTI

e

(a) WA B K& ERHE

ATERELCET A= —H AEES
B BB 5 MR R R AT RIS ALK
13,368,000 5 7 (=& E N4 1 34,123,000
Wot) > E A (AL IS 33,695,000
W J0) J5 BLSTAR TV Filmed Entertainment
Limited ([ STAR Filmed |) %5 5] 19 1§ & 5 5
FoHE b i AT B R ek R A R R AR
AHZAEH - AHEH &R R
WRBSHWT

2007 2006

e R

$'000 $000

Tt Tt

Not later than one year AN — 4R 13,368 20,776
Later than one year and not later than five years B — S (H AR A T AR - 13,347
13,368 34,123
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33.

Commitments (continued)

(b) Service charges

(c)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had total committed
service charges payable to Satellite Television Asian
Region Limited (“STARL”) and Fox News Network
L.L.C. (“Fox”) of approximately HK$72,851,000 (2006:
HK$120,853,000) and Nil (2006: HKS$1,896,000) in
respect of service agreement expiring/expired on 30 June
2009 and 25 July 2007, respectively. Total committed
service charges payable to STARL and Fox are analysed as
follows:
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R e

33. AIE (@)
) R 2

ATERELET A =T —H > AEE S
AL —FEEIJLAFESNH S H K EER
Lo H = H B B0 RS R
7% A BHEA MR AR ([STARL J) & Fox
News Network L.L.C. ([ Fox ) MR £ 4 By
72,851,000 7€ (. FZ /N4 1 120,853,000
W IC) BEW I (CEEINAE 11,896,000

) o MEAT STARL M Fox F IR 765 2 i 7R I8 42
AT

2007 2006

—EELE | —2EA
$'000 $'000
Too Tt
Not later than one year B — 4 48,513 50,016
Later than one year and not later than five years RN — AR {H AN A AR 24,338 72,733
72,851 122,749

Operating lease

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had rental
commitments of approximately HK$25,122,000 (2006:
HK$33,588,000) under various operating leases extending
to September 201 1. Total future minimum lease payments
payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

(c)

Mg

RoEELAFET A= —H > AEER
ﬁezlﬁiﬁﬁi_?——inﬁ E’Jﬂ“%a‘ﬁla
JH IR & %) 25,122,000 #5 IC ( ENAE
33,588,000 % JC) MY 4 - *E%TTW@E
KA > R Pl M AT 1 S5 A R 4 AR B 40 AT
R

2007 20006

e 2= s CERENAE

$'000 $000

Tt Tt

Not later than one year IR — 4 12,527 12,079
Later than one year and not later than five years B — A AH AR A T AR 11,724 21,137
Later than five years B A 871 372
25,122 33,588
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33. Commitments (continued)

(d) Capital commitments

(i)

(if)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had capital
commitments of approximately HK$110,990,000
(2006: Nil) as follows:

33. F&IE @)
(d) BAR &Y

(i)

Mo LEFHZ=Z—H > A%
] A7 % 7 K 3 49 110,990,000 #5 7T (—
FENAE ) I

2007 2006

SEREE RN

$'000 $000

Tt Tt

Not later than one year RN —4E 56,887 -
Later than one year and not later than five years #8 i — 4 {H AN it F4F - -
Authorised but not contracted for CRREERFTA 54,103 -
110,990 -

Investment in JAVEU S 75 (b 3%) B 26 A R4 #A
(Phoenix Oriental (Beijing) Properties Company
Limited) (“Phoenix Oriental”)

Phoenix Pictures Limited (“Phoenix Pictures”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a capital increase contract (the “Capital
Increase Contract”) on 27 June 2007 and an
amended and restated capital increase contract (the
“Amendment Contract”) on 21 December 2007
with Phoenix Oriental and its existing shareholders,
pursuant to which Phoenix Pictures agreed to
subscribe for 50% of the enlarged registered capital
(the “Subscription”) of Phoenix Oriental. The purpose
of the investment is to participate in the development
of a site (the “Land”) situated at the south-western
corner of Chaoyang Park, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
into a building (“Phoenix International Media
Centre”) which will contain theatres and television
programme studios to be used by the Group. The land
use rights of the Land are owned by Phoenix Oriental
pursuant to a land and project transfer contract with
b mt 5A B 20 B B % 48 % 48 B (Beijing Chaoyang
Park Development & Management Co.) entered into
in May 2006 and are for a term of 50 years from 10
October 2001. Upon completion of the project, all
the parties can unanimously consent to terminate the
Amendment Contract and liquidate Phoenix Oriental.
The balance of the assets and real properties of
Phoenix Oriental after liquidation shall be distributed
to the parties in proportion to their respective equity
interest in Phoenix Oriental. Phoenix Pictures will

have priority in selecting the theatres and television
production studios and the professional facilities.

(if)

T BUER Tr (dEa0) B A R A (TR
R T7 ) B BE

A ) Y [ 1 4 A i 2 ) LR
RAEA R A A (TR A B R
T P FLE R RO —F LA N H
R ARSI ESE (Y EAR])
Wit —FFLFE+ A+ —HFTL
EaT kB 2 HESE ((EFTER D
452 L TR R 2 A0 ] 5 S JRL JEL SR Dy 8
KGEM & A K 50% ([R3EHIE] © 5%
TH%E B A — W AL L 5 B
W5 2 [ V4 R A A AR ([aZ B b ) %
JE Jo — WA ([RGB R R A s )
(0 455y A 52 [0 ) 1 9 9 A BB B
WALE HRAEE) > MARIER —FEAN
A T H B B 2 [ B R A
CIAICE S SRR LY S TN TS
i #) - ol A RE 2R Pl BB RO AT
MoFE—F+A+HEF AN+
o REZIEHE S TR > sl A& 77—
BJA] A AL AT A [ B RLE R Oy T
o AR R 7 TR S A% 2 B I B
FEE 5 A7 R B AT 40 07 25 B R BB\ SR 7
AT (19 BB ASRE 2 LU 91 1 18 S5 34T 0 UK -
JRJEL S5 A5 st T B S 738 45 4 X JE B R
LR S Bl -
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33. Commitments (continued) 33. A&IE @)
(d) Capital commitments (continued) (d) BEARSE (4)

(ii) (continued)

According to the Amendment Contract, the registered
capital of Phoenix Oriental shall be increased from
RMB10,000,000 (approximately HK$10,200,000) to
RMB300,000,000 (approximately HK$306,000,000),
among which RMB150,000,000 (approximately
HK$153,000,000) will be contributed by Phoenix
Pictures upon the application and registration of
Phoenix Oriental for conversion into a sino-foreign
equity joint venture enterprise.

As of 31 December 2007, Phoenix Oriental was still
in the process of obtaining all the relevant approvals
for the Amendment Contract and the Group had not
contributed any amount into Phoenix Oriental.

(i)

(41)

W& T &R - BE R O /Y gk it
EAGE R AR 10,000,0007T (4
10,200,000 % J0) #m = A K ¥
300,000,000 7C (£1306,000,000 5
Jt) - HF AR 150,000,000 56 (£
153,000,000 #5 JG) 5% 74 B RS 7
J kM 25 v A0 4 2E IR el JBLRLSY
RN -

BEFFELFET A= —H - BA
TS AE 5 FR A BR B AT & [ B4 B
AR Bl 3 o T AR 4R T 1 A 1) JRLJEL SR
I7 BEAAEAT A -

(e) Other commitments (e) HAthmgE

(i) Asat 31 December 2007, the Group had other operating
commitments of approximately HK$36,320,000 (2006:
HK$37,911,000) under various agreements as follows:

(i)

W oEELEF A=+ —H &
A AR 3 2 IE o ek A L AR R I
#136,320,000 #5 o0 (= F F IS 4F ¢
37,911,000 70) IR

2007 20006

—EFF LY RN

$'000 $000

Tt T

Not later than one year RNIBJ—4F 24,220 24,130
Later than one year and not later than five years 8 % —4F{H B A FAF 12,100 13,781

36,320 37,911
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34. Related Party Transactions 4. EHEALRS

(i) The Group had the following significant transactions with (i) AR BA BT GF 758 A% g5
the related parties as defined in HKAS 24 — Related Party ME JI 55 24 98— BN L8R HEAT R A
Disclosures: 2

2007 2006

—RFLg CERENAE

Note(s) $’000 $000

i 5 T Tt

Service charges paid/payable to STARL a, b 54,258 53,416

[l STARL 32 A5/ FE AF (¥ M 55 22

Commission for international subscription sales and marketing
services paid/payable to STARL a, ¢ 3,447 3,201
1) STARL AT,/ M AT £ o 56 5T 0 S B 53 4 o R 5 41 <

Acquisition of decoders and viewing cards from STARL a, d 33 —

] STARL i 1 fff il 1 S A%

Film licence fees paid/payable to STAR Filmed a, e 20,413 20,326
14 STAR Filmed 3,/ JE A7 89 75 & 7] 72

Service charges paid/payable to Asia Television Limited ("ATV") f,g 379 731

1) U TR AR A PR A (TER B TEAR 1) ST AT () IR 5 22

Service charges received/receivable from ATV f h 1,281 1,276

16 S5 P AL IS HR M S R I 5

Service charges paid/payable to Fox ij 3,719 3,689
] Fox 324/ HEAF 19 MR 55 22

Service charges paid/payable to British Sky Broadcasting Limited (“BSkyB”) k1 1,233 1,120
] British Sky Broadcasting Limited ([ BSkyB 1) 324,/ JE A5} iy i 5 2

Service charges received/receivable from DIRECTV, Inc. (‘DIRECTV”) m, n 1,378 1,954
6 DIRECTV, Inc. ([ DIRECTV J) Wt B/ 1 Ui B AR 755 4%

Programme licence fees to SGL Entertainment Limited (‘SGL”) a, 0 78 210
[ SGL Entertainment Limited ([SGL ) A8 H #F rl 22

Programme license fees paid/payable to Asia Television Enterprise Limited (“ATVE”) f, p - 428

] Asia Television Enterprise Limited ([ATVE 1) 324}/ B4 8 B 7wl 2

Advertising sales to the CMCC Group q,r 31,778 8,912
16 o RS T £ 4 AR AT 10 B 41 i

Key management compensation iii 30,036 25,623
B A=SIUNER
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34. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(i)

(continued)
Notes:

(a)

(£

STARL, STAR Filmed, SGL and other STAR TV group
companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of STAR Group
Limited, which owns 100% of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group
Co., Ltd., a substantial equity holder of the Company.

Service charges paid/payable to STARL cover a wide range of
technical services provided to the Group are charged based
on the terms of the service agreement dated 30 June 2006.
The summary of the terms of the service agreement is set out
in the section headed “New Star Services Agreement” of the
circular of the Company dated 21 July 2006 (the “Circular”).
Either fixed fees or variable fees are charged depending on

the type of services utilised.

The commission for international subscription sales and
marketing services paid/payable to STARL is based on 15%
(2006: 15%) of the subscription fees generated and received

by it on behalf of the Group.

Acquisition of decoders and viewing cards relating to
Phoenix Movies Channel from STARL at a price based on
the cost to STAR plus (if any) transportation costs of such

decoders and viewing cards.

The film

rights acquisition agreement with STAR Filmed.

licence fees are charged in accordance with a film

Mr. LIU Changle and Mr. CHAN Wing Kee beneficially
own 93.3% and 6.7% respectively of Today’s Asia Limited,
which indirectly owns approximately 26.85% of ATV as at
31 December 2007.

Service charges paid/payable to ATV cover news footage and
data transmission services provided to the Group which are
charged based on terms mutually agreed upon between both

parties.

4. BEHEEALTRSZ @

(i) (A

(a)

(c)

()

STARL ~ STAR Filmed ~ SGL & i # 4
R A 2w > 4 2 R e AU B A R
M 42 B JE A A > HCHE A Xing Kong Chuan
Mei Group Co., Ltd. (A2 A FEREGFRA N)
9 100% fH it -

] STARL 32 A5/ JE AsF 1) e 745 22 0 45 1) A< 42
R AR 1Y 1 R A A IR - IR 2R T AR
PR BENENSAZ 4 HET SR W
i 11 M K 1 o IR TS o e 10 % 2 E A 471
AN T D EENFELH B
B8 PR ([0 bR ) T i AR M 5 W sk | — i o
I8 7 B V7 B i 2 H AR T BT O A I s S

MM E

6] STARL 2 A5,/ JE AT () o) % T 08 4 45 J% Tl
o #5044 EL AR 2 AR 2 1 Bl i
R B WA 2 19 15% (. RAE 1 15%)
RN

RV A TR B2 & 1] STARL B B g A5 2% &
PG R 2 B TR 3 STAR 2 LA i (4
) 7% RS2 AR 2 A o

R FE A2 T AR B STAR Filmed #T 57 19 1§
NS auiir e

P 48 e A R R K ML e A Y B F L AR
TZHAET—HARE AR S H S MAT
RS 71149 93.3% X 6.7% F %5 > 1M 5% 2 w) I [H]
P AT R N AR A 26.85% HE4G o

fi] S R A R AR AR R R A S ) B % Bk
A IR B 1 S A AT B IR A - T 4
B 5 [F] B B R S -
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34. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(i) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(h)

Service charges received/receivable from ATV cover the
following services provided to ATV which are charged based

on terms specified in a service agreement:

—  the use of floor area for the location of receivers;

—  the use of master control room equipment and
transmission equipment (including maintenance for
daily wear and tear);

—  fibre optic transmission; and

—  video tapes administration and playout services.

Fox is an associate of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co.,

Ltd., a substantial equity holder of the Company.

Service charges paid/payable to Fox cover the following
services provided to the Group which are charged based on

the terms specified in a service agreement:

—  granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable licence
to subscribe for Fox’s news service;

—  leasing of office space and access to workspace, subject
to availability; and

— accessing Fox's camera hook up at the United Nations,
interview positions in various places in the United
States and live shots from Fox’s satellite truck positions
for events that Fox is already covering, subject to

availability.

BSkyB is 39% owned by News Holdings Limited (formerly
known as The News Corporation Limited), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of News Corporation, which indirectly owns 100%
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
equity holder of the Company.

Service charges paid/payable to BSkyB cover the following
services provided to the Group which are charged based on

terms specified in the service agreements:

—  transponder rental;

—  uplinking services; and

—  encoding and electronic programme guide services.

3. EREALIRS @

(i) (&)

Bttt - ()

(h)

(i)

(k)

1) S 9 R AR M T T TR S A L
F 4R M 7 59 T AT 0 MR - Sl
T e 4 B O e RO

— (T R R T L B Y R T TR
— o AR R A S A R (R A
H % FERUETT R E)

- OLHRAE s R
SO B R AL MRS o

Fox J9 Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd.
(ARAF EEREERAN) MBS L -

1] Fox ST/ A 1) IR 5 2 AL 435 T 5142 it 7
A AR TG T O R > S R T e A Tk e
f A1 AR RO

— T Fox 7 ) RS 1) JE 18 5% T R W] e
FEATRE

— WA EME XL LS 517 H A
JRETTE 5 B

= fdH Fox AL Bk & B Y B SEM ~ e
Hb 1 BR 577 45 1 L 2 H Fox i 2 B 3% T 007
B I Fox & HEAT OB 1 F R Bl &
I > AP FL A R T o o

BSkyB H News Corporation [ 4 & Hft J&§ 24
A) News Holdings Limited (Fi f§ The News
Corporation Limited) #E47 39% HE4d » 1 News
Corporation [ 4% # 47 Xing Kong Chuan Mei
Group Co., Ltd. (A2 H] FEREEFA NN
100% fH i ©

5 BSkyB s A, MEAT B IR 5 2 46 1 51 4R
T AR S T T A AR o RS 22 T 4 M
T e 4 B Y e RO

— BRI
— R &
— N K E T E S R
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34. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(i)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(m) DIRECTV is 40.97% directly owned by Fox Entertainment

(n)

(p)

(q)

Group, Inc., which indirectly owns 100% of Fox. Fox is
an associate of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a

substantial equity holder of the company.

Service charges received/receivable from DIRECTV are

charged based on terms specified in a service agreement.

Programme license fees to SGL are charged based on terms

specified in a license agreement.

Pursuant to a programme licensing agreement dated 29 May
2003, the programme license fees paid/payable to ATVE
with respect to a list of programmes as stipulated in the
schedule of the agreement are charged at a fixed fee or fees

to be mutually agreed.

The CMCC Group, through its wholly-owned subsidiary of
China Mobile (Hong Kong) Group Limited, owns 19.86%
of the issued share capital of the Company. CMCC has
become a shareholder and related party of the Company
since 25 August 2006.

Advertising sales to the CMCC Group are related to airtime
advertising and programme sponsoring on channels operated

by the Group.

4. BEHEEALTRSZ @

(i) (A

Mfat o (A7)

(m)

DIRECTV J3 i Fox Entertainment Group, Inc.
H 4G 40.97% ME 4% > 1l Fox Entertainment
Group, Tnc. HIl [ 4% ¥ A Fox 19 100% HE #5 -
Fox 2% Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd.
(ARAR FERERSFAN) A .

5] DIRECTV I M e 3 i IR s 2 7% 4% i
5 Wl e 418 I A A s e -

i SGL 32 A ) B B 7 AT 2% 75 4 55 Wl 1o e 45
BRI AR AT

RPN =T =R A+ ILHFT R
FI Al 1 o > ik a% i e w0 28 P B0 19 £
B i A MERF ATVE B8 B 75T 2 T5 35
le6] 5 ) 5 My ) ) A R i

PR S OZ P R E) (i) 4
A PR Al 2 B IR 2 A A A A R B
BATIANY 19.86% M fi o PR B @ 1 —
FENFNH AT H A A ]
WRABENL -

fi] H R 38 i A B AT I BB B T AT B
A [ FT RS AT b 0 A B B B
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34. Related Party Transactions (continued) 4. EHAEALRZ @)
(i) Year end balances arising from related parties transactions (i) a0 b SCRfF5E 34G) Fr B R R A B N 32 5
as disclosed in Note 34(i) above were also disclosed in B R AR IR B AE M EE 15 Pk R -
Note 15.
(iii) Key management compensation (i) 28 B & 35
2007 2006
—RELE TERENAE
$’000 $000
Toe Tt
Salaries e 14,267 13,831
Discretionary bonuses 155 8 TR 14 1€ AT 6,000 5,200
Quarters and housing allowance 1o 55 I 55 2 R 5,509 5315
Pension fund Bk 1,317 1,277
Compensation and others il 1 4 S oAt 2,943 -
30,036 25,623
35. Comparative Figures 35. LEETF
Certain of the 2006 comparative figures have been reclassified H T ZEBBNEM IR B T CERO - AT
to conform to the current year’s presentation. Depreciation AR ) 25077 2 o A B % K S
expenses relating to broadcast operations and other equipment SER R B R TE T A R Y B e 2 AR
under property, plant and equipment have been reclassified B — R RATEBE I ER RS -

from selling, general and administrative expenses to operating

expenses.
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Consolidated Results REHEE
Six months
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 30 June
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2003
e & S “ZENE “ZFLE “ETNE e > x5 “ZEZF
ToASTH FZASt-A FZASt-H FZASt-H FZA=1—H AAETH
L I3 JIR:3 IHAERE EAMA IEAERE
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
i it i i i i
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E 1) (1) (H51)
Results E3 |
Revenue A 1,178,667 1,057,667 1,034,768 959,660 304,030 615,462
Operating expenses KEEm (803,823) (729,483) (653,654) (694,841) (288,437) (584,500)
Selling, general and S — M RATECE M
administrative expenses (128,300) (137,330) (222,429) (126,283) (60,172) (124,295)
Other income, net A AT 82,630 54,971 44734 17,518 7,958 21,631
Profit/(loss) before taxation and WS B Dl SR 5 i
minority interests (ﬁ*’]/(]@ﬁ,ﬁ) 329,174 245,825 203,419 156,054 (36,621) (71,702)
Taxation B (50,640) (34,938) (20,755) (4,826) (2,559) (3,811)
Profit/(loss) before minority interests ¥ % #Ule HUHE 4 i
WAL (i) 278,534 210,887 182,664 151,228 (39,180) (75,513)
Minority interests DB RRE 4 215 1,498 (1,182) (734) 314 3,150
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity A TR A ATELS
holders of the Company Hie A/ () 278,749 212,385 181,482 150,494 (38,866) (72,363)
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Consolidated Assets and Liabilities hEEEREE
As at 31 December As at 30 June
MZH=+—H RARZ1R
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2003
ZERLA ZEERE ZEEHE ZEENAE CEEZE ZEREZA
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T
Total assets B 1,635,542 1,433,350 1,161,603 1,082,592 878,039 932,603
Total liabilities AR (225,753) (266,662) (154,497) (212,107) (165,516) (180,563)
Minority interests b B R A (24,424) (7,139) (8,019) (6,837) (6,103) (6,832)
Capital and reserves LNk 2t N
attributable to the AR T A
Company’s equity holders 1,385,365 1,159,549 999,087 863,648 706,420 745,208

On 8 January 2004, the Company changed its financial year end from A " EZU4E— H /N H > AN &) 8% H B ECFE 45 B h
30 June to 31 December. The Directors consider the reason forthe SH =+ H&EhA T+ _H=1+—H EHEHZL &
change of financial year end is to align the Group’s business cycle — B BUAELS H 10 R R B 78 SR SE H R HOE 4L % 5 (&
with that of its advertising customers, and the agents who represent  fCEA B EF L) FIEBBE WAL —80 B HA
them, which normally have year end on 31 December and determine B &7 — LA+ = H =+ — H B FE 45 H &% EF 3

their advertising budgets and operate on a calendar year basis. ) P s T 5 T T 5 R o

As a result of the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 W R MB4FEF AT HAH =+ HER S T2 H

December, the consolidated results and consolidated assets and =+ —H » 4S5 XA EGEE LABEC I R M

liabilities have shown two different financial year end. I8 ASR] B B4 5 H o

! Due to the change of accounting policy in 2005 on the presentation of Hiis R ILAE A B R A0 [ S oA | B g BOR B8
“Advertising revenue”, relevant figures were restated and the change had AR A B AR E A s iSRRI I AR

no effect on the profit or loss of the Group. B B Y J81 e s AT A 22 o
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Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited
9th Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel. (852) 2621 9888 Fax. (852) 2621 9898

BERERZERERAE
BBNEAMELEHIFKEERS EoZ
EHE. (852) 2621 9888 fEHHE. (852) 2621 9898

http://www.ifeng.com
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